
           

NOTICE OF MEETING
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS

PLAN COMMISSION
City Hall, Council Chambers

William E. Dollar Municipal Building
200 N. Fifth Street

Garland, Texas
February 13, 2023 at 7:00 p.m.

 
A meeting of the Plan Commission of the City of Garland, Texas will be held at the
aforementioned location, date, and time to discuss and consider the following agenda
items.

A pre-meeting will begin at 5:30 p.m. at the same location as the regular meeting.  The
agenda for the pre-meeting is the same as for the regular meeting, and may include
additional items as set forth below.

 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  It is the custom and tradition of the
members of the Plan Commission to have an invocation and recital of the Pledge of
Allegiance prior to the beginning of the meeting.  Members of the audience are invited to
participate.  However, members of the audience are not required to participate.  The
decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice and has no bearing on
matters to be considered by the Plan Commission and will not affect the decisions to be
made during the meeting.

The meeting will be broadcast on City of Garland Government Access Television
(CGTV).  CGTV is available via GarlandTX.gov, channel 16 (Spectrum), Channel 44
(Frontier), and channel 99 (AT&T U-verse).  Meetings are broadcast online via
live-streaming, on-demand, and air on CGTV with several rebroadcasts during the week
of the meeting. 

Public Comments
Your comments must relate to an item on this agenda - non-germane comments are not
in order.  Time limits will be imposed by the Chairman as appropriate to the nature of the
agenda item.  Generally, public speakers are given three minutes.  



IN-PERSON COMMENTS: Registration will be required for any citizen wishing to speak.
Speakers shall register using the electronic registration kiosks in the lobby of City Hall.

Garland City Hall and Council Chambers are wheelchair accessible.  Special parking is
available on the east side of City Hall and on Austin & State Street west of City Hall. 
Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary
aids or services must contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 205-2404 at least two
working days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 
BRAILLE IS NOT AVAILABLE.

If the Plan Commission adjourns into executive session during this meeting, the
executive session will be conducted between and among the members of the Plan
Commission and relevant City staff.  Public access to that meeting is prohibited by State
law.  
  

CONSENT AGENDA
 

All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of the Plan
Commission, without discussion.  The Plan Commission has had the opportunity to
review each of these items during a pre-meeting.  The Chairman will announce the
agenda and provide an opportunity for members of the audience and the Plan
Commission to request that an item be removed and considered separately.
 

           
1. MINUTES   
 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the January 23, 2023
meeting.

 
2. PLATS   
 

a. P 23-03  190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat
 

b. P 23-04  Embree Replat Lot 4R, Block 29
 

c. P 23-05  Embree Replat Lot 2R, Block 28
 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION   



ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION
 

Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fill out a
speaker card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking
(cards are located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman
will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and may provide for
rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

  

 

3. ZONING   
 

a. Consider of the application of Kirkman Engineering, requesting approval of  a
Change in Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned
Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached Uses. This property is
located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road. (District 7)
(File Z 22-65 - Zoning)

 
b. Consider of the application of Kirkman Engineering, requesting approval of a

Detail Plan for Single-Family Attached Uses on a property zoned Single-Family
Attached (SFA) District. This property is located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road.
(District 7)  (File Z 22-65 – Detail Plan)

 
c. Consideration of the application of G. Roxana Novoa, requesting approval of a

Change in Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family-10 (SF-10)
District. This property is located at 1013 Rowlett Road. (District 4) (File Z 22-71)

 
d. Consideration of the application of Shammy’s Garland LLC., requesting approval

of a Specific Use Provision for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover Use on a property
zoned Community Retail (CR) District. This property is located at 2461 Belt Line
Road. (District 7)  (File Z 22-76 – Specific Use Provision)

 
e. Consideration of the application of Shammy’s Garland LLC., requesting approval

of a Plan for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover Use on a property zoned
Community Retail (CR) District. This property is located at 2461 Belt Line Road.
(District 7) (File Z 22-76 – Plan)

 
f. Consideration of the application of Quetzal Event Center, requesting approval of

an amended Specific Use Provision for a Reception Facility on a property zoned
Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. This
property is located at 354 East Interstate Highway 30. (District 3)  (File Z 22-78 –
Specific Use Provision)

 



 
g. Consideration of the application of Quetzal Event Center, requesting approval of

a Detail Plan on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for
Community Office Uses. This property is located at 354 East Interstate Highway
30. (District 3) (File Z 22-78 – Detail Plan)

 
h. Consideration of the application of Clay Cristy–ClayMoore Engineering,

requesting approval of a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through
Use on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. This property is located at 119 East
Buckingham Road. (District 8) (File Z 22-79 – Specific Use Provision)

 
i. Consideration of the application of Clay Cristy–ClayMoore Engineering,

requesting approval of a Plan for a Restaurant, Drive-Through on a property zoned
Industrial (IN) District. This property is located at 119 East Buckingham Road.
(District 8) (File Z 22-79 - Plan)

 
j. Consideration of the application of JP3 Consulting LLC, requesting approval of a

Change in Zoning from Community Office (CO) District to Multi-Family-1 (MF-1)
District. This property is located at 2700 West Walnut Street. (District 6)  (File Z
22-81) (The applicant requests postponement of this case to the February
27, 2023 Plan Commission meeting.) 

  

 

4. ADJOURN   
 

NOTICE: The Plan Commission may recess from the open session and convene in a closed session if the discussion of any of the listed
agenda items concerns matters regarding priviledged and unpriviiledged client information deemed confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

NOTE: A quorum of the City Council may be in attendance and may or may not participate in the discussions of the Committee or board.



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 1. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Plan Commission Minutes for January 23, 2023

Summary:
Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the January 23, 2023 meeting.

Attachments
Plan Commission Minutes for January 23, 2023 



MINUTES
 

 
The Plan Commission of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday,
January 23, 2023, in the Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 N. Fifth
Street, Garland, Texas, with the following members present:

Present:  Scott Roberts, Chairman   
Christopher Ott, 1st Vice Chair   
Douglas Williams, 2nd Vice Chair   
Wayne Dalton, At Large   
Julius Jenkins, Commissioner   
Stephanie Paris, Commissioner   
Rich Aubin, Commissioner   
Michael Rose, Commissioner   

Absent: Phillip Johnson, Commissioner

Staff Present: Shawn Roten, Senior Assistant City Attorney
Elisa Morales, Recording Secretary
Will Guerin, Planning Director
Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner
Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner

Attendees:  Tracy Allmendinger, Deputy City Secretary

 
CONSENT AGENDA

 
All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of the Plan
Commission, without discussion.  The Plan Commission has had the opportunity to review each
of these items during a pre-meeting.  The Chairman will announce the agenda and provide an
opportunity for members of the audience and the Plan Commission to request that an item be
removed and considered separately.
 

               



               
1. MINUTES  
 

a. Consider approval of the Plan Commission Minutes for the January 9,
2023 meeting.

Motion was made by Commissioner Stephanie Paris, and seconded by
Michael Rose.

APPROVED   

 
2. PLATS  
 

a. P 23-01 North Garland Commons No. 2 Final Plat APPROVED   
 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Stephanie Paris, and seconded by

Commissioner Michael Rose 

  Vote: 8 - 0 

 
b. P 23-02 Domain at Firewheel Park Addition Final Plat APPROVED   

 
  Motion was made by Commissioner Stephanie Paris, and seconded by

Commissioner Michael Rose 

  Vote: 8 - 0 

 
ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION

 
Speaker Regulations:

Anyone wishing to speak for, against, or on agenda items must fill out a
speaker card and give it to the Plan Commission Secretary before speaking
(cards are located at the entrance to the Council Chambers).  The Chairman
will recognize speakers; he may impose a time limit and may provide for
rebuttal.  All comments and testimony are to be presented from the podium.

 
3. ZONING  
 

a. Consideration of the application of Frontier States Development
Services (FSDS), requesting approval of a Specific Use Provision for a
Kiosk, Self-Service: Retail (Ice) on a property zoned Community Retail
(CR) District. This property is located at 131 West Kingsley Road.  (District
5) (File Z 22-75 – Specific Use Provision)

Representing the applicant Mark Sellers, 4513 N. Shore Dr., The Colony,
Texas, provided an overview of the request, and remained available for
questions. 

There was discussion between the Plan Commission and Mr. Sellers
regarding the proximity of nearby self-service kiosks and the
recommendation to revise the length of the Specific Use Provision to 10-15
years.

APPROVED   



Mr. Sellers explained that the investment it takes the company is the
reason for the 25-year request. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Aubin to close the public hearing and
deny the request. No second was received. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Rose to close the public hearing and
approve the request. Seconded by Commissioner Ott. Further discussion
was made regarding the SUP request for the 25 years as opposed to the
10-15 year recommendation by the City.

Motion was amended by Commissioner Rose to approve the request for
15 years. Seconded by Commissioner Ott. Motion carried: 7 Ayes, 1 Nay. 

 
b. Consideration of the application of Frontier States Development

Services (FSDS), requesting approval of a Plan for a Kiosk, Self-Service:
Retail (Ice) on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District. This
property is located at 131 West Kingsley Road.  (District 5) (File Z 22-75 –
Plan)

Motion was amended by Commissioner Rose to approve the request.
Seconded by Commissioner Ott. Motion carried: 7 Ayes, 1 Nay. 

APPROVED   

 
4. MISCELLANEOUS  
 

a. Consideration to amend in part Chapter 6, Section 6.03 “Definitions” of the
Garland Development Code, regarding the definition of “Pet Store.” 

Residents speaking in favor:
Jennifer Reeder, 637 Perdido Dr., Garland, Texas
Lisa Crawford, 603 Perdido Dr., Garland, Texas 

Residents raised concerns about the sale of puppies and cats bred through
puppy mills from out of state at retail establishments. 

Motion was made by Commissioner Julius Jenkins to close the public
hearing and approve with recommendations as discussed during the
pre-meeting. Seconded by Commissioner Williams. Motion carried: 8
Ayes, 0 Nay. 

APPROVED   

 
b. Update on Plan Commission Secretary    

 
5. ADJOURN

There being no further business to come before the Plan Commission, the
meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.

 

 
CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS

 
/s/ Scott Roberts, Chairman   /s/ Elisa Morales, Secretary



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 2. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: P 23-03 190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat 
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
P 23-03  190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat

Attachments
P 23-03 190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat Report and Attachments 



Planning Report 
File No: P 23-03 /District 1  
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REPLAT 
190 @ N. Garland Addition 
 
LOCATION 
5325 North President George Bush Turnpike 
 
ZONING 
Planned Development (PD) District 22-01  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One 

 
ACREAGE 
1.348 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant requests approval of the Replat to construct a multi-tenant retail/restaurant 
building including a restaurant, drive-through. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 24 x 36 Plat  
 
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton                                            Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner                                         Director of Planning                                
Planning and Development                                    
972-205-2454  
Mwolverton@garlandtx.gov 
  
 
 
 



G
EO

RG
E BUSH

G
ARLAND

UTRN S

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W
N GEORGE BUSH HWY E

N GEORGE BUSH ON W

N G
ARLA

ND AV
E

N GEORGE BUSH

SERVICE RD W

N GEORGE BUSH HWY W

C RC R

P D  0 7 - 3 9P D  0 7 - 3 9

P DP D
1 3 - 0 21 3 - 0 2

P D  1 3 - 0 2P D  1 3 - 0 2

P D  0 1 - 1 6P D  0 1 - 1 6

P D  0 6 - 0 6P D  0 6 - 0 6

P D  0 3 - 1 4P D  0 3 - 1 4

C RC R

P D  2 2 - 0 1P D  2 2 - 0 1

P D  2 1 - 1 1P D  2 1 - 1 1

P D  1 9 - 0 7P D  1 9 - 0 7

P D  1 9 - 0 7P D  1 9 - 0 7

5345

5362

5255

5325

5370

5352

5322

N GEORGE BUSH HWY

N G
ARLA

ND AV
E N GEORGE BUSH HWY

PLAT MAP P 23-03
¯

0 70 140 Feet
1 inch = 106 feet

5325 North President George Bush Highway

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. Bearings and distances are based on Texas Coordinate System of  1983, North
Central Zone (4202).

2. Selling a portion of  this addition by metes and bounds is a violation of  the
City of  Garland Development Code and is subject to withholding of  utilities
and building permits.

3. The purpose of this plat is to add easements to an existing recorded lot.

OWNERS CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF DALLAS §

WHEREAS 190 @ N. Garland 2016, LP are the owners of a 1.348 acre tract of land situated in the Onofre Alvarado Survey, Abstract Number 2, Dallas County,
Texas, being all of Lot 3, Block 1 of 190 @ N. Garland Addition, an addition to the City of Garland, as recorded in Instrument Number 202000153328, Official
Public Records, Dallas County, Texas, also being a portion of Special Warranty Deed recorded in Instrument Number 201600280991, Official Public Records,
Dallas County, Texas and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: (Bearings and distances are based on Texas Coordinate System of
1983, North Central Zone (4202);

BEGINNING at a Concrete Monument found for the southernmost corner of Lot 2, Block 1 of said 190 @ N. Garland Addition, same being a point on the
northeast line of Lot 2, Block 1 of Baylor North Garland Family Health Center, an addition to the City of Garland, as recorded in Volume 2004194, Page 62, Plat
Records, Dallas County, Texas;

THENCE North 44 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds East, departing the northeast line of said second referenced Lot 2, with the south line of said first referenced
Lot 2, a distance of 97.22 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar found for corner;

THENCE North 04 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds East, with a southeast line of said first referenced Lot 2, a distance of 60.19 feet to a Concrete Monument
found for corner;

THENCE North 45 degrees 28 minutes 24 seconds West, with a northern line of said first referenced Lot 2, a distance of 15.01 feet to a Concrete Monument
found for a point on the north line of said first referenced Lot 2, same being the southernmost corner of Lot 1 of said 190 @ N. Garland Addition;

THENCE North 44 degrees 31 minutes 36 seconds East, with a southeast line of said Lot 2, a distance of 146.15 feet to an "X" Cut found for corner;

THENCE South 50 degrees 08 minutes 26 seconds East, with a southeast line of said Lot 1, a distance of 53.37 feet to an "X" Cut found for corner;

THENCE North 39 degrees 51 minutes 34 seconds East, with a southeast line of said Lot 1, a distance of 71.50 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar found for the easternmost
corner of said Lot 1, said point also being on the south right-of-way line of President George Bush Turnpike (State Highway 190 (Variable Width right-of-way));

THENCE South 50 degrees 08 minutes 26 seconds East, with the south right-of-way line of said President George Bush Turnpike, a distance of 70.47 feet to a
point for corner from which a 1/2 inch rebar found bears South 02 degrees 58 minutes West, a distance of 0.2 feet;

THENCE South 57 degrees 28 minutes 07 seconds East, with the south right-of-way line of said President George Bush Turnpike, a distance of 70.56 feet to an
"X" Cut found for the northern most corner of Lot 4R, Block 1 of TBCW Addition, an addition to the City of Garland, as recorded in Volume 2003232, Page 28,
Plat Records, Dallas County, Texas;

THENCE South 44 degrees 32 minutes 32 seconds West, departing the south right-of-way line of said President George Bush Turnpike, with the northwest line
of said Lot 4R, continuing with the northwest line of Lot 2R, Block 1 of TBCW Addition, an addition to the City of Garland, as recorded in Instrument Number
201300236141, Official Public Records, Dallas County, Texas, a total distance of 385.52 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar found for the easternmost most corner of said
second referenced Lot 2, same being a point on the north line of said Lot 4R;

THENCE North 45 degrees 27 minutes 28 seconds West, departing the north line of said Lot 4R, with the northeast line of said second referenced Lot 2, a
distance of 132.83 feet to THE POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 58,718 square feet or 1.348 acres of land, more or less.

OWNERS DEDICATION

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

THAT 190 @ N. Garland 2016, L.P. are the owners of  the property described in this plat, do hereby adopt this plat designating the property as 190 @ N.
GARLAND ADDITION, FIRST REPLAT, an addition to the City of  Garland, Dallas County, Texas and do hereby dedicate in fee simple and to the public use
forever, the streets and alleys shown thereon for the purposes indicated, all easements dedicated by this plat shall be open to, without limitation, all public and
private utilities, using or desiring to use the same for the purposes dedicated. No building, fence, tree, shrub or other structure, improvement, or growth shall be
constructed, reconstructed, or placed upon, over or across any easement dedicated by this plat. Any public or private utility shall have 1) the right to remove,
keep removed, all or any part of  any building, fence, tree, shrub, or other structure, improvement or growth which in any way may endanger or interfere with the
construction, reconstruction, maintenance, operation or efficiency of  such utility: AND 2) the right of  ingress and egress to or from and upon such easements for
the purpose of  constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining, and adding to, enlarging, or removing all or parts of  its operation without the
necessity at any time of  procuring the permission of  anyone. The maintenance of  paving on utility easements and fire lanes are the responsiblities of  the property
owner.

All utility easements dedicated by this plat shall also include an additional area of  working space for construction, reconstruction, additions, enlargements, and
maintenance, including such additional area necessary for installation and maintenance of  manholes, cleanouts, fire hydrants, water services, and wastewater
services from the main to the curb or pavement line.

This plat approved subject to all applicable ordinances, rules, regulations, and resolutions of the City of Garland, Texas.

WITNESS our hand this the ___________ day of ___________________, 20___.

_________________________________

Authorized Representative - 190 @ N. Garland 2016, LP

_________________________________

Printed Name

_________________________________

Title / Date

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ______________ §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of  Texas, on this day personally appeared_________________, known to me to be
the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein
expressed.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ________day of ______________________ 20____.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SCALE:  1" = 30'

30' 0 15' 30' 60'

DRAWN BY: G.L.C.       DATE:  12/05/2022      CHECKED BY:  M.P.      JOB NO.:  D56362

REPLAT
190 @ N. GARLAND ADDITION

FIRST REPLAT
LOT 3R, BLOCK 1

Being a Replat of Lot 3, Block 1 of
190@ N. Garland Addition,

an addition to the City of Garland, as
recorded in Inst. No. 202000153328

O.P.R.D.C.T.
City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas

City Case Number: 211202-2
-- 2022 --

OWNER/DEVELOPER
190 @ N. Garland 2016 LP

10210 N. Central
Expressway, Suite 300

Dallas, Texas 75231

ENGINEER

Point of Contact:
Grayson CeBallos

972-370-5871
grayson.ceballos@windroseservices.com

Last Revision Date: 01/04/2023

Claymoore Engineering
1903 Central Drive, Suite 406

Bedford, Texas 76021
1955 LAKEWAY DRIVE, SUITE 220  I  LEWISVILLE, TX 75057  I  214.217.2544

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194331  I  WINDROSESERVICES.COM

ILAND SURVEYING PLATTING
W I N D ROS E

SITE

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

APPROVED AND ACCEPTED for the City of Garland, this the ______
day of __________________, 20___ by the City Plan Commission of the
City of Garland,

__________________________________________
Director of Planning

__________________________________________________
Chairman of Planning Commission

The Approval of this plat is contingent upon the plat being filed with the
County Clerk of Dallas County within 180 days from the above date.

LEGEND OF ABBREVIATIONS
· D.R.D.C.T. DEED RECORDS, DALLAS, TEXAS
· O.P.R.D.C.T. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
· P.R.D.C.T. PLAT RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS
· ROW RIGHT OF WAY
· IRS 1/2 INCH CAPPED REBAR STAMPED "WINDROSE" SET
· C.M. CONTROLLING MONUMENT

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF DENTON §

I Mark N. Peeples, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, licensed by the State of Texas, affirm that this plat was
prepared under my direct supervision, from recorded documentation, evidence collected on the ground during field
operations and other reliable documentation; and that this plat substantially complies with the Rules and Regulations of
the Texas Board of Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors, Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 212, and the
City of Garland Development Code. I futher affirm that monumentation shown hereon was either found or placed as
described hereon and is in substantial compliance with the City of Garland Development Code; and that the digital
drawing file accompanying this plat is a precise representation of this Signed Final Plat

Dated this the __________ day of __________________________, 20___.

______________________________
Mark N. Peeples, R.P.L.S.
No. 6443

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF DENTON §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of  Texas, on this day personally appeared
Mark N. Peeples, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged
to me that he executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ________day of ______________________ 20____.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1, BLOCK 1 190@ N. GARLAND ADDITION DOC. NO. 202000153328 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3R, BLOCK 1 58,718 SF 1.348 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MONUMENT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR (C.M.) GRID NORTHING = 7038615.04 GRID EASTING = 2538249.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR  (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK 1 190@ N. GARLAND ADDITION DOC. NO. 202000153328 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MONUMENT (C.M.) GRID NORTHING = 7038708.20 GRID EASTING = 2538155.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4R, BLOCK 1 REPLAT OF LOTS 4 & 5, BLOCK 1, TBCW ADDITION VOL. 2003232, PG. 28 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESIDENT GEORGE BUSH TURNPIKE (STATE HIGHWAY 190) (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2R, BLOCK 1 TBCW ADDITION REPLAT OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1 INST. NO. 201300236141 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRELANE SHOPPING CENTER DALLAS TX, LLC INST. NO. 201900141035 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALMART REAL ESTATES BUSINESS VOL. 2001097, PG. 1912 D.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2, BLOCK 1 BAYLOR NORTH GARLAND FAMILY HEALTH CENTER VOL. 2004194, PG. 62 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAINBARG VIP, FAINBARG CONTROLS 1, LLC INST. NO. 201300011367 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
190 @ N. GARLAND 2016, LP INST. NO. 201600280991 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
190 @ N. GARLAND 2016, LP INST. NO. 201600280991 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY R. STANTON, JR. & JOAN Y. STANTON INST. NO. 202100082396 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. MONUMENT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3, BLOCK 1 190@ N. GARLAND ADDITION DOC. NO. 202000153328 O.P.R.D.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARLAND POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
V:\WRD SITE NOs\D56362 - 190 at North Garland - Garland\Drawings

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line Data Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line #

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Distance

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bearing

AutoCAD SHX Text
N50°10'01"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N39°51'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S50°08'26"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESERVED FOR COUNTY RECORDING LABEL



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 2. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: P 23-04 Embree Replat, Lot 4R, Block 29
Submitted For: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

Summary:
P 23-04  Embree Replat Lot 4R, Block 29

Attachments
P 23-04 Embree Replat, Lot 4R, Block 29 



Planning Report 
File No: P 23-04/District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REPLAT 
Embree Replat, Lot 4R, Block 29 
 
LOCATION 
616 West Avenue F  
 
ZONING 
Multi-Family (MF) District  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One (1)  

 
ACREAGE 
0.29 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant requests to establish one (1) lot of record for future development.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 8x11 Plat  
 
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed  Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning and Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 
 
 
 

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


W AVENUE F

P D  0 2 - 4 4P D  0 2 - 4 4

S F - 7S F - 7

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1
631

712

629

616 526

617
601

619621

620

633

530

605
627

600

700

PLAT MAP P 23-04
¯

0 30 60 Feet
1 inch = 53 feet

616 West Avenue F

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



E

d

g

e

f

i

e

l

d

 

D

r

i

v

e

S
 
1

s
t
 
S

t

Armstron Dr

S
 
G

a
r
l
a

n
d

 
A

v
e

Joyce Dr

Morris Dr

M
a

r
i
o

n
 
D

r

L
y
n

n
 
D

r

D
e

l
m

a
r
 
D

r

S
 
3

r
d

 
S

t

S
 
5
t
h
 
S

t

P
a
r
k
w

a
y
 
D

r

S
 
1

0
t
h

 
S

t

S

 

G

l

e

n

b

r

o

o

k

 

D

r

S
 
1

2
t
h

 
S

t

M
a

r
i
o

n
 
D

r

W Avenue F

W Avenue F

W Avenue G

Edgefield Dr

M

e

l

o

d

y

 

L

n

M
u

r
r
a

y
 
D

r

James Dr

F

o

r

e

s

t
 
L

n

W

 

S

t

a

t

e

 

S

t

W Avenue B

W Avenue D

S
 
6
t
h
 
S

t

K

C

S

 

R

R

GUSTAVO ARANA

AND ALMA ARANA

INST. No. 201700052627

O.P.R.D.C.T.

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

POB

2

5

'

 

A

L

L

E

Y

V

O

L

.

 

7

7

,

 

P

G

.

 

4

4

1

M

.

R

.

D

.

C

.

T

.

20' ALLEY

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

N 89°21'31" E  185.00'

DO HOLDINGS GROUP,LLC

INST. No. 201700144167

CORRECTED IN INST. No.

201800257157

O.P.R.D.C.T.

MARTHA F. MAREK, TRUSTEE

INST. No. 200218302729

O.P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4R

14,134 SQUARE FEET

0.324 ACRES

DO HOLDINGS GROUP,LLC

INST. No. 201700148210

O.P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 1

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

CITY OF GARLAND

INST. No. 201200083951

O.P.R.D.C.T.

EAST

22' OF

LOT 7

WEST

22' OF

LOT 8

RICHARD BLAKE MANN

INST. No. 201800070238

O.P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 8

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 10

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

JAMES JOSEPH

INST. No. 201200347842

O.P.R.D.C.T.

JAMES JOSEPH

INST. No. 201200347842

O.P.R.D.C.T.

FIDENCIO PAVIA

O.P.R.D.C.T.

VOL. 200597, PG 3082

EAST 55' OF

LOT 3

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

CIRS
1/2" IRF

(CM)

1/2" CIRF

"RPLS 5034"
1/2" IRF

WEST AVENUE F

70' R.O.W.

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

ABST. 735

(UNPLATTED)

RUIZ MARTIN & MARIA GUADALUPE

CALLED 2.15 ACRES

INST. No. 201800020696

O.P.R.D.C.T.

ABST. 735

(UNPLATTED)

SCB INVESTMENTS

 INC 401K TRUST

CALLED 2.28 ACRES

INST. No.201600209936

O.P.R.D.C.T.

WEST 10' OF

LOT 3

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T

N 89°21'31" E  66.85'

S
 
0
0
°
2
7
'
4
8
"
 
W

 
 
1
3
3
.
9
4
'

S 89°19'05" W  144.20'

N

 

3

0

°

1

0

'

1

5

"

 

E

 

 

1

5

6

.

0

4

'

BLOCK 29

LOT 10

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

A

B

N

E

R

 
K

E

E

N

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

,

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
7

3

5

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

LOT 3

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

3
5
'

3
5
'

N:7017832.35

E:2539718.13

N:7017965.54

E:2539652.37

LOT 7

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

2

5

'

 

A

L

L

E

Y

V

O

L

.

 

7

7

,

 

P

G

.

 

4

4

1

M

.

R

.

D

.

C

.

T

.

LOT 6

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 5

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 9

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

(
D

E
E

D
 
L
I
N

E
)

(55')

(55')

(65')

(65')

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

(65')

(12')

(65')

(38')

(44.00')

(38')

(60')

(65.00')

(174.36')

(

1

4

6

'

)

(

6

6

4

.

4

7

'

)

(174.40')

(

4

7

0

.

2

8

'

)

(
1
2
3
'
)

(
1
2
3
'
)

(
1
2
3
'
)

(
1
2
3
'
)

(
1
2
3
'
)

(
5
5
.
0
0
'
)

(65.00')

(90.3')

(90')

(
6
2
.
5
'
)

(

1

4

5

'

)

(30') (30')

1/2" IRF

(CM)

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

N

LEGEND

GENERAL PLAT NOTES

1. All interior property corners are marked with a 1/2" iron rod with a green

plastic cap stamped "Eagle Surveying" set (CIRS) unless otherwise

noted.

2. The purpose of this plat is to create one lot of record from a portion of

two existing lots of record.

3. Coordinates and bearings shown hereon are on grid, are not scaled,

and are tied to the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, (NAD83(2011),

North Central Zone (4202) based on GPS observations utilizing the

AllTerra RTK Network.

4. Selling a portion of this addition by Metes and Bounds is a violation of

City of Garland Development Code and is subject to withholding of

utilities and building permits.

5. Property owners of corner lots shall maintain sight visibility triangles in

accordance with Chapter Eight of the Technical Standards Manual of

the City of Garland, Texas.

1" = 20'
0 2010

EAGLE SURVEYING, LLC

222 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE: 200

DENTON, TX  76201

940.222.3009

TX FIRM # 10194177

EAGLE SURVEYING, LLC

222 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE: 200

DENTON, TX  76201

940.222.3009

SURVEYOR OWNER

DO Holdings Group LLC

407 Valley Glen Dr

Richardson,Texas 75080

214-929-7611

JOB #: 18-08-73

DATE: 01/28/2023

DRAWN BY: CF/BE

APPROVAL BLOCK

Approved and accepted for the City of Garland this ___________ day of

____________, 2023 by the City Plan Commission of the City of Garland,

Texas.

______________________________

Chairman of the City Plan Commission

______________________________

Director of Planning Department

The approval of this plat is contingent upon the plat being filed with the

County Clerk of Dallas County within 180 days from the above date.

SITE

IRF = IRON ROD FOUND

= CAPPED IRON ROD SETCIRS

C

L

= CENTERLINE OF ROAD

= RIGHT-OF-WAYR.O.W.

= POINT OF BEGINNINGPOB

M.R.D.C.T.

O.P.R.D.C.T.

= MAP RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

= OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

CIRF = CAPPED IRON ROD FOUND

(CM) = CONTROLLING MONUMENT

SPACE RESERVED FOR COUNTY RECORDING LABEL

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF DALLAS

WHEREAS, DO Holdings Group LLC, is the sole owner of a 0.324 acre tract of land out of the ABNER KEEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT No. 735, situated in the City of Garland,

Dallas County, Texas and being all of that certain tract of land conveyed by the General Warranty Deed to DO Holdings Group, LLC, of record in Instrument No.

201700144167 and corrected in Instrument No. 201800257157, both of the Official Public Records of Dallas County, Texas; also being all of Lot 4, and the West 10 feet of Lot

3, in Block 29 of Town of Embree, and addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Volume 77, Page 441 of the Map

Records of Dallas County, Texas; Said 0.324 acres of land being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING, at a 1/2 inch iron rod found at the intersection of the South right-of-way line of West Avenue F (70' R.O.W.) and the East line of a 25 foot Alley of said Block 29,

being the Northwest corner of said Lot 4, said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, N89°21'31"E, along the South right-of-way line of West Avenue F, being the North lines of said Lots 3 and 4 and said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract, a distance

of 66.85 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a green plastic cap stamped “Eagle Surveying” set at the Northwest corner of that certain tract of land conveyed to Martha

F. Marek, Trustee, by deed of record in Document No. 200218302729 of said Official Public Records, being the Northeast corner of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and

hereof;

THENCE, S00°27'48"W, leaving the South right-of-way line of West Avenue F, over and across said Lot 3, along the common line of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and

said Marek tract, a distance of 133.94 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found in the North line of a 20 foot Alley of said Block 29, being the Southwest corner of said Marek tract, also

being the Southeast corner of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, S89°19'05"W, along the North line of a 20 foot Alley, being the South lines of said Lots 3 and 4, and said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract, a distance of 144.20 feet to

a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034” found at the intersection of the North line of said 20 foot Alley and the East line of said 25 foot

Alley, being the Southwest corner of said Lot 4, said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, N30°10'15"E, along the East line of said 25 foot Alley, being West line of said Lot 4, a distance of 156.04 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing an area

of 0.324 Acres, or (14,134 Square Feet) of land, more or less.

OWNER'S DEDICATION

That DO Holdings Group LLC, the owner of the property described in this plat, acting by and through its duly authorized agent, does hereby adopt this plat, designating the

property as EMBREE REPLAT PARTS OF LOTS 4 AND 3, BLOCK 29, an addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas and does hereby dedicate, in fee simple and

to the public use forever, the streets and alleys shown thereon and does further dedicate to the public use forever the easements shown thereon for the purposes indicated. All

easements dedicated by this plat shall be open to, without limitation, all public and private utilities using or desiring to use the same for the purposes dedicated. No building,

fence, tree, shrub, or other structure, improvement or growth shall be constructed, reconstructed or placed upon, over or across any easement dedicated by this plat. Any

public or private utility shall have: (1) the right to remove and keep removed all or any part of any building, fence, tree, shrub, or other structure, improvement or growth which

in any way may endanger or interfere with the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, operation or efficiency of such utility; and (2) the right of ingress and egress to or

from and upon such easements for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining and adding to, enlarging, or removing all or parts of its

operation without the necessity at any time of procuring the permission of anyone. The maintenance of paving on utility easements and fire lanes is the responsibility of the

property owner.

All utility easements dedicated by this plat shall also include an additional area of working space for construction, reconstruction, additions, enlargements, and maintenance

including such additional area necessary for installation and maintenance of manholes, cleanouts, fire hydrants, water services and wastewater services from the main to the

curb or pavement line.

WITNESS, my hand at Garland, Texas, this the __________ day of ___________, 2023.

By: __________________________ ________________________

      DANE OHLEN       Date

     ________________________________

     TITLE

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ____________ §

Before me, The undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared DANE OHLEN known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument,

and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of the office this ____________ day of __________________ 2023.

__________________________________________

Notary Public, ______________ County, Texas.

My commission expires _______________________.

SURVEYOR’S AFFIRMATION:

I, Matthew Raabe, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, licensed by the State of Texas, affirm that this plat was prepared under my direct supervision, from recorded

documentation, evidence collected on the ground during field operations and other reliable documentation; and that this plat substantially complies with the Rules and

Regulations of the Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying, Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 212, and the subdivision rules and regulations of the City of Garland,

Texas. I further affirm that monumentation shown hereon was either found or placed and is in substantial compliance with the City of Garland Development Code; and that the

digital drawing file accompanying this plat is a precise representation of this Signed Final Plat.

Dated this the _______ day of ____________________, 2023.

_____________________________________________

Matthew Raabe

Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 6402

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ____________ §

Before me, The undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared MATTHEW RAABE, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing

instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of the office this ______ day of ____________ 2023.

__________________________________________

Notary Public, Denton County, Texas.

My commission expires May 5th, 2024.

= DALLAS COUNTY CLERK INSTRUMENTINST. No.  

= VOLUMEVOL.

= PAGEPG.

= RECORD CALL  (    )   

A REPLAT OF ALL OF LOT 4

 AND A PORTION OF LOT 3, BLOCK 29,

TOWN OF EMBREE

ABNER KEEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 735,

AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF GARLAND,

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

CITY CASE NO. 190820-1

REPLAT

EMBREE REPLAT PARTS OF

LOTS 4 AND 3, BLOCK 29

LOT 4R, BLOCK 29

PRELIMINARY

this document shall not be recorded for any

purpose and shall not be used or viewed or

relied upon as a final survey document

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD LOT LINE



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 2. c.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 23-05 Embree Replat, Lot 2R, Block 28
Submitted For: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

Summary:
P 23-05  Embree Replat Lot 2R, Block 28

Attachments
Z 23-05 Embree Replat, Lot 2R, Block 28 



Planning Report 
File No: P 23-05/District 2 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REPLAT 
Embree Replat, Lot 2R, Block 28 
 
LOCATION 
617 West Avenue F  
 
ZONING 
Multi-Family (MF) District  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
One (1)  

 
ACREAGE 
0.13 acres 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant requests to establish one (1) lot of record for future development.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Replat. All technical requirements have been addressed and the plat is in 
order as submitted.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. 8x11 Plat  
 
 
PREPARED BY: REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed  Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning and Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov 
 
 
 

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


S 
SI

XT
H

 S
T

W AVENUE F

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7
M F - 1M F - 1

520
616 526

617

605

614

601
519

620 530

608

518

618

600

PLAT MAP P 23-05
¯

0 30 60 Feet
1 inch = 53 feet

617 West Avenue F

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



E

d

g

e

f

i

e

l

d

 

D

r

i

v

e

S
 
1

s
t
 
S

t

Armstron Dr

S
 
G

a
r
l
a

n
d

 
A

v
e

Joyce Dr

Morris Dr

M
a

r
i
o

n
 
D

r

L
y
n

n
 
D

r

D
e

l
m

a
r
 
D

r

S
 
3

r
d

 
S

t

S
 
5
t
h
 
S

t

P
a
r
k
w

a
y
 
D

r

S
 
1

0
t
h

 
S

t

S

 

G

l

e

n

b

r

o

o

k

 

D

r

S
 
1

2
t
h

 
S

t

M
a

r
i
o

n
 
D

r

W Avenue F

W Avenue F

W Avenue G

Edgefield Dr

M

e

l

o

d

y

 

L

n

M
u

r
r
a

y
 
D

r

James Dr

F

o

r

e

s

t
 
L

n

W

 

S

t

a

t

e

 

S

t

W Avenue B

W Avenue D

S
 
6
t
h
 
S

t

K

C

S

 

R

R

CALLED 0.129 ACRES

OSCAR A. CORPUS GALARZA

INST. No.201600184752

O.P.R.D.C.T.

O.P.R.D.C.T.

GUSTAVO ARANA

AND ALMA ARANA

INST. No.201700052627

O.P.R.D.C.T.

20' ALLEY

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

2

5

'

 

A

L

L

E

Y

V

O

L

.

 

7

7

,

 

P

G

.

 

4

4

1

M

.

R

.

D

.

C

.

T

.

LOT 2

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

S 89°23'37" W  120.33'

N
 
0
0
°
2
2
'
5
4
"
 
W

 
 
6
2
.
5
2
'

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

LOT 3

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 5R

BLOCK 27

EMBREE BLOCK 27 REPLAT

INST. No.20080196658,

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4

BLOCK 27

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 30

BLOCK 30

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 1

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

MARTHA F. MAREK, TRUSTEE

INST. No. 200218302729

D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

DO HOLDINGS GROUP,LLC

INST. No.201700144167

CORRECTED IN

INST. No. 201800257157

D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4

BLOCK 29

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

POB

1/2" CIRF

"RPLS 5034"

(CM)

CIRS

1/2" IRF

(CM)

1/2" CIRF

"RPLS 5034"

S 89°23'37" W  90.04'

N
 
0
0
°
2
2
'
5
4
"
 
W

 
 
6
2
.
4
8
'

N 89°22'20" E  90.00'

S
 
0
0
°
2
5
'
0
5
"
 
E

 
 
6
2
.
5
1
'

1/2" CIRF

"RPLS 5034"

LOT 2R

BLOCK 28

5,626 SQUARE FEET

LOT 3

BLOCK 28

TOWN OF EMBREE

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

A

B

N

E

R

 
K

E

E

N

 
S

U

R

V

E

Y

,

A

B

S

T

R

A

C

T

 
N

O

.
 
7

3

5

ABST. 735

(UNPLATTED)

IGLESIA PENTECOSTES

MONTE DE SION INC.

CALLED 2.15 ACRES

INST. No. 

O.P.R.D.C.T.

2

5

'

 

A

L

L

E

Y

V

O

L

.

 

7

7

,

 

P

G

.

 

4

4

1

M

.

R

.

D

.

C

.

T

.

WEST AVENUE F

70' R.O.W.

VOL. 77, PG. 441

M.R.D.C.T.

S
O

U
T

H
 
6
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

7
0
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.

V
O

L
.
 
7
7
,
 
P

G
.
 
4
4
1

M
.
R

.
D

.
C

.
T

.

C

L

3
5
'

3
5
'

35'

35'

N:7018037.33

E:2539813.65

N:7018038.28

E:2539903.69

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

1/2" CIRF

"RPLS 5034"

(CM)

0.129 ACRES

DO HOLDINGS GROUP,LLC

INST. No.201700148210

(90')

(46')

1

4

5

'

LOT 2, BLOCK 1

SIXTH STREET HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

INST. NO. 202000136230

O.P.R.D.C.T.

(
D

E
E

D
 
L
I
N

E
)

(125.64')

(

6

5

.

4

3

'

)

(
5
5
'
)

(66.76')

(55')

(65')

(65')

(65')

(65')

(65')

(60')

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

(
1
2
5
'
)

LOT 1, BLOCK 1

SIXTH STREET HABITAT FOR HUMANITY

INST. NO. 202000136230

O.P.R.D.C.T.

(
6
2
.
5
'
)

15 FOOT CITY UTILITY EASEMENT

INST. NO. 202000136230

O.P.R.D.C.T.

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

N OWNER'S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF DALLAS

WHEREAS, DO Holdings Group LLC, is the sole owner of a 0.129 acres of land out of the ABNER KEEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT No. 735, situated in the City of Garland,

Dallas County, Texas and being all of that certain tract of land conveyed by the General Warranty Deed to DO Holdings Group, LLC, of record in Document No.

201700148210 of the Official Public Records of Dallas County, Texas; also being the South 1/2 of Lot 2, and the South 1/2 of the East 1/2 of Lot 3, in Block 28 of Town of

Embree, and addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas, according to the Plat thereof recorded in Volume 77, Page 441 of the Map Records of Dallas County,

Texas; Said 0.129 acres of land being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING, at a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034” found at the intersection of the North right-of-way line of West Avenue

F (70' R.O.W.) and the West right-of-way line of South 6th Street (70' R.O.W.), being the Southeast corner of said Lot 2, said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, S 89°23'37" W, along the North right-of-way line of West Avenue F, being the South lines of said Lots 2 and 3 and said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract, a

distance of 90.04 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a green plastic cap stamped “EAGLE SURVEYING” set at the Southeast corner of that certain tract of land conveyed to

Gustavo Arana and Alma Arana by deed of record in Document No. 201700052627 of said Official Public Records, being the Southwest corner of said DO Holdings Group,

LLC tract and hereof, from which a 1/2 inch capped iron rod stamped “R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034” found at the intersection of the North right-of-way line of West Avenue F and

the East line of a 25 foot wide Alley of record in said Town of Embree, being the Southwest corner of Lot 4 of said Block 28, Town of Embree and said Arana tract bears S

89°23'37" W, a distance of 120.33 feet;

THENCE, N 00°22'54" W, leaving the North right-of-way line of West Avenue F, over and across said Lot 3, along the common line of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract

and said Arana tract, a distance of 62.48 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with a yellow plastic cap stamped “R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034” found at the Southwest corner of a

called 0.129 acre tract of land conveyed to Oscar A. Corpus Galarza by deed of record in Document No. 201600184752 of said Official Public Records, being the

Northwest corner of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, N 89°22'20" E, leaving the East line of said Arana tract, over and across said Lots 2 and 3, along the common line of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and

said 0.129 acre tract, a distance of 90.00 feet to 1/2 inch iron rod found in the West right-of-way line of South 6th Street, being the East line of said Lot 2, also being the

Southeast corner of said 0.129 acre tract, also being the Northeast corner of said DO Holdings Group, LLC tract and hereof;

THENCE, S 00°25'05" E, along the West right-of-way line of South 6th Street, being the East line of said Lot 2, a distance of 62.51 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and

containing an area of 0.129 Acres, or (5,626 Square Feet) of land, more or less.

OWNER'S DEDICATION

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS:

That DO Holdings Group LLC, the owner of the property described in this plat, acting by and through its duly authorized agent, does hereby adopt this plat, designating

the property as EMBREE REPLAT PARTS OF LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 28, an addition to the City of Garland, Dallas County, Texas and does hereby dedicate, in fee

simple and to the public use forever, the streets and alleys shown thereon and does further dedicate to the public use forever the easements shown thereon for the

purposes indicated. All easements dedicated by this plat shall be open to, without limitation, all public and private utilities using or desiring to use the same for the

purposes dedicated. No building, fence, tree, shrub, or other structure, improvement or growth shall be constructed, reconstructed or placed upon, over or across any

easement dedicated by this plat. Any public or private utility shall have: (1) the right to remove and keep removed all or any part of any building, fence, tree, shrub, or other

structure, improvement or growth which in any way may endanger or interfere with the construction, reconstruction, maintenance, operation or efficiency of such utility; and

(2) the right of ingress and egress to or from and upon such easements for the purpose of constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining and adding to,

enlarging, or removing all or parts of its operation without the necessity at any time of procuring the permission of anyone. The maintenance of paving on utility easements

and fire lanes is the responsibility of the property owner.

All utility easements dedicated by this plat shall also include an additional area of working space for construction, reconstruction, additions, enlargements, and

maintenance including such additional area necessary for installation and maintenance of manholes, cleanouts, fire hydrants, water services and wastewater services from

the main to the curb or pavement line.

WITNESS, my hand at Garland, Texas, this the __________ day of ___________, 2023.

By: __________________________ ________________________

      DANE OHLEN       Date

     ________________________________

     TITLE

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ____________ §

Before me, The undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared DANE OHLEN known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing

instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of the office this ____________ day of __________________ 2023.

__________________________________________

Notary Public, ______________ County, Texas.

My commission expires _______________________.

SURVEYOR’S AFFIRMATION:

I, Matthew Raabe, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor, licensed by the State of Texas, affirm that this plat was prepared under my direct supervision, from recorded

documentation, evidence collected on the ground during field operations and other reliable documentation; and that this plat substantially complies with the Rules and

Regulations of the Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying, Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 212, and the subdivision rules and regulations of the City of

Garland, Texas. I further affirm that monumentation shown hereon was either found or placed and is in substantial compliance with the City of Garland Development Code;

and that the digital drawing file accompanying this plat is a precise representation of this Signed Final Plat.

Dated this the _______ day of ____________________, 2023.

_____________________________________________

Matthew Raabe

Texas Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 6402

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ____________ §

Before me, The undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared MATTHEW RAABE, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing

instrument, and acknowledged to me that they executed the same for the purposes and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated.

Given under my hand and seal of the office this ______ day of ____________ 2023.

__________________________________________

Notary Public, Denton County, Texas.

My commission expires May 5th, 2024.

GENERAL PLAT NOTES

1. All interior property corners are marked with a 1/2" iron rod with a

green plastic cap stamped "Eagle Surveying" set (CIRS) unless

otherwise noted.

2. The purpose of this plat is to create one lot of record from a portion

of two existing lots of record.

3. Coordinates and bearings shown hereon are on grid, are not scaled,

and are tied to the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, (NAD83(2011),

North Central Zone (4202) based on GPS observations utilizing the

AllTerra RTK Network.

4. Selling a portion of this addition by Metes and Bounds is a violation

of City of Garland Development Code and is subject to withholding of

utilities and building permits.

5. Property owners of corner lots shall maintain sight visibility triangles

in accordance with Chapter Eight of the Technical Standards Manual

of the City of Garland, Texas.

1" = 20'
0 2010

APPROVAL BLOCK

Approved and accepted for the City of Garland this ___________ day of

____________, 2023 by the City Plan Commission of the City of Garland,

Texas.

______________________________

Chairman of the City Plan Commission

______________________________

Director of Planning

The approval of this plat is contingent upon the plat being filed with the

County Clerk of Dallas County within 180 days from the above date.

SITE

A REPLAT OF A PORTION OF LOT 2

 AND A PORTION OF LOT 3, BLOCK 28,

TOWN OF EMBREE

ABNER KEEN SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 735,

AN ADDITION TO THE CITY OF GARLAND,

DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

CITY CASE NO. 190820-2

REPLAT

EMBREE REPLAT PARTS OF

LOTS 2 AND 3, BLOCK 28

LOT 2R, BLOCK 28

EAGLE SURVEYING, LLC

222 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE: 200

DENTON, TX  76201

940.222.3009

TX FIRM # 10194177

JOB #: 18-08-72

DATE: 01/28/2023

DRAWN BY: CF/BE

EAGLE SURVEYING, LLC

222 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE: 200

DENTON, TX  76201

940.222.3009

SURVEYOR OWNER

DO Holdings Group LLC

407 Valley Glen Dr

Richardson,Texas 75080

214-929-7611

SPACE RESERVED FOR COUNTY RECORDING LABEL

IRF = IRON ROD FOUND

= CAPPED IRON ROD STAMPEDCIRS

C

L

= CENTERLINE OF ROAD

= RIGHT-OF-WAYR.O.W.

= POINT OF BEGINNINGPOB

M.R.D.C.T.

O.P.R.D.C.T.

= MAP RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

= OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS

CIRF = CAPPED IRON ROD FOUND

(CM) = CONTROLLING MONUMENT

=  DALLAS COUNTY CLERK INSTRUMENTINST. No.  

= VOLUMEVOL.

= PAGEPG.

= RECORD CALL  (    )   

LEGEND

"EAGLE SURVEYING" SET

PRELIMINARY

this document shall not be recorded for any

purpose and shall not be used or viewed or

relied upon as a final survey document

AutoCAD SHX Text
201800295958 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT LINE



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. a.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering - Planned Development (District 7)

Summary:
Consider of the application of Kirkman Engineering, requesting approval of  a Change in
Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned Development (PD) District for
Single-Family Attached Uses. This property is located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road.
(District 7)
(File Z 22-65 - Zoning)

Attachments
Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Report and Attachments (PD) 
Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-65/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached Uses and 2) an Alley Waiver. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for Single-Family Attached (SFA) development. 
 
 
LOCATION 
2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road 
 
APPLICANT 
Kirkman Engineering 
 
OWNER 
Seven Investments 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant proposes to construct fifty-five (55) townhouses and three (3) HOA open 
space lots. The subject property is currently unimproved. 
 
SITE DATA 
The  subject property contains approximately 4.87 acres and has approximately 1,211 linear 
feet of frontage along Arapaho Road, 312 linear feet of frontage along Galaxie Road and 233 
linear feet of frontage along Callejo Road. 

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Single-Family Attached (SFA) District. The Single-
Family Attached District is intended to promote stable, quality, attached-occupancy 
residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and sustainable neighborhoods. 
This district may be included within certain areas of neighborhoods or, when in accordance 
with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may provide a transition district between lower 
density residential areas, multifamily or nonresidential areas, or major thoroughfares. 
 
The applicant requests to make some modifications to the Single-Family Attached District 
requirements.  
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Detail Plan  
1. The applicant proposes a Detail Plan for a development of fifty-five (55) townhouses and 

three (3) HOA lots. In addition, the applicant is proposing 11.9 units per acre, therefore 
meeting the SFA GDC requirement.  
 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 
2. The applicant requests to deviate from some of the required SFA District development 

standards per Section 2.34 (Table 2-3) of the Garland Development Code (GDC). The 
table below indicates the deviations proposed. It should be noted that the proposal will 
meet the minimum dwelling size requirement (1,400 sf) per the GDC. 
 
Development 
Standards  

Required  Proposed (Minimum) Justification 

Lot Area  Minimum 2,000 SF  Minimum 1,500 SF The minimum lot area 
is being reduced to 
allow for the requested 
reduction in the lot 
depth listed. 
 

Lot Depth  Minimum 90 feet Minimum 60 feet The overall tract 
geometry, and 
incorporating 
necessary 
infrastructure, creates 
constraints of the lot 
impacting the lot 
depths. The proposed 
depths will improve the 
compatibility of the 
proposed development 
with the existing 
neighborhood to the 
north as well as bring 
great look to the area.  
 

Landscaping At least one tree is 
required for each 
townhouse unit and 
must be placed 
either on that lot or 
within fifty feet of 
that unit. For each 
townhouse structure, 
at least fifty percent 
of the required trees 
must be large 
canopy trees. The 
remainder of the 
required trees may 
be small ornamental 
trees. 
 

Only small ornamental 
trees are proposed for 
each lot or within fifty 
feet of that unit. 
 
Large canopy trees are 
proposed in the larger 
common open space 
areas, as well as along 
Arapaho Road. 
 
 
  

The reduced depth of 
theses lots still allow 
for small green spaces 
for each lot; however, 
the applicant would like 
to relocate these 
required large canopy 
trees to the larger 
common open spaces 
instead of these small 
green spaces to allow 
the trees to reach full 
maturity and allow a 
more manageable 
space for franchise 
utility placement and 
maintenance. 
 

Alleys Alleys are required Not provided The size of the site 
makes it difficult to 
accommodate the 
alley. The garages and 
driveways will be in the 
front of the buildings 



Page 3 of 5 
 

and will be serviced by 
the public street.  

   
 
Screening and Landscaping  
 
3. The proposed landscape layout (Exhibit D) complies with the applicable screening 

standards. Per the GDC, a screening wall is required along a thoroughfare Type “D” or 
greater. Arapaho Road is considered to be greater than Type “D”; therefore, a five (5)-
foot ornamental fence with masonry columns and applicable vegetation is required along 
Arapaho Road and the landscape plan reflects the ornamental fence with masonry 
columns. The large canopy trees and screening shrubs are on the street-side of the 
fence to provide more coverage. Screening and fencing is not required along Callejo 
Road and Galaxie Road. However, the landscape plan reflects a board-on-board fence 
along the northern perimeter line and an ornamental fence along Callejo Road and a 
portion of Galaxie Road.  
 
The GDC requires at least one tree is required for each townhouse unit and must be 
placed either on that lot or within fifty feet of that unit. For each townhouse structure, at 
least fifty percent of the required trees must be large canopy trees. The remainder of 
the required trees may be small ornamental trees. The landscape plan (Exhibit D) shows 
all small ornamental trees either on a lot or within fifty (50) feet of that lot.  
 

4. Amenities 
 
     Common open space area is included with the proposed development in accordance with 

the GDC. The amenity requirements of the Single-Family Attached (SFA) District per the 
GDC are satisfied. Amenities include a gazebo and playground equipment.  

 
 
5. Parking 

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the required enclosed garages spaces and guest 
parking per the GDC. 
 

6. Garage 
The GDC requires the face of a garage door to be at least twenty (20) feet from the 
street or alley right-of-way line that the garage door faces (twenty-four feet if facing an 
interior lot/property line), and must have at least one of the following designs, as 
depicted in Illustrations 4-9 through 4-13: 

• Rear entry; 

• “J” drives, for front entry properties; 

• “Swing” drives, for side entry properties; or 

• Offset front entry with the garage door set back at least five feet behind the front 
building face. 
 
The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects front-entry garages with an offset. 
 
 

7. Building Design 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

The building elevations complies with the articulation and architectural elements 
requirements per the GDC.  

 
 

Signage 
8. The applicant has not requested any deviation on signage; it will comply with the 

standards in the GDC. 
 

 
      Alley Waiver 
9. The residential lots within the residential development would front a fifty (50) foot right-

of-way with access to each lot limited to the street front. The applicant seeks an Alley 
Waiver from the Plan Commission for this development. Section 3.80 of the GDC 
requires every lot in a residential subdivision with two or more lots to be served by an 
alley at the rear, or, if a corner lot, at the rear or one side. Alleys are utilized to facilitate 
drainage for the subdivision development, provide an area for the placement of utilities, 
and to provide rear access to a single-family lot. As reflected on the Detail Plan, alleys 
are not proposed for this development, as all lots would have front vehicular access only 
and utilities and drainage would be provided through easements. The Engineering 
Department has reviewed the plans and has indicated the layout is conducive to 
providing adequate drainage while meeting the City’s requirements.  

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Compact 
Neighborhoods. 
 
Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, 
including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing 
options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns. 
These areas provide transitions between traditional residential neighborhoods and higher 
density residential neighborhoods and non-residential developments. These areas 
accommodate uses such as convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public 
services. The architectural character and scale of these areas are compatible with adjacent 
residential development. 
 
This proposed use is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; these properties are 
developed with single-family homes. The property to the east, across Callejo Road, is zoned 
Single-Family Attached (SFA) District; it is currently unimproved. The properties to the 
south, across Arapaho Road, are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District and are developed 
with single-family homes. The property to the west, across Galaxie Road, is zoned 
Community Retail (CR) District; it is developed with retail uses. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached Uses and 2) an Alley Waiver. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for Single-Family Attached (SFA) development. 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD Conditions 
iii. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


2930 2922 2914 2906 2830 2822 2814 2806

30013013
3009 300530173021

2930 2926 2922 2918 2914 2910 2906 2902 2830 2822 2814 2810 2806 2802
2826 28183014

3010
3006

3002

3010 3006 3002

2826

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

ARAPAHO RD

C
R

O
W

N
 C

IR

D
R

AW
BR

ID
G

E 
LN

LA
R

G
O

 T
R

L

C
ALLEJO

 R
D

BOTELLO RD

FRIAR LN

NOBLE LN

TEAKWOOD DR

RIPPLEWOOD DR

CHARIOT LN

LANCER LN

S  1 6 - 2 5S  1 6 - 2 5
C RC R

P DP D
9 9 - 1 49 9 - 1 4

S F AS F A

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

A GA G

S F AS F A

5005

2509

2502

29212925

2922
28142910

2821

2918

28172829

2829

2926

2805

2921
2725

2918

5006

2501

2705

2813

2905

2825

2914

2917

3018

3029

2722

5010

2809

2718

2517

2730

2901

3015

28172901

2521

2917
2729

3021

2525

2902
5013

2806 2802

5001

2925

2801

2805

2713
2909

2505

2822

2809

2818

2902

28132825

2913

2718

2733

5009

2905

2926

2906

2709

2821

2913

2714

2714

2826

2802

2830

2721 2717

5002

2930

2513

2710

2801

28102818 2726

2929

3014

28102910

5006

5001

2929

2710

2909

2901

2801

2701
3011

ZONING MAP Z 22-65
¯

0 140 280 Feet
1 inch = 211 feet

2801 & 2901 Arapaho Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 
 

 
PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS 

 
ZONING FILE Z 22-65 

 
2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned 

Development is to approve a Detail Plan for fifty-five 
(55) Single-Family Attached (Townhouse) and three (3) 
HOA lots. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not 

affect any regulation found in the Garland Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, and Single-Family-Attached 
(SFA) District, as amended prior to adoption of this 
ordinance, except as specifically provided herein. 

 
III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Single-

Family-Attached(SFA) District as set forth in Chapter 2 
of the Garland Development Code included by reference 
and shall apply, except as otherwise specified by this 
ordinance. 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 

Detail Plan: Development shall conform to the Site Plan 
and Landscape Plan set forth in Exhibit C, Exhibit D, 
and Exhibit E; however, in the event of conflict between 
the Detail Plan and the written conditions contained in 
this ordinance, the written conditions shall control. 

 
V. Specific Conditions: 
 

A. Permitted Uses: Only Dwelling, Single-Family-Attached 
(SFA) units are permitted. 
 

B. Maximum Number of Lots: A total of fifty-five (55) 
single-family attached units shall be permitted.  
 

C. Minimum Lot Area: The minimum lot area shall be 1,500 
square feet and as reflected in Exhibit C.  

 
D. Minimum Lot Depth: The minimum lot depth shall be 

sixty (60) feet and the lot depth is measured between 
the lot lines. 

 
E. Minimum Dwelling Size: The minimum dwelling size shall 

be 1,400 square feet.  
 



 

EXHIBIT B 

 
F. Alleys: Alleys shall not be required for this 

development 
 

G. Screening and Landscaping: Screening and landscaping 
shall be in conformance with the Landscape Plan set 
forth in Exhibit D. 

 
H. Open Space and Amenities:  Open Space and Amenities 

shall be provided as shown in Exhibit D. 
 

I. Signage: All signs shall meet the Garland Development 
Code requirements.  

 
J. Elevations: Building Elevations shall be in general 

conformance with the elevations labeled Exhibit E. 
 

K. Homeowners Association: A Homeowners Association 
shall be incorporated, and each lot/homeowner shall 
be a mandatory member. The bylaws and/or declaration 
of this association shall establish a system of 
payment of dues; a system of enforcement of its rules 
and regulations; shall establish a clear and distinct 
definition of the responsibility of each member; shall 
obligate the association, through assessment of 
homeowners, to maintain all open space areas; and 
other provisions as deemed appropriate to secure a 
sound and stable association.   
 

L. Maintenance of Open/Common Space and Landscaped Areas, 
Entry Features, Access Easements, and Amenities in HOA 
Lots: Pursuant to the declaration for the Homeowner’s 
Association, the Homeowners Association shall be 
obligated to repair and maintain all common areas of 
the community (including open/common space, 
landscaped areas, entry features, access easements, 
and amenities in HOA lots) and the bylaws and/or 
declaration for the association shall authorize the 
association to pay for the cost thereof through the 
assessment of homeowners within the community. 

 
M. Required Assessments and Reserves: The declaration for  

the Homeowner’s Association shall provide that each 
homeowner owning a real property interest in a 
residential lot within the community land shall be 
obligated to pay assessments to the Homeowners      
Association to pay for the operation and common 



 

EXHIBIT B 

expenses of the association, including, without  
limitation, the repair and maintenance of association  
common areas, including repairing, maintaining or 
replacing the association screening walls and 
perimeter fences. If the Homeowners Association fails  
to perform the above-described maintenance due to lack 
of funds, the Homeowners Association shall assess 
members on a pro rata basis for the cost of performing  
such maintenance and shall thereafter promptly and 
diligently perform the maintenance required. To help        
ensure that funds will be available to perform such 
maintenance, the Homeowners Association shall 
establish and maintain a reserve fund for the periodic      
maintenance, repair and replacement of association 
improvements, which shall include adequate reserves 
for the expected future costs to repair, maintain and 
replace association screening walls and perimeter 
fences. 
 

N. City’s Right to Enforce: The declaration for the 
Homeowner’s Association shall contain a provision 
stating that if the Homeowner’s Association fails to  
maintain an association screening wall or perimeter 
fence in good repair, then the City may send written  
notice to the Homeowner’s Association demanding the 
proper repair and maintenance of such screening wall  
or  perimeter  fence. If the Homeowner’s Association 
has not repaired or replaced such screening wall or 
perimeter fence within 120 days after the date of the  
City’s written notice to the Homeowner’s Association,  
the City shall have the right, but not the obligation, 
to exercise all access easements and other rights of 
the Homeowners Association to repair and/or replace, 
as necessary, such screening wall or perimeter fence 
and to charge all reasonable costs incurred therefor 
to the Homeowners Association. The Homeowner’s 
Association shall promptly pay such costs to the City  
upon completion of the repairs and/or replacement upon 
written demand by the City. If the reserves required 
by these conditions and the declaration are not 
sufficient to fully reimburse the City, the 
Homeowner’s Association shall assess its members for 
the funds necessary to fully reimburse the City and 
to re-establish its required reserves. Such provision 
in the declaration for the Homeowner’s Association 
shall further state that such provision may not be 
amended or modified without the prior written consent 



 

EXHIBIT B 

of the City. 
 

 
 

 



   
 

               

        Z 22-65 
 

  

View of the subject property  West of the subject property 

 

 

 

 

 North of the subject property  
 
 
 
 

South of the subject property  



1--- - - - NOBLE LN-----1 

3 
w 
(!) 
0 

~==:;:===~===~===~===::::; ir ! 
0 

1--- --- FRIAR LN - - -----j 

5013 

5009 

5005 

5001 

0 
Q'. 
w 

~ 
[ I I I I lJ?I I I I LL_I l-t----_ 

2926 2918 2910 2902 

2929 2925 2921 2917 2913 2909 2905 * 2829 

282 

2825 2821 2817 2813 2809 2805 

2802 

2801 
~ r 

t 
~ 

2 

~ 
13 -----------,--------- ·· ·-LANCER LN - - ------ -----------------1 

5006 

3029 

0 
I 

3021 
3015 

3011 

140 
I 

3009\3005 I 3001 
1013 ' 

280 Feet 
I 1 inch= 211 feet 

2918 \291 4\2910\2906\2902 1M oi \2822 \ I 281J2a10\ 2806 \ 2802 
~" 2826 2818 

___ _,_ ________ ARAPAHO RD-----------------...1. __ 2701 

l_J....1-_ 13_._\ 2_909 \2905 \2901 \2829 \2825\ 2821 1281 7I 2813\2809\2805 \2801 \2733 12729 /27 

s _F _:_? _---TEAKWOOD DR------ ------

283Q 2~~ 2822I 281 ~ 281 

RIPPLEWOOD DR 

ZONING MAP Z 22-65 Ill INDICATES AREA O INDICATES 
OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

2801 & 2901 Arapaho Road 



Zoning Response Case Comments 
Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Mya grochal 

2/9/2023 
3:32:24 PM 

James Bolin 

2/9/2023 
2:00:59 AM 

Lindsay 

2/8/2023 
6:30:23 PM 

PC Hearing Date 

Februa1·y 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Z 22-65 Ki1·kman Engineering. The applicant requests approval of fifty-five (55) 
townhouses . The site is currently zoned to allow townhouses; however , the 
applicant requests modifications from the Gai·land Development Code. The site 
is located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road. (District 7) 

Against 

800 west renner 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

Against 

2901 Lancer Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Outside the Notification Area 

bolin 1320@aol.com 

214-605-2517 

55 townhomes will increase already congested traffic on Arapaho and side 
streets as commuters will navigate neighborhoods not intended for through 
traffic. This presents increased congestion and pollution. It also presents a 
safety risk to current residents in the surrounding area. Townhomes this 
close in the vicinity to the neighboring single family homes will unfairly 
decrease property values of existing homeowners. Removal of the green 
area will increase pollution in the immediate vicinity .. 

Against 

2621 lvanridge Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Outside the Notific-atlon Area 

Page 1 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Vanessa 
Salazar-Sowell 
2/8/2023 
4:50:09 AM 

Omar Buhidma 

2/7/2023 
9:34:53 PM 

Allison Drake 

2/7/2023 
9:29:35 PM 

Susan Nye 

2/7/2023 
8:46:09 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Against 

3214 Heathercrest Dr 

Garland 

Outside the Notific~tion Area 

vys.sowell@gmail.com 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

For 

1607 University Drive 

Richardson 

TX 
United States 

75081 

2146828701 

Outside the Notification Area 

citizen@buhidma.net 

5128432437 

Always happy to welcome new neighbors! 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

6102 Shattuck drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

I would be for if there were less homes. 55 seems like a lot for that parcel of 
land. 

Against Outside the Notification Arna 

3442 King Arthur Drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

Page 2 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Christine 
Richey 

2/7/2023 
8:12:45 PM 

Lake Harsaran 

2/7/2023 
7:44:02 PM 

Pat Gryn 

2/7/2023 
7:19:14 PM 

Jean klimiuk 

2/7/2023 
7:10:15 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

<null> 

Against 

5533 Excalibur Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Outside the Notification Area 

Christinesrichey@gmail.com 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2305 Jamaica Pl 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

The traffic is already HORRIBLE there. Think about two cars times 55 
homes more. Please think about us who live here and have to use that road. 

Against 

2825 Ursa Cir 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

To much traffic 

Against 

2826 teakwood dr 

Garland 

Texas 

Outside the Nntificatirm Area 

seniorlady@verizin.net 

214-641-5717 

Page 3 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Na 

2/7/2023 
6:33:02 PM 

Georgia V 

2/7/2023 
6:28:16 PM 

Mike McClure 

2/7/2023 
6:23:00 PM 

L Ferguson 

2/7/2023 
5:47:02 PM 

PC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3213 Noble Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2702 Phillips Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

5402 Castleview Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

For Outside the Notification Area 

2502 Westbank Trail 

Garland 

Page 4 of 10 

P lanner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Duran Hovland 

2/7/2023 
4:06:45 PM 

Lynda Stevens 

2/7/2023 
3:59:39 PM 

Patricia Keller 

2/7/2023 
3:55:13 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

F ebr uary 13, 2023 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

It's great to see development in Garland. Looking forward to seeing this 
come to fruition. 

Against 

3002 TEAKWOOD DR 

GARLAND 

TX 
United States 

75044 

dmandallas2004@yahoo.com 

AGAINST Outside the Notification Area 

2214 Jasmine Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

We do not want this! 

lgstevens 1 @verizon.net 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3409 Altair Dr pmb0417@sbcglobal.net 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

956-371-0373 

Another multi-family complex equates to more traffic, more congestion, more 
of a drain on public resources and possibly more crime should the 
town homes transition to rentals. I cannot support this zoning change. I am 
not able to attend the meeting on February 13, but would voice my 
objections if I were able to be there. 

Page 5 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Karen Brack 

2/7/2023 
3:52:43 PM 

C. Holiwell 

2/7/2023 
2:55:21 PM 

C. Holiwell 

217/2023 
2:55:19 PM 

Lee Yeung 

2/7/2023 
4:31 :13 AM 

P C Hea ring Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2417 Centaurus Drive 

Garland 

TX 
United States 

75044 

kwbrack 18@gmail.com 

2144771151 

That's too many homes! The roads are already too congested 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

5406 Kirkridge Place 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

cherylmagee64@gmail.com 

2145633103 

Against Outside the Notifrc::Jtion Area 

5406 Kirkridge Place 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

cherylmagee64@gmail.com 

2145633103 

Against 

Camelot 

Garland 

Texas 

Outside the Notification Area 

United States 

<null> 

Proposed townhomes are 3 stories. Backyard privacy concerns. 

Page 6 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Marina 

217/2023 
4:30:52 AM 

Sandra Knauf 

217/2023 
4:07:15 AM 

Alma Maricic 

217/2023 
2:14:16 AM 

Jay Pecheux 

2/7/2023 
1:37:05 AM 

PC Hearing Da te CC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 March 7, 2023 

Against 

Chariot Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

Against 
Outside the Notification Area 

3504 Taurus Drive sandy.knauf@gmail.com 

Garland 

TX 
United States 

75044 

2147381406 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

This will negatively impact current traffic issues in the area. 

Against 

2830 Lancer In 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

almamaricic@yahoo.com 

Against Outside the Notificati0n Area 

2929 Holy Cross Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Page 7 of 10 

jaypecheux@gmail.com 

8324777472 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Jay Pecheux 

2/7/2023 
1:37:03 AM 

Stacy Morris 

2/6/2023 
3:42:34 AM 

Debra Segal 

2/5/2023 
2:12:53 PM 

Samantha Head 

2/5/2023 
2:33:54 AM 

PC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

It's single homes all around .. that doens't make sense to put townhomes 
there. 

Against 
Outside the Not"icatinn Area 

2929 Holy Cross Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

jaypecheux@gmail.com 

8324777472 

It's single homes all around .. that doens't make sense to put townhomes 
there. 

Against Outside the N:)tification Area 

3102 Castle Rock Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

stacymorris87@gmail.com 

Garland does not need any more multi family housing units the the Arapaho 
area. 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2922 Royalty Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

deb.seg.will@gmail.com 

4698658942 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2705 Hazelwood 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

Page 8 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Mary 
Henderson 
2/5/2023 
2:07:56 AM 

S Southward 

2/5/2023 
1:03:18AM 

Jennifer Hunter 

2/5/2023 
12:55:55 AM 

Rochelle Ran 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

55 homes in that small of a space is not reasonable. It will overcrowd the 
area. 

Against Outside th N . . 
e ot1ficat1on Area 

7509 Wellesley Ave Henderson.Mary.l@gmail.com 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Townhomes in this area will further stress infrastructure and increase 
populations in local schools that are already stretched 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3214 Christie 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

5001 Drawbridge Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

jenniferhunter14@gmail.com 

8176148206 

This is a ridiculous plan. The space is too small, for starters. With the 
economy the way that it is and people already struggling, it makes absolutely 
no sense whatsoever to add something to the neighborhood that would 
make property taxes rise. It would make MORE sense for this developer to 
buy property that needs a facelift and leave some green spaces for our 
community. The amount of wildlife being run out of the area is staggering. Do 
better, City of Garland. 

Against 

Page 9 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

2/4/2023 
9:57:57 PM 

P C Heai-ing Date 

F ebruary 13, 2023 

2918 Teakwood Drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

Mai·ch 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Rochelletrachier@gmail.com 

I am against townhomes in any capacity. We have already destroyed so 
much blackland prairie. 

Page 10 of 10 



Comment Form 
Case Z 22-65 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. The applicant requests approval of fifty-five (55) townhouses. 
The site is currently zoned to allow townhouses; however, the applicant requests 
modifications from the Garland Development Code. The site is located at 2801 and 2901 
Arapaho Road. (District 7) 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. El solicitante solicita la aprobaci6n de cincuenta y cinco (55) 
casas adosadas. El sitio actualmente esta dividido en zonas para permltir casas adosadas; 
sin embargo, el solicitante solicita modificaciones del C6digo de Desarrollo de Garland. El 
sitio esta ubicado en 2801 y 2901 Arapaho Road. (Distrito 7) 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. Ngu,ai n9p do,n yeu cau phe duytt nam mu,o,i lam (55) can nha 
pho. f>ja di6m hitn dang dlJ'Q'C khoanh vun9 dit cho phep xay di,ng nha pho; tuy nhien, nglJ'ai 
n9p d0'n yeu c4u sll'a d6i 89 lutt Phat trien Garland. Dja diltm nay t9a lfc t~i 2801 va 2901 
Arapaho Road. (Qu,n 7) ' ' 

Please Check One Below / Marque uno a continuaci6n / Vui long kiim tra m9t ben dl.1'6'i 

D For / A Favor / Bung 

Against I En Contra / Khong 
Please complete the folio · g information and email the form to Planning@qarlandtx.gov; deliver to the Planning 
Department at 800 Main treet Garland, TX; or mail to City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Por favor Complete la siguiente informaci6n y envie el formulario por correo electr6nico 
a Planning@garlandtx.gov; entregar al Departamento de Planificaci6n en 800 Main Street Garland, TX; o envielo 
por correo a City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Vui long dien day du 
thong tin sau va g(pi biltu mau qua email t6'i ,Planning@garlandtx.gov; giao cho Phong Ke hotch l\li 800 Main Street 
Garland, TX; hoic gLPi thu, den Thanh ph6 Garland, Sa Ke hotch, P.O. H9p 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002. 

~ £(W1dwz_ 
Printed Name & Title I Nombre lmpreso y Titulo I Ten in va Tieu d~ 
(Property Owner, Business Owner, Tenant, etc.) I (Dueno de la propiedad, Dueno de la empress, lnquilino, etc.) I (Chu so hiiu bat dong san, Chu doanh 
nghi~p, Ngwi thue, v. v.) 

. . ~ .. 

3010 Lgw « ilr'" 
Your Property Address/ La direcci6n de su propiedad I dja chi_tai san 

City, State I Estado de la Ciudad / Thanh bang 

Signature I Fi / Ch 0, ky Date / Fecha / N y 
(Providing email d ess and phone number is optional. I La direcci6n de correo electr6nico y el numero de telefono son opcionales. / Oja chi 
email va s6 di~n t ~i la tuy chQn.) 



Comment Form Continued -
Case Z 22-65 

The statements below reflect my (our) opinion regarding the proposed request(s). 
Las declaraciones a continuaci6n reflejan mi (nuestra) opinion con respecto a 
las solicitudes propuestas. 

Cac tuyen b6 dlJ'&i day phan anh quan di~m cua toi (ch(mg toi) v~ (cac) yeu 
c~u dlJ'Q'C a~ xu~t 





Monthly Newsletter of the Camelot Neighborhood Association, Inc.                          FEBRUARY 2023 

  

The Knightly News 

 

 

 

Guardrail saves the day again… 

and again 

By Peggy Sorrentino, Civic Interest Chair 

On April 29, 2009, when a 
car crashed from Arapaho 
and destroyed two of my 
neighbors’ backyards and 
fences, just missing one of 
my neighbors, I decided to 
do some investigating. I 
knocked on neighbors’ 
doors and discovered these crashes had been increasing 
over the years as traffic increased.  

One of the people I met, Dawn, a fellow cat lover who 
lived at 3102 Brook Glen, had already had her fence  
destroyed three times by cars crashing into her fence and 
yard from Arapaho. She helped me in my three-year  
campaign to get the city to put up a guardrail to protect us. 
The guardrail was completed in 2012, and protects about 
seventy homes in the area. Sadly, Dawn is no longer with 
us.  

For the third time I know of 
since 2012, the guardrail  
prevented a car from destroy-
ing a homeowner’s fence or 
worse, this time at Dawn’s 
former home. This crash  
occurred in December 2022, 

and the city sent a crew to do 
a full repair of the guardrail 
on January 5, 2023. Another 
car crash happened on Janu-
ary 9, in exactly the same 
spot, looking more severe as 
the rail was bent, and multiple 
posts are missing.  

Now the city has to fix it again, but at least the homeown-
er’s fence, pets, or people who might have been in the 
way with no guardrail are okay.  

President’s Corner 

By Joe Thomas 

This month brings more news on the development 
front near Camelot. I got a call from one of the  
managers at Callejo Commercial Properties. (You’ve 
probably seen their sign in the vacant area behind the 
Murphy Gas station.) He told me they have finalized 
deals with two companies to build on that property. 

First is a new coffee chain called Dutch 
Brothers Coffee that came to Texas for 
the first time in 2021. Based in Oregon, 
they have a great story. See it at their 
website. https://www.dutchbros.com/ 

The other is a store you might already 
be familiar with – Sprouts Farmers 
Market. They are well known for their 
fresh produce and other higher end 
foodstuffs. https://www.sprouts.com/ 

On the east side of Shiloh a few blocks north  
of Arapaho, the progress on the new professional  
offices is coming along pretty quickly. Those will  
be occupied by doctors, dentists, and perhaps a law 
office or other professions like this. I do like that 
these are being built with a similar style to the other 
houses in the area so they won’t stick out like a boxy 
office building. 

After that Christmas freeze, we have had a pretty 
mild winter. Let’s hope that continues through  
February. 

Thanks again for supporting your neighborhood! 

    Joe 



 

The Knightly News 
is published monthly by the 

 

Camelot 
Neighborhood Association 

 

P. O. Box 452631 
Garland, TX 75045-2631 

 

 

Important Phone Numbers 
 

Police, Fire, Ambulance 
  Emergency          911 

 

City of Garland 
Information  972-205-2000 
After Hours/Weekends  
  972-205-3210 
Animal Services  972-205-3570 
Building Inspection  972-205-2300 
Code Compliance  972-485-6400 
Career Opportunities  972-205-2475 
Environmental Waste  972-205-3500 
Fair Housing  972-205-3300 
Granville Arts Center 
  Theater/Atrium Rental  972-205-2780 
  Box Office  972-205-2790 
Health Department  972-205-3460 
Public Health  972-205-3370 
Libraries  972-205-2500 
  Central  972-205-2524 
  North Garland  972-205-2802 
  South Garland  972-205-3920 
  Walnut Creek  972-205-2586 
Mayor’s Office  972-205-2400 
Municipal Court  972-205-2330 
Neighborhood Vitality 972-205-2445 
Parking Enforcement  972-205-2222 
Parks & Recreation  972-205-2750 
Public Safety 
  Police Non-Emergency  972-485-4840 
  Crimestoppers  972-272-TIPS 
  Fire Non-Emergency  972-781-7100 
Streets  972-205-3555 
Traffic Signal  
  Malfunction    972-205-3250 
Utility Services 
  Customer Service  972-205-2671 
  Water Department  972-205-3210 
  Streetlight Repair  972-205-3483 
  GP&L Power Outage  972-205-3000 
  Line Location                   811 
  Atmos Energy 1-866-322-8667 
  Oncor 1-800-233-2133 
Other Numbers 
Poison Control         1-800-222-1222 
Texas Department of  
  Public Safety  972-861-2000 
 

Neighborhood Police Officer 
Officer Chandler Brown 

brownc@garlandtx.org 
972-205-4065 

 

Newsletter 
Website 

Facebook 
 

Cynthia Houck 
CNAcommunications@camelotna.com 

214-575-7530 
 

 
 

CNA Website 
www.camelotna.com 

 

 

Page 2 The Knightly News 

 

“Like” CNA and bookmark us. 

Visit CNA on 

Facebook! 
 

 

Website Ad Rate 
 

$100/year 
 

To set up an ad, contact 
coordinator@camelotna.com 

 

Nextdoor Camelot 
 

Joe Thomas 
joethomasjr@gmail.com 

214-218-2227 @camelotnagarland 

Executive Board 
 

President 
Joe Thomas                    214-218-2227 
                       joethomasjr@gmail.com 
 

Vice President 
Becky Thurmond           972-955-5109 
                            beckyth@verizon.net 
 

Secretary 
Debbie Rima                  972-495-6476 
                       debbierima@yahoo.com 
 

Treasurer 
Jo-Sandra Greenberg      972-814-0777 
                          josandra1@gmail.com 
 

Beautification Committee 
Reba Collins                   972-742-0312 
                         rcollins20@verizon.net 
 

Civic Interest Committee 
Peggy Sorrentino            214-629-4923 
                           bob.tino@verizon.net 
 

Code Compliance Committee 
Rick Williams                214-535-2648 
                            rickwilli@gmail.com 
 

Crime & Safety Committee 
Becky Thurmond           972-955-5109 
                            beckyth@verizon.net 
 
 

Membership Committee 
Joe Thomas                    214-218-2227 
                       joethomasjr@gmail.com 
 

 Social Committee 
Diana Thomas                562-505-8728 
            dianamthomas777@gmail.com 

Monthly Gift Card Draw winner 

for January 

By Joe Thomas, Membership Chair 

The winners for the first drawing of 2023 are Aaron 
and Rachel Basinger of Galaxie Road. They got a  
$10 gift card to Desperados. 

They bought the house, built in 1983, from the  
Palmers, who were the original owners. They are 
both native Texans as Rachel grew up in Sugarland 
and Aaron in Plano. They met during their college 
years at Baylor University. 

They moved to Camelot from Amarillo where Rachel 
had been attending Texas Tech University School of 
Pharmacy. She currently works as a pharmacist and 
has since 2013. Aaron has been teaching at John Paul 
II High School since 2007. They are members of St. 
Joseph’s Church. 

Their household includes Gus the dog and Mr.  
Mittens the cat (who moved in and made himself at 
home), as well as four chickens. They really enjoy 
the backyard that backs up to the northernmost pond. 

They like to spend time outdoors, whether it is hunt-
ing, fishing or hiking, and just traveling in general. 
They have been to Europe and plan to go to Italy this 
summer to celebrate their 15th wedding anniversary. 

Next month’s winner will get an email from  
joethomasjr@gmail.com so add that to your contacts 
now so it doesn’t go to junk mail. 



Page 3 www.camelotna.com 

What is fun, quirky, eclectic and smells good? When  
you walk into this shop at 510 Main Street in downtown 
Garland, you are met with the wonderful aroma of  
incense, handmade candles, and soap. 

The shop is a beautifully  
decorated homage to the past 
with a modern twist. I had  
a wonderful chat with co-
owners Trayc and Karin and 
gave them four vintage 1970s 
Hawaiian shirts, two pieces 
of vintage jewelry, and a 
1960s hat. In an effort to  
support the businesses in 
downtown Garland in the 
final year of the square con-
struction project, I am visit-

ing at least one business per month and either donating 
items they can use or purchasing items from them.  

Trayc is an artist who paints 
and has an eye for exceptional 
vintage clothing, and Karin is 
an artist who makes jewelry 
and finds incredible vintage 
glassware. They are both very 
complimentary to the city  
of Garland for listening to 
them and working with them 
through this process.  

This is an ideal place to come 
for a unique gift. I only 
looked at a fraction of the items in the store, and two 
things that caught my eye were a stunning 1980s black 
dress with sequined sleeves and a beautiful set of 1970s 
drinking glasses embossed with yellow flowers. 

The Frocksy Vintage Vogue 

By Peggy Sorrentino, Civic Interest Chair 

TRAYC & KARIN 

CAMELOT NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION 
TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 
Jo-Sandra Greenberg, Treasurer 

 

Balance as of 12/31/2021 $ 6,061.49 
 

Income 
Ads (website) $   100.00 
City of Garland Grant for Picnic/Food Drive     500.00 
Donations 250.00 
Membership (Checks/Cash) 4,337.50 
Membership (PayPal) 1,867.16 
Membership (Venmo) 1,274.07 
Picnic Food Tickets 72.00 
Miscellaneous Income       26.00 
Total Income  $ 8,426.73 
 

Expenses 
Bank Checks/Deposit Slips Reorder $     65.00 
Beautification Total $3,422.91 
 - Yard of the Month Gift Cards 225.00 
 - Shiloh Garden 261.44 
 - Entrance Medians. Signs, Sprinklers 959.00 
 - King Arthur Camelot Sign 177.47 
 - Median Maintenance (mowing only) 1,800.00 

Garland Police Awards Banquet Ad   250.00 
CNA Website     19.95 
Membership Expenses Total 515.58 
 - Flyers, Signs, Facebook ad, etc. 184.49 
 - Gift cards for monthly drawing 120.00 
 - Welcome Packets 211.09 

Newsletter Expenses 954.67 
Office Supplies 24.98 
Picnic Expenses 1,569.31 
P. O. Box Renewal Fee      182.00 
Postage 1,600.99 
Excalibur Award       38.00 
Total Expenses  $ 8,643.39 
 

Balance as of 12/31/2022  $ 5,844.83 

Spring Creek Forest Preserve - 

30
th

 Annual Trout Lily Walk  

Submitted by Dana Wilson 

Trout lilies are one of the first plants to flower in the 
spring. These tiny flowers form a carpet of blooms from 
about mid-February through mid-March then disappear 
until next year. Don’t miss chance to see the first wild-
flower display of 2023! 

Come on Sunday, February 26, any time between 2:00 
and 3:00 p.m. 

When you arrive, volunteers at the pavilion will welcome 
you and give you introductory information. Then we will 
send you along the clearly marked trail to the trout lily 
field. Tom Frey, our adviser, mentor, and friend, will be at 
the trout lily field. 

After you have seen the lilies and talked to Tom, you will 
walk along to the next marked spot, where we will have 
another knowledgeable naturalist who will tell you about 
the significance of that area of the Preserve. The volunteer 
naturalists will be at several stations along the trail from 
2:00 until the last walkers go through. 

This format allows folks to go at their own pace rather 
than having to follow a group; no one gets impatient wait-
ing for others to catch up, and each can spend as much 
time at a station as they want. Some like to spend a lot of 
time taking photos and discussing the forest. Others like 

to hear just a little bit and then move on. With this walk 
format, it is your choice. 

We hope to see you there! 

PHOTO BY CARROLL MAYHEW/NORTH TEXAS MASTER NATURALISTS 



Attendees: Joe Thomas, Peggy Sorrentino, Reba Collins, Becky 
Thurmond, Debbie Rima, Cynthia Houck, Dylan Hedrick,  
Jo-Sandra Greenberg, Diana Thomas, and Abra Nusser were 
present at the January 15, 2023, Zoom meeting. Welcome and 
President’s Remarks: Started at 6:33 p.m.   

Approval of Minutes: Diana moved to approve. Cynthia  
seconded. All approved. 

Council Member’s Remarks: Asian New Year Celebration was 
lots of fun. Judd Rex is our new City Manager; he will be offi-
cial on Tuesday, January 17. Capital improvement budgets  
projects are on the agenda, including fire trucks, dump trucks, 
new roads, new rec centers – spinning from bond program. Con-
struction on Callejo Road should start soon. Funding is  
being discussed for the new senior center. Big request is a pool 
for water aerobics; heated pool even better. Downtown square 
coming along really well. Becky said we need more security for 
the senior center, limiting access and keeping doors locked, 
making sure only seniors use the center. Dylan says the City is 
checking on senior centers in other cities to see how they are 
operating and how they handle issues. Peggy asked about  
completion date for downtown – probably end of year. Cynthia 
asked about location of senior center – same place. Also,  
Cynthia asked what’s going on with Walnut Branch Library. 
City had groundbreaking late last year; construction should be 
mobilized soon. Elections coming up soon for our city council 
member (and some others). Dylan is gathering signatures for his 
petition.   

Mayor’s Remarks: N/A 

Treasurer’s Report: Beginning balance in January was 
$5,844.83. Jo-Sandra found a discrepancy from 2021 of 
$249.10, which gave us $5,844.83 for beginning of 2023. Becky 
made the motion to accept the balance as read. Diane seconded. 
All approved. 

Membership: 147 members for 2023. 149 members this time last 
year. (108 have not renewed.) Flyer delivery teams have their 
packets. Becky asked if Joe was going to post anything on 
Nextdoor about joining. He has not, but will. Joe believes the 
flyer delivery is very important to grow our membership. 

Social: Discussed date for 2023 picnic. October 28 is too late.  
Consensus is October 21. 

Crime and Safety: Nothing much going on. 

Beautification: Nothing major going on. We usually start mow-
ing medians around middle of March so Reba is working on new 
contract. She’d like to give the contract to Ricky and will talk  
to him in February to see if he is able and willing to continue 
mowing for us. We should expect fee to go up as it is going up 
everywhere. 

Code Compliance: N/A 

Civic Interest: Peggy continues to visit businesses in downtown 
square. She went to Frocksy Vintage Vogue. Shops are amazing. 
Shop owners believe City is listening to them and working with 
them. Peggy is concerned about traffic on Arapaho and crashes 
into guardrails. (There have been two recently.) Recent guardrail 
crash prevented car from going into home. City fixed it, and then 
there was another big crash in same spot. Abra is the City Plan-
ner and will go look at area to help develop a plan to slow traffic 
down. 
                                                                          (Continued on Page 6) 

I hope everyone had a safe and happy holiday season! On City 
Council, we are moving into another one of our important budg-
eting seasons as we are now reviewing the proposed Capital 
Improvements Projects (CIP) budget. The CIP budget is a plan 
for funding projects which have a useful life of not less than five 
years and exceed $25,000 in cost. Approved projects in this year 
often have budget implications for future years as funding for 
projects such as buildings and utility improvements are  
often spread over multiple years. 

This year’s proposed CIP budget is the largest in city history  
at $557.9 million and includes $157.8 million for funding to 
continue the implementation of the 2019 Bond Program. During 
2023, fifty-four of the fifty-eight 2019 Bond Program projects 
and programs will be under way as we continue to meet our 
promise of delivering them as soon as possible. Additionally, the 
CIP includes $12.3 million for thirteen additional projects not 
included in the 2019 Bond Program, using funding from the 
American Rescue Plan Act. 

Park projects account for the majority of the tax-supported fund-
ing proposals with $69.5 million going toward the renovation or 
construction of Holford, Granger and Hollabaugh Recreation 
Centers, the new Garland Senior Activity Center, and trail devel-
opment, such as the Bisby Transmission Trail near Jupiter Road 
and Apollo Road. 

Over $60.5 million is allocated to street improvement projects, 
including southern Shiloh Road, Holford Road, Naaman School 
Road, and various bottleneck improvements throughout the city. 
The budget also includes funding for traffic signal equipment 

modernization projects to improve traffic flow through the city 
and railroad crossing improvements to smooth the roadways 
over the tracks. Public safety funding includes the construction 
of the new Fire Station 6, which is moving from Holford Road 
to north of President George Bush Turnpike and Campbell 
Road, and a permanent restroom facility at the Police training 
gun range. 

Funding is proposed for the construction of a new Walnut Creek 
Branch library, as well as modernization upgrades to Central and 
North Garland Libraries. We also proposed the funding of  
library kiosks throughout the city to spread library services to 
areas typically underserved or more distant from our four library 
locations. 

Utility-funded projects include the purchase of thirteen new 
pieces of equipment for the Sanitation Department, enhance-
ments to water transmission mains and distribution lines 
throughout the city, and $122.4 million for Garland Power & 
Light to fund ERCOT-driven reliability upgrades to transmission 
lines and substations. 

With the recent increase in property valuations, there is no  
proposed increase to the property tax rate for fiscal year 2022-
2023 to fund the CIP budget. However, we do anticipate a  
modest increase to sanitation and wastewater rates, but no  
increase to water or GP&L electric rates. 

I am looking forward to the upcoming meetings and discussions 
regarding our CIP budget and value your input in this process. 
Please contact me at 469-560-6099 or council7@garlandtx.gov 
if you have any questions or comments regarding the CIP  
budget or if there is anything I can do to assist you. It is my  
extreme pleasure to continue to serve the citizens of Garland and 
District 7. 

January CNA Meeting Minutes 

By Debbie Rima, Secretary 

Page 4 The Knightly News 

Council 7 Update 

By Dylan Hedrick, District 7 Council Member 



December 2022 Crime Stats  

By Becky Thurmond—Crime & Safety Committee Chair 

 

12/11  29XX Ivanridge Lane – Unauthorized Use Motor Vehicle 

Page 5 www.camelotna.com 

The Garland Police Department’s SWAT unit has a Hostage 
Negotiation Team, separate from the Tactical Team. The Tacti-
cal Team makes up most of the unit; these are the officers you 
see riding the Bearcat, wearing desert camo, helmets, heavy-duty 
vests, carrying long guns. They’re the people who will shoot tear 
gas and bash in doors if negotiations fail. 

The Negotiation Team officers go out with every SWAT call-out 
and go to work if there’s a barricaded person who is a threat.  
Even if the hostages have escaped, the subject may still be a 
threat. The hoped-for goal is a peaceful resolution to the incident 
by getting the subject to surrender and come out. 

The Negotiation Team is made up of a lieutenant and eight offic-
ers, all SWAT officers. Unlike big cities that have a dedicated 
SWAT team, all of the special unit officers in Garland continue 
with their work in patrol or traffic or investigations and only 
head to their specialized assignment when needed. 

The following roles define how the Negotiation Team operates. 

Primary negotiator. This is the person on the phone with the  
barricaded person, the one in the hot seat. His job is to establish 
communication, build trust, and slow everything down. He is 
actively listening to the subject, not planning his next response. 
This is where the coach comes in. 

Coach. This officer sits next to the primary negotiator and is the 
only person who can communicate with him. The coach is  
receiving information from other officers to pass on to the nego-
tiator, giving advice when the conversation is lagging or getting 
into a rut, helping with responses. All of this communication is 
done silently, either with handwritten notes or on a computer. 

Scribe. This officer is taking notes and making sure that abso-
lutely everything is written down and recorded. This is crucial 
for the subsequent investigation and court proceedings. 

Intelligence. The other officers on the team are gathering infor-
mation in person from family, friends, neighbors, coworkers, 
witnesses. They’re also researching the subject on the computer, 
obtaining background checks, looking into his social media pres-
ence and anywhere else police can get information. 

Lieutenant. The boss is keeping track of progress and whatever 
else is going on, making contingency plans with the tactical 
team, and communicating with other units as needed. 

The primary negotiator and coach are as isolated as possible 
from anybody and anything else. If at all possible, they’re in the 
specialized hostage team van. Besides needing to concentrate, 
it’s an important component of negotiations. The subject can get 
sidetracked and nervous if he hears other people or sounds on the 
phone. 

Everybody on the team is looking for hooks and triggers to help 
with the negotiations. Hooks are the things that get a positive 
reaction from the subject, the things he wants to talk about.  
Triggers are the things that the subject doesn’t want to discuss 
and that bring out a negative reaction. The negotiator wants to 
steer clear of anything that increases the subject’s anger and 
stick to the positive topics. 

It’s especially crucial that the negotiator never lies to the barri-
caded person. If the subject catches him in a lie, all trust is gone, 
and negotiations may be over. The negotiator will be straightfor-
ward and truthful in answering any questions that the barricaded 
person has. The answer may not be what the subject wants to 
hear, but it’s important that he’s answered honestly. 

 

It’s also important to realize that the barricaded person could 
have access to what’s going on outside. He may be watching the 
news coverage if it’s that big of a situation. He might be texting 
or checking the social media accounts of friends or family to see 
what they are saying or what they know. He could even be 
checking in with Nextdoor. Think of how common it is for  
people to post about police situations on Nextdoor, asking 
what’s going on, speculating, sharing information that may or 
may not be correct. If the PD is in the middle of a touchy situa-
tion, they might not want to risk any information leaking out. So 
we need to give them a break, be patient when we’re curious 
about what’s going on, and trust that they’ll let us know if we’re 
in any danger! 

The team has a variety of specialized tools and computer  
systems. Their van is set up to handle all of this equipment, 
along with providing a quiet place for the negotiator and coach. 
If at all possible, they try to get a throw phone to the suspect. It’s 
in a tough padded case and cabled to part of the computer system 
to avoid problems with a cell phone, like the battery giving out 
or static or spotty coverage. Since it’s cabled to the computer 
system, it also records everything said, which is needed for the 
subsequent investigation and can be as valuable to the defense as 
to the prosecutors. The computer system, which allows multiple 
devices like laptops to be connected, also helps with communi-
cations between all of the team members. Now they can essen-
tially do a group chat, instead of passing around sticky notes! 

The team members all have specialized training and continuing 
education. They are not licensed psychologists, but they regular-
ly learn and train with specialists. And it’s important to note  
that all officers have training and experience in dealing with 
troubled people; it’s what they do all the time in their job. It’s 
not unheard of for the dispatcher or first patrol officer to contact 
the barricaded person to develop a rapport with him, and they 
just stay at it. A coach will be placed with them to keep commu-
nication flowing. 

The goal in these situations is for everybody to get out alive.  
The police would much rather slow the incident down and wear 
the suspect out until he gives up than have to storm the building, 
destroy property, and injure someone. 

When the suspect decides he’s ready to come out, the negotiator 
prepares him with the exit plan. He warns him that he will need 
to come out with no weapons and his hands up. The SWAT  
officers will be there with guns drawn, and it’s really important 
for him to listen and do what they tell him to do. They’ll put him 
in handcuffs for everybody’s safety. He’ll then be put into the 
back seat of a patrol car (or ambulance if he’s injured). The  
negotiator will ask if he’d like to talk to him in person before 
he’s booked into jail. (Some say yes; some say no.) 

I’ve participated in various SWAT training exercises, including 
some with hostage negotiations going on. That was very interest-
ing (and fun!), but hearing this presentation clarified a few things 
that I witnessed, in addition to providing the overall structure to 
what this team does and how they do it. And if you ever are 
around the police involved in an operation where a lot is going 
on, please stay out of their way and think twice before you post 
something online! 

 

GPD Hostage Negotiation Team 

By Becky Thurmond, Crime & Safety Chair 



 CLASSIFIED ADS 

 

Classified ads are free to CNA members.  

(One ad per household, limited to 25 words or less.) 

If you wish to change an ad or order a new one, please use the form at left. 

For reasonable rates on computer repairs and church AV  

technician services, contact Jay Crutti at 504-913-6784 or  

recstudio@gmail.com. 
 

LifeStorage — 469-639-2297 — 3353 W. Campbell Road,  

Garland, TX 75044 — ls1136@lifestorage.com — Kaitlyn Widder, 

Manager 
 

Piano and voice lessons by former RISD elementary music teacher, 

now SAHM. Call or text Kirsten Padilla 972-821-1306. 
 

Health insurance including Short Term / Interim coverage. Randy 

Miller, Independent Agent for multiple companies. Email:  

RMillerTXIns@aol.com. 469-442-7002 
 

Handyman services—all general household needs and repairs, 

basic remodeling, local service, highly rated, handy solutions  

services. 214-213-1913. Call/text now. Contact AC Grindl, owner. 
 

Turf grass and landscape advice—Free for CNA members.  

$35/hour for non-members. Contact Rick Williams at  

rickwilli@gmail.com or 214-535-2648.  

Neighborhood Association, Inc. 

P. O. Box 452631 

Garland, TX 75045-2631 

2022 Garland Neighborhood 
Newsletter of the Year 

 

FEBRUARY 

CNA MEETING 
 

  Date  February 19, 2023 
  Time:  6:30 p.m. 
  Place:  On Zoom 
  Host:  Joe Thomas 
 

Meetings are usually held 
on the third Sunday of each month 

(except October and December) 
and are open to all Camelot residents 

and city officials. 
 

If you would like to attend, contact 
Joe Thomas at joethomasjr@gmail.com. 

Minutes 

Communications: Cynthia needs to buy labels for next month. 
A box usually lasts about a year. She has plenty of stamps. 

Old Business: Last meeting, Reba discussed raising dues. Joe 
also looked at reducing expenses. If we raised dues by $5, that 
is only about $1,200 more for expenses. The sprinkler system 
was our big expense last year. All of those issues should be 
fixed this year. Reba says we have not increased dues in years.  
If we take advantage of neighborhood grants, we need to incur 
more expenses up front and then be reimbursed. She believes 
we need funds to build our surplus. We might want to do some-
thing at the vacant city lot by the Shiloh Gardens. It would be 
sad to not have enough money to do an improvement. Reba 
believes we need to raise dues to $40/year. The Board decided 
to keep dues the same for this year and decide what to do as we 
near the end of 2023. The Board also agreed to stop paying an 
extra gift card for Yard of the Month winners to CNA members, 
but they will still get the reward card from local vendors. The 
Board discussed stopping handing out welcome packets to save 
money; new neighbors can learn about us on Nextdoor. Some 
felt we should continue the packets so new neighbors know 
about us and feel welcomed to the neighborhood. Peggy agreed 
to take over assembling packets and distributing. The Board felt 
we could decrease material that is in the packet. Joe will send 
out to the Board the electronic version of what is in the packet 
so we can agree what to cut out. 

New Business: N/A 

Next meeting: February 19, 2023, via Zoom. Adjourned 7:50 
p.m. 

(Continued from page 4) 



From
:

Elena Rico
To:

Planning Group
Subject:

[EXTERNAL] Com
m

ent Form
 Case Z 22-65

D
ate:

Thursday, February 9, 2023 11:15:50 AM

G
ood A

fternoon,

I am
 sending you this form

 on behave of 2814 Teakw
ood D

r against C
ase Z 22-65.

Thank you,

C
A

U
TIO

N
: This em

ail is from
 an external source. D

O
 N

O
T click links or open attachm

ents w
ithout verifying the sender. N

ever enter U
SER

N
A

M
E, PA

SSW
O

R
D

 or SEN
SITIV

E IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N
 on linked pages from

 this em
ail. If you are unsure about the m

essage, please contact the H
elp D

esk at x7240 for assistance.

mailto:elenarico41@yahoo.com
mailto:Planning@garlandtx.gov




Case Z 22-65 

 

Currently we are paying high taxes. Every year the taxes keep increasing which increases the 
expenses for our property.  



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. b.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering - Detail Plan (District 7)
Submitted For: Nabiha Ahmed, Lead Development Planner 

Summary:
Consider of the application of Kirkman Engineering, requesting approval of a Detail Plan for
Single-Family Attached Uses on a property zoned Single-Family Attached (SFA) District. This
property is located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road. (District 7)  (File Z 22-65 – Detail Plan)

Attachments
Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Report and Attachments (Detail Plan) 
Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-65/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached Uses and 2) an Alley Waiver. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for Single-Family Attached (SFA) development. 
 
 
LOCATION 
2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road 
 
APPLICANT 
Kirkman Engineering 
 
OWNER 
Seven Investments 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant proposes to construct fifty-five (55) townhouses and three (3) HOA open 
space lots. The subject property is currently unimproved. 
 
SITE DATA 
The  subject property contains approximately 4.87 acres and has approximately 1,211 linear 
feet of frontage along Arapaho Road, 312 linear feet of frontage along Galaxie Road and 233 
linear feet of frontage along Callejo Road. 

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is currently zoned Single-Family Attached (SFA) District. The Single-
Family Attached District is intended to promote stable, quality, attached-occupancy 
residential development on individual lots in logical, livable, and sustainable neighborhoods. 
This district may be included within certain areas of neighborhoods or, when in accordance 
with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, may provide a transition district between lower 
density residential areas, multifamily or nonresidential areas, or major thoroughfares. 
 
The applicant requests to make some modifications to the Single-Family Attached District 
requirements.  
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Detail Plan  
1. The applicant proposes a Detail Plan for a development of fifty-five (55) townhouses and 

three (3) HOA lots. In addition, the applicant is proposing 11.9 units per acre, therefore 
meeting the SFA GDC requirement.  
 
 



Page 2 of 5 
 
2. The applicant requests to deviate from some of the required SFA District development 

standards per Section 2.34 (Table 2-3) of the Garland Development Code (GDC). The 
table below indicates the deviations proposed. It should be noted that the proposal will 
meet the minimum dwelling size requirement (1,400 sf) per the GDC. 
 
Development 
Standards  

Required  Proposed (Minimum) Justification 

Lot Area  Minimum 2,000 SF  Minimum 1,500 SF The minimum lot area 
is being reduced to 
allow for the requested 
reduction in the lot 
depth listed. 
 

Lot Depth  Minimum 90 feet Minimum 60 feet The overall tract 
geometry, and 
incorporating 
necessary 
infrastructure, creates 
constraints of the lot 
impacting the lot 
depths. The proposed 
depths will improve the 
compatibility of the 
proposed development 
with the existing 
neighborhood to the 
north as well as bring 
great look to the area.  
 

Landscaping At least one tree is 
required for each 
townhouse unit and 
must be placed 
either on that lot or 
within fifty feet of 
that unit. For each 
townhouse structure, 
at least fifty percent 
of the required trees 
must be large 
canopy trees. The 
remainder of the 
required trees may 
be small ornamental 
trees. 
 

Only small ornamental 
trees are proposed for 
each lot or within fifty 
feet of that unit. 
 
Large canopy trees are 
proposed in the larger 
common open space 
areas, as well as along 
Arapaho Road. 
 
 
  

The reduced depth of 
theses lots still allow 
for small green spaces 
for each lot; however, 
the applicant would like 
to relocate these 
required large canopy 
trees to the larger 
common open spaces 
instead of these small 
green spaces to allow 
the trees to reach full 
maturity and allow a 
more manageable 
space for franchise 
utility placement and 
maintenance. 
 

Alleys Alleys are required Not provided The size of the site 
makes it difficult to 
accommodate the 
alley. The garages and 
driveways will be in the 
front of the buildings 



Page 3 of 5 
 

and will be serviced by 
the public street.  

   
 
Screening and Landscaping  
 
3. The proposed landscape layout (Exhibit D) complies with the applicable screening 

standards. Per the GDC, a screening wall is required along a thoroughfare Type “D” or 
greater. Arapaho Road is considered to be greater than Type “D”; therefore, a five (5)-
foot ornamental fence with masonry columns and applicable vegetation is required along 
Arapaho Road and the landscape plan reflects the ornamental fence with masonry 
columns. The large canopy trees and screening shrubs are on the street-side of the 
fence to provide more coverage. Screening and fencing is not required along Callejo 
Road and Galaxie Road. However, the landscape plan reflects a board-on-board fence 
along the northern perimeter line and an ornamental fence along Callejo Road and a 
portion of Galaxie Road.  
 
The GDC requires at least one tree is required for each townhouse unit and must be 
placed either on that lot or within fifty feet of that unit. For each townhouse structure, at 
least fifty percent of the required trees must be large canopy trees. The remainder of 
the required trees may be small ornamental trees. The landscape plan (Exhibit D) shows 
all small ornamental trees either on a lot or within fifty (50) feet of that lot.  
 

4. Amenities 
 
     Common open space area is included with the proposed development in accordance with 

the GDC. The amenity requirements of the Single-Family Attached (SFA) District per the 
GDC are satisfied. Amenities include a gazebo and playground equipment.  

 
 
5. Parking 

The site plan (Exhibit C) complies with the required enclosed garages spaces and guest 
parking per the GDC. 
 

6. Garage 
The GDC requires the face of a garage door to be at least twenty (20) feet from the 
street or alley right-of-way line that the garage door faces (twenty-four feet if facing an 
interior lot/property line), and must have at least one of the following designs, as 
depicted in Illustrations 4-9 through 4-13: 

• Rear entry; 

• “J” drives, for front entry properties; 

• “Swing” drives, for side entry properties; or 

• Offset front entry with the garage door set back at least five feet behind the front 
building face. 
 
The site plan (Exhibit C) reflects front-entry garages with an offset. 
 
 

7. Building Design 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

The building elevations complies with the articulation and architectural elements 
requirements per the GDC.  

 
 

Signage 
8. The applicant has not requested any deviation on signage; it will comply with the 

standards in the GDC. 
 

 
      Alley Waiver 
9. The residential lots within the residential development would front a fifty (50) foot right-

of-way with access to each lot limited to the street front. The applicant seeks an Alley 
Waiver from the Plan Commission for this development. Section 3.80 of the GDC 
requires every lot in a residential subdivision with two or more lots to be served by an 
alley at the rear, or, if a corner lot, at the rear or one side. Alleys are utilized to facilitate 
drainage for the subdivision development, provide an area for the placement of utilities, 
and to provide rear access to a single-family lot. As reflected on the Detail Plan, alleys 
are not proposed for this development, as all lots would have front vehicular access only 
and utilities and drainage would be provided through easements. The Engineering 
Department has reviewed the plans and has indicated the layout is conducive to 
providing adequate drainage while meeting the City’s requirements.  

 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Compact 
Neighborhoods. 
 
Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, 
including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It expands housing 
options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable development patterns. 
These areas provide transitions between traditional residential neighborhoods and higher 
density residential neighborhoods and non-residential developments. These areas 
accommodate uses such as convenience retail (goods and services), office space, and public 
services. The architectural character and scale of these areas are compatible with adjacent 
residential development. 
 
This proposed use is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the north are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District; these properties are 
developed with single-family homes. The property to the east, across Callejo Road, is zoned 
Single-Family Attached (SFA) District; it is currently unimproved. The properties to the 
south, across Arapaho Road, are zoned Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District and are developed 
with single-family homes. The property to the west, across Galaxie Road, is zoned 
Community Retail (CR) District; it is developed with retail uses. 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of 1) a Change in Zoning from Single-Family Attached (SFA) District to a Planned 
Development (PD) District for Single-Family Attached Uses and 2) an Alley Waiver. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for Single-Family Attached (SFA) development. 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. PD Conditions 
iii. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Nabiha Ahmed Will Guerin, AICP 
Lead Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2453  
nahmed@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:nahmed@garlandtx.gov


2930 2922 2914 2906 2830 2822 2814 2806

30013013
3009 300530173021

2930 2926 2922 2918 2914 2910 2906 2902 2830 2822 2814 2810 2806 2802
2826 28183014

3010
3006

3002

3010 3006 3002

2826

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

ARAPAHO RD

C
R

O
W

N
 C

IR

D
R

AW
BR

ID
G

E 
LN

LA
R

G
O

 T
R

L

C
ALLEJO

 R
D

BOTELLO RD

FRIAR LN

NOBLE LN

TEAKWOOD DR

RIPPLEWOOD DR

CHARIOT LN

LANCER LN

S  1 6 - 2 5S  1 6 - 2 5
C RC R

P DP D
9 9 - 1 49 9 - 1 4

S F AS F A

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

A GA G

S F AS F A

5005

2509

2502

29212925

2922
28142910

2821

2918

28172829

2829

2926

2805

2921
2725

2918

5006

2501

2705

2813

2905

2825

2914

2917

3018

3029

2722

5010

2809

2718

2517

2730

2901

3015

28172901

2521

2917
2729

3021

2525

2902
5013

2806 2802

5001

2925

2801

2805

2713
2909

2505

2822

2809

2818

2902

28132825

2913

2718

2733

5009

2905

2926

2906

2709

2821

2913

2714

2714

2826

2802

2830

2721 2717

5002

2930

2513

2710

2801

28102818 2726

2929

3014

28102910

5006

5001

2929

2710

2909

2901

2801

2701
3011

ZONING MAP Z 22-65
¯

0 140 280 Feet
1 inch = 211 feet

2801 & 2901 Arapaho Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



SS

SS

SS

SS

FH

FH FH

SS

ARAPAHO ROAD
100' WIDTH R.O.W. VOL. 98146, PG. 13,

P.R.D.C.T

CA
LL

EJ
O

 R
O

AD
60' W

IDT
H R

.O.W
. VO

L. 87
025

, PG
. 474

9,
D.R

.D.C
.T

LOT 10, BLOCK K
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 1, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 5, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 6, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 7, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 8, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 9, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 10, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 11, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 12, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 13, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 14, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 15, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 16, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

CAMELOT ADDITION NO. 12
VOL. 79008, PG. 2879

P.R.D.C.T.

DEBRE BERHAN HOLY TRINITY ETHIOPIAN
ORTHODOX TEWAHEDO CHURCH

DOC.# 201600099570
O.P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2, BLOCK 1
SIMON ADDITION

VOL. 98146, PG. 13
P.R.D.C.T.

LANCER LN

SS

SS

SS

SS

FH

FH FH

SS

15' ALLEY ROW (EXISTING)
(VOL. 74151, PG. 2024, P.R.D.C.T.)

P.R.D.C.T

GALA
XIE ROAD

60' W
IDTH

 R.O.W
. VOL

. 740
73, P

G. 89
9,

RIM=585.2'

SIGN "STOP"

FHSIGN "40-MPH"
WVFH

SIGNUV CABLEUV CABLE
WVUP

UP

UP

WVWVFHTSP

WV

SIGN
"30-MPH"

WV

WMWMWVFH

WV
UP

UP UP UPUP UPUP UPUP UPUP UPUP UPUP GUYTPEDUPUC ELEC.GUYGUYGUY

WV

EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE

EX OHE
EX OHE

EX OHE
EX OHE

EX OHE
EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE

GUYGUYWV

UP

SS

SD

SDSD

SD
SD

SD

SD

4 UNITS

BUILDING 1
6 UNITS

BUILDING 2
6 UNITS

BUILDING 3
6 UNITS

BUILDING 4
6 UNITS

BUILDING 5

6 UNITS

BUILDING 6
6 UNITS

BUILDING 7
4 UNITS

BUILDING 8
6 UNITS

BUILDING 9
5 UNITS

BUILDING 10

3

8

9

HOA LOT 1X
OPEN SPACE

6,000 SF

25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0'

25.0'25.0'30.0'25.0'25.0'

67.1'

45.0'

HOA LOT 3X

36.4'

OPEN SPACE
19,000 SF

HOA LOT 4X

46.0'
25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0' 30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0' 30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0' 30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0' 30.0' 25.0' 25.0'

30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0'
30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0'

30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 50.0'
30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0'

30.0' 25.0' 25.0' 25.0' 30.0'

60.8'

60.8'

60.8'

60.8'

60.8'

50
.0

'

50.0'

60.8'

60.8'

60.8'

61.7'

83
.8

'

20.0' 20.0'

27.0'

60.0' EX ROW

60.0'

111.3'

60.0' EX. ROW

30.0'

100.0'

50.0'

30.0'

15.0'

60.8'

221.4'

27.0'
B-B

15.0' BLDG.
SETBACK

5' PROP.
SIDEWALK (TYP.)

5' PROP.
SIDEWALK (TYP.)

PROP. 6' SCREENING
WOOD FENCE

PROP. 6' SCREENING
5' WALL EASEMENT10' PUE

2.5' ROW DEDICATION

SIGHT TRIANGLE
 TO BE CLEAR OF

SCREENING,
LANDSCAPING,

AND SIGNS

PROPOSED SIDEWALK AND
BARRIER FREE RAMP

ADD BARRIER FREE RAMPS
AT EXISTING SIDEWALKS

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK

EXISTING 4' SIDEWALK

PERGOLA / AMENITY

KIDS PLAY
SPACE / AMENITY

PROP. BARRIER
FREE RAMPS

EX. FH

PROP. 6' SCREENING
5' WALL EASEMENT

PROP. BARRIER
FREE RAMPS

WATER
QUALITY UNIT

PROP. BARRIER
FREE RAMPS

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK

EXISTING 4' SIDEWALK

20' D.E.

DETENTION
POND

EASEMENT

20' D.E.

15' C.U.E.

10' U.E.

10' U.E.

15' C.U.E.

15' C.U.E.

12' PED.
ESMT

PEDESTRIAN  ESMT
ALONG SIDEWALK

PEDESTRIAN  ESMT
ALONG SIDEWALK

5

LOT 1

HOA
LOT 2X

LOT 2 LOT 3 LOT 4 LOT 5 LOT 6 LOT 7 LOT 8 LOT 9 LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13 LOT 14 LOT 15 LOT 16 LOT 17 LOT 18 LOT 19 LOT 20 LOT 23 LOT 24 LOT 25 LOT 26LOT 21 LOT 22 LOT 27

LOT 28LOT 29LOT 30LOT 31LOT 32LOT 33LOT 34LOT 35LOT 36LOT 37LOT 38LOT 39LOT 40LOT 41LOT 42LOT 43LOT 44LOT 45LOT 46LOT 47LOT 48LOT 49LOT 50LOT 51LOT 52LOT 53LOT 54LOT 55

LEGEND

V2.0

FI
LE

NA
M

E:
  V

2.
0 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N_
PC

F2
.d

w
g

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:  

Sw
al

do
FU

LL
 P

AT
H:

  K
:\

Jo
bs

\N
CL

21
00

8_
Ga

rla
nd

To
w

nh
om

e\
Dr

aw
in

gs
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
En

gi
ne

er
in

gK
:\

Jo
bs

\N
CL

21
00

8_
Ga

rla
nd

To
w

nh
om

e\
Dr

aw
in

gs
\P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g\
V2

.0
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

_P
CF

2

PL
OT

TE
D 

DA
TE

: 1
/3

1/
20

23

SHEET:

RE
V:

DA
TE

:
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
:

AR
AP

AH
O

TO
W

NH
OM

E

CI
TY

 O
F 

GA
RL

AN
D

DA
LL

AS
 C

OU
NT

Y,
 T

EX
AS

KIRKMAN ENGINEERING, LLC
5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034
TEXAS FIRM NO. 15874

JOB NUMBER:

ISSUE DATE:

NCL21008

DATE

E N G I N E E R I N G

P R E L I M I N A R Y
F O R  R E V I E W  O N L Y
T H E S E  D O C U M E N T S  A R E  F O R
D E S I G N  R E V I E W  O N L Y  A N D
NOT INTENDED FOR THE PURPOSES
O F  C O N S T R U C T I O N ,  B I D D I N G
OR PERMIT. THEY WERE PREPARED
BY, OR UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF:

P.E.# 138653
SHAWN T. WALDO

DATE: January 31, 2023

SITE PLAN
CITY PROJECT NO. 210928-1

ARAPAHO TOWNHOME
4.87 ACRES

SURVEY ADDITION NAME
(INST. NO. 20190215010000670)

CITY OF GARLAND, DALLAS
COUNTY, TEXAS

PREPARATION DATE: 11/07/2022

OWNER/APPLICANT
FIRST INFRA LLC

1925 E BELTLINE ROAD
CARROLLTON, TEXAS 75006

PH: 408-992-5558
CONTACT: BHARATH NANDIGAM

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT COMAPNY

LANDSCAPE ADDRESS
LANDSCAPE ADDRESS

PH: LANDSCAPE PHONE NUMBER
CONTACT: LA ARCHITECT, RLA

ENGINEER
KIRKMAN ENGINEERING, LLC

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

PH: 817-488-4960
CONTACT: JOHN GARDNER, PE

SURVEYOR
BARTON CHAPA SURVEYING

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

PH: 817-864-1957
CONTACT: JACK BARTON, RPLS

SITE PLAN

GRAPHIC SCALE

FEET0 10050

SCALE: 1" = 50'

PARKING DATA TABLE
PARKING SPACES 2 SPACES PER LOT

TOTAL PARKING SPACES 110 SPACES

VISITOR PARKING 25 SPACES

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

EXISTING CONCRETE

FIRE LANE STRIPING

PROPOSED FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED WATER METER

PROPOSED SANITARY MANHOLE

PROPOSED CURB INLET

PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED FDC

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

FH
FIRELANE

10

SS

PROJECT SITE

PINEWOOD DR

ROBIN HILL LN

RIPPLEWOOD DR

TEAKWOOD DR

LA
R

G
O

 T
R

AI
L

ARAPAHO RD

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

TEAKWOOD DR

RIPPLEWOOD DR

ROBIN HILL LN

PINEWOOD DR

LANCER LN

CHARIOT LN

ROYALTY DR ROYALTY DR

CHARIOT LN

BOTELLO DR

W
YR

IC
K 

LN
R

O
YA

LT
Y 

D
R

ST GEORGE DRST GEORGE DR

D
R

AW
N

BR
ID

G
E 

LN

C
AL

LE
JO

 R
D

LONGBOW DR

NOBLE LN

FRIAR LN

R
O

YA
LS

H
IR

E 
LN

R
O

U
N

D
TA

BL
E 

LN

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

SITE PLAN DATA TABLE
EXISTING ZONING SF-A

PROPOSED ZONING PD

BUILDING TYPE ATTACHED TOWNHOME

TOTAL AREA OF SITE 212,005 SF / 4.87 AC

FLOOR AREA RATIO 25.6% / 0.256:1

TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE 54,440 SF

OFF-STREET PARKING SPACES (GUEST PARKING) 25 SPACES

NET RESIDENTIAL DENSITY 11.9 UNITS / AC

MIN LOT SIZE 1,500SF

MIN LOT DEPTH 60'

MIN LOT WIDTH 25'

MAX BUILDING HEIGHT 36'-0" (3 STORY)

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED (SF/%) 25,000 SF / 11.7%

MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS

FRONT: 10'  (20' GARAGE SETBACK)

REAR: 5'

SIDE: 0' & 5'

NUMBER OF TOWNHOME LOTS 55

NUMBER OF HOA LOTS 3

TREE REQUIREMENTS: 1 TREE PER EVERY 2,500 SF

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION TO BE BUILT 1 FT ABOVE TOP OF CURB

PROPOSED ROADWAY TO BE CONSTRUCTED PER CITY REQUIREMENTS

PARKING PAVING WITHIN THE ROW SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE HOA AND A LICENSED
AGREEMENT WILL REQUIRED FROM ENGINEERING AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION

NOTE
IT SHALL BE THE DEVELOPERS RESPONSIBILITY TO BRING THEIR
HALF OF CALLEJO ROAD UP TO CURRENT STANDARDS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GDC SECTIONS 3.44-3.47

STREET APPROACH PER CITY STANDARD DETAILS.

STREET SHALL HAVE MOUNTABLE CURBS. CITY OF GARLAND, TX CASE #: 210928-1

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR "AZB"
1/2" REBAR "AZB"

1/2" REBAR

MAG NAIL
SET

RIM=584.8'

RIM=589.7'

EX 54" RCP

PER 851763

EX 54" RCP
PER 851763

EX 54" RCP

PER 851763

EX 21" RCP

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS
GASFH

FH FH

ARAPAHO ROAD
100' WIDTH R.O.W. VOL. 98146, PG. 13,

P.R.D.C.T

CA
LL

EJ
O

 R
O

AD
60

' W
ID

TH
 R.

O.
W

. V
OL

. 8
70

25
, P

G.
 47

49
,

D.
R.D

.C.
T

LOT 10, BLOCK K
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 1, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 2, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74073, PG. 899

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 4, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 5, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 6, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 7, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 8, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 9, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 10, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 11, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 12, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 13, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 14, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 15, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

LOT 16, BLOCK T
CAMELOT ADDITION

FIFTH SECTION
VOL. 74151, PG. 2024

P.R.D.C.T.

CAMELOT ADDITION NO. 12
VOL. 79008, PG. 2879

LOT 2, BLOCK 1
SIMON ADDITION

VOL. 98146, PG. 13
P.R.D.C.T.

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS
GASFH

FH FH

15' ALLEY ROW (EXISTING)
(VOL. 74151, PG. 2024, P.R.D.C.T.)

20' D.E.

DETENTION
POND

EASEMENT

15' C.U.E.

10' U.E.

PROPOSED 15.0' D.E.

PROP. 15.0' C.U.E.

P.R.D.C.T

GALA
XIE ROAD

60'
 W

IDTH
 R.O.W

. VOL. 7
407

3, P
G. 89

9,

15' C.U.E.

15' C.U.E.

12' PED.
ESMT

PEDESTRIAN  ESMT
ALONG SIDEWALK

FH

TSP

EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE

EX
 O

HE

EX OHE
EX OHE

EX OHE
EX OHE

EX OHE
EX OHE

EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE EX OHE

15' ALLEY ROW
(VOL. 74151, PG. 2024, P.R.D.C.T.)

E
X

 W
TR

E
X

 W
TR

E
X

 W
TR

EX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTREX WTR

EX WTR
EX WTR

EX WTR
EX WTR

EX WTR

EX
 W

TR

EX W
TR

EX W
TR

EX
 W

TR

EX 54" RCP

PER 851763

EX 6" WW PER
851763

SS

EX 21" RCP

4 UNITS

BUILDING 1
6 UNITS

BUILDING 2
6 UNITS

BUILDING 3
6 UNITS

BUILDING 4
6 UNITS

BUILDING 5

6 UNITS

BUILDING 6
6 UNITS

BUILDING 7
4 UNITS

BUILDING 8
6 UNITS

BUILDING 9
5 UNITS

BUILDING 10

HOA LOT 1X
OPEN SPACE

6,000 SF

HOA LOT 2X

OPEN SPACE
19,000 SF

HOA LOT 3X

15.0'

15.0' BLDG.
SETBACK

15' ALLEY ROW
(VOL. 74073, PG. 899, P.R.D.C.T.)

PROP. 6' SCREENING
5' WALL EASEMENT

2.5' ROW DEDICATION

SIGHT TRIANGLE
 TO BE CLEAR OF

SCREENING,
LANDSCAPING,

AND SIGNS

EXISTING 4' SIDEWALK

EXISTING 4' SIDEWALK

PERGOLA / AMENITY
EX. FH

WATER
QUALITY UNIT

EXISTING 4' SIDEWALK

EXISTING 4'
SIDEWALK

5' PROP.
SIDEWALK (TYP.)5' PROP.

SIDEWALK (TYP.)

10' U.E.

PEDESTRIAN  ESMT
ALONG SIDEWALK

10' U.E.

20' D.E.

20' D.E.
WM
469

RO
4

RO
2

CM
9

CE
3

SOLID SOD BERMUDA
GRASS TYPICAL FOR
ALL TURF AREAS

SOLID SOD BERMUDA
GRASS TYPICAL FOR
ALL TURF AREAS

15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

15' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

10' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

CE
11

YH
1

CM
10 YH

1
YH
1

CM
1

YH
1 YH

1

YH
1 YH

1 YH
1 YH

1 YH
1

YH
1

WM
161

CE
9

CM
4

CE
2CE

1

CM
3

CM
6

LO
4

RO
4

WM
30

CE
3

LO
23

5' HT. METAL FENCE W/ BRICK
COLUMNS 50' O.C. MAX. AND
EVERGREEN SCREEN HEDGE

PLAY
STRUCTURE

A
A'

REFER TO FENCE /
SCREEN SECTION

5' HT. METAL FENCE W/ BRICK
COLUMNS 50' O.C. MAX. AND
EVERGREEN
SCREEN HEDGE

5' HT. METAL FENCE W/ BRICK
COLUMNS 50' O.C. MAX. AND
EVERGREEN
SCREEN HEDGE

END OF METAL FENCE
AND BRICK COLUMNSSTART OF 6' HT. WOOD SCREEN

FENCE. FENCE TO RUN THE
ENTIRE LENGTH OF THE ALLEY

START OF 6' HT. WOOD SCREEN
FENCE. FENCE TO RUN THE

ENTIRE LENGTH OF THE ALLEY

5' HT. METAL FENCE W/
BRICK COLUMNS 50' O.C. MAX.

AND EVERGREEN SCREEN HEDGE

6' HT. CEDAR BOARD TO BOARD
PRIVACY FENCE.

6' HT. CEDAR BOARD TO BOARD
PRIVACY FENCE.

6' HT. CEDAR BOARD TO BOARD
PRIVACY FENCE.

RO
6

LO
6

10' LANDSCAPE
BUFFER

5' WALL
EASEMENT

EXISTING 4'-0"
SIDEWALK

LARGE CANOPY TREE
PER LANDSCAPE PLAN

5'-2" HEIGHT METAL
FENCE

10'-0"
UTILITY EASEMENT

PR
OP

ER
TY

 LI
NE

PUBLIC
R.O.W.

WAX MYRTLE
HEDGE- 24" HT.

AT TIME OF PLANTING,
36 INCHES WITHIN ONE YEAR

BRICK COLUMNS 50'-0" O.C.
MAX. WITH DECORATIVE METAL

FENCE BETWEEN COLUMNS

5'-
2"

2'-
0"

1/2" SQ. STEEL
PICKET 4" O.C. MAX.

2" SQ. STEEL INTERMEDIATE
POST, 8'-0"± O.C.

6'-0"±
CAST STONE
CAP

5'-
7"

2'-0"
2'-6"

BRICK SOLDIER
COURSE

BRICK ROLOK
COURSE

BRICK COLUMN
BRICK TO BE SELECTED

4" SQ. TUBULAR
STEEL END POST

1 12" X 2" TOP & BOTTOM RAIL
STEEL RAIL

50'-0" O.C. MAX.±

ISSUE:

DATE:

SHEET NAME:

SHEET NUMBER:

C
HR

IS TRONZANO

S
TAT E OF T EXAS

TC
ET

HI
RCAEPACSDNALDEE

GE
IS

R

RT

22 0 4

01.24.2023

01.24.2023

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L.2

FOR APPROVAL   10.12.2022

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
STUDIO GREEN SPOT, INC.

1784 McDERMOTT DR.
SUITE 110

ALLEN, TEXAS 75013
(469) 369-4448

CHRIS@STUDIOGREENSPOT.COM

100 40 80

01 LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE 1"=40'-0"

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
Total Landscape Area
Requirement: Minimum of 40% of site to be devoted to landscape area.
(Site Area: 212,005 s.f.)

Required: Provided:
84,707 s.f. (40%) 88,142 s.f. (42%)

Parking Area Landscaping
Requirement: 5% of total parking area to be landscaped.
Trees located at the ends of each parking row. All parking spots to be
within 65 l.f. of tree. 1 tree per (10) parking spots.
(Parking Area: 3,062 s.f.)
(Parking Spaces: 22 Spaces)

Required: Provided:
153  s.f. 1,080 s.f.
2 trees 3 trees

Townhouse Development Landscaping
Requirement: At least 1 tree for each unit. At least 50% of the tree
must be large canopy trees. At least 1 tree per 2,500 sf of common
area.
(58 Units)
(39,389 sf of common area)

Required: Provided:
58 trees 33 canopy trees & 27 ornamental trees
16 trees 10 canopy trees & 6 ornamental trees

Perimeter Screening
North Property Line - Single-Family Adjacency
Requirement: A 8' wide landscape buffer with a 6' to 8' wood privacy
fence and large canopy trees at a maximum 50' o.c.
(North Property Line - 1,122 LF)

Required: Provided:
8' Wide Buffer 8' Wide Buffer
Wood Privacy Fence Wood Privacy Fence
22 Canopy Trees 0- Trees

Arapaho Road
Requirement: A 15' wide landscape buffer with a 6' metal fence and large
canopy trees at a maximum 50' o.c.
(Street Frontage - 1,169 LF)

Required: Provided:
15' Wide Buffer 15' Wide Buffer
Metal fence w/ evergreen screen Metal fence wl evergreen scren
23 Canopy Trees 23 Canopy Trees

Galaxie Road
Requirement: A 10' wide landscape buffer with large canopy trees
(1 per 50 LF)
(Street Frontage - 275 LF)

Required: Provided:
10' Wide Buffer 10' Wide Buffer
6 Canopy Trees 6 Canopy Trees

Callejo Road
Requirement: A 10' wide landscape buffer with large canopy trees
(1 per 50 LF)
(Street Frontage - 194 LF)

Required: Provided:
10' Wide Buffer 10' Wide Buffer
4 Canopy Trees 4 Canopy Trees

CITY NOTES
1. PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY, EASEMENTS AND COMMON AREAS MUST BE

STABILIZED WITH PERENNIAL VEGETATION COVER, FULLY
ESTABLISHED WITH 100% COVERAGE, OR OTHER APPROVED
STABILIZATION METHOD.

2. NO LANDSCAPING SUCH AS TREES, HEDGES, ABOVE AND
UNDERGROUND STRUCTURES SHALL BE LOCATED WITHIN
EXISTING OR PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENTS AND RIGHT OF
WITHOUT APPROVED CITY'S REAL PROPERTY IMPROVEMENT
AUTHORIZATION FORM OF CITY'S LICENSE AGREEMENT.

LANDSCAPE NOTES
1. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING AND PROPOSED SITE

ELEMENTS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.
SURVEY DATA OF EXISTING CONDITIONS WAS SUPPLIED BY OTHERS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY CONFLICTS.
CONTRACTOR SHALL EXERCISE CAUTION WHEN WORKING IN THE
VICINITY OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION PERMITS.

4. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM 2% SLOPE AWAY FROM ALL
STRUCTURES.

5. ALL PLANTING BEDS AND LAWN AREAS TO BE SEPARATED BY STEEL
EDGING.  NO STEEL TO BE INSTALLED ADJACENT TO SIDEWALKS OR
CURBS.

6. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS TO BE 100% IRRIGATED WITH AN
UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION SYSTEM AND SHALL
INCLUDE RAIN AND FREEZE SENSORS.

7. ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE SOLID SOD BERMUDAGRASS, UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS.

8. ALL PLANTING AREAS THAT ARE TO RECEIVE MULCH SHALL BE
MULCHED WITH 4 INCHES OF DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD
MULCH.

SOLID SOD NOTES
1. FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE FINAL CONTOURS INDICATED.

LEAVE AREAS TO RECEIVE TOPSOIL 3" BELOW FINAL DESIRED 
GRADE IN PLANTING AREAS AND 1" BELOW FINAL GRADE IN TURF
AREAS.

2. ADJUST CONTOURS TO ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM
BUILDINGS.  PROVIDE UNIFORM ROUNDING AT TOP AND BOTTOM
OF SLOPES AND OTHER BREAKS IN GRADE.  CORRECT 
IRREGULARITIES AND AREAS WHERE WATER MAY STAND.

3. ALL LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SOLID SOD SHALL BE LEFT IN A 
MAXIMUM OF 1" BELOW FINAL FINISH GRADE.  CONTRACTOR TO
COORDINATE OPERATIONS WITH ON-SITE CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGER.

4. CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE WITH ON-SITE CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER FOR AVAILABILITY OF EXISTING TOPSOIL.

5. PLANT SOD BY HAND TO COVER INDICATED AREA COMPLETELY.
INSURE EDGES OF SOD ARE TOUCHING.  TOP DRESS JOINTS BY
HAND WITH TOPSOIL TO FILL VOIDS.

6. ROLL GRASS AREAS TO ACHIEVE A SMOOTH, EVEN SURFACE, FREE
FROM UNNATURAL UNDULATIONS.

7. WATER SOD THOROUGHLY AS SOD OPERATION PROGRESSES.

8. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL LAWN AREAS UNTIL FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE.  THIS SHALL INCLUDE, BUT NOT LIMITED TO:  
MOWING, WATERING, WEEDING, CULTIVATING, CLEANING AND 
REPLACING DEAD OR BARE AREAS TO KEEP PLANTS IN A 
VIGOROUS, HEALTHY CONDITION.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL GUARANTEE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN 
ACCEPTABLE TURF AREA AND SHALL PROVIDE REPLACEMENT 
FROM LOCAL SUPPLY IF NECESSARY.

10. IF INSTALLATION OCCURS BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 1 AND MARCH 1,
ALL SOD AREAS TO BE OVER-SEEDED WITH WINTER RYEGRASS, AT
A RATE OF (4) POUNDS PER ONE THOUSAND (1000) SQUARE FEET.

1. FINE GRADE AREAS TO ACHIEVE FINAL CONTOURS INDICATED ON CIVIL
PLANS.

2. ADJUST CONTOURS TO ACHIEVE POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM 
BUILDINGS.  PROVIDE UNIFORM ROUNDING AT TOP AND BOTTOM OF 
SLOPES AND OTHER BREAKS IN GRADE.  CORRECT IRREGULARITIES 
AND AREAS WHERE WATER MAY STAND.

3. ALL LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SOLID SOD SHALL BE LEFT IN A MAXIMUM
OF 1" BELOW FINAL FINISH GRADE.  CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE 
OPERATIONS WITH ON-SITE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

4. IMPORTED TOPSOIL SHALL BE NATURAL, FRIABLE SOIL FROM THE 
REGION, KNOWN AS BOTTOM AND SOIL, FREE FROM LUMPS, CLAY, 
TOXIC SUBSTANCES, ROOTS, DEBRIS, VEGETATION, STONES, 
CONTAINING NO SALT AND BLACK TO BROWN IN COLOR.

5. ALL LAWN AREAS TO BE FINE GRADED, IRRIGATION TRENCHES 
COMPLETELY SETTLED, AND FINISH GRADE APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER OR ARCHITECT PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

6. ALL ROCKS 3/4" DIAMETER AND LARGER, DIRT CLODS, STICKS, 
CONCRETE SPOILS, ETC. SHALL BE REMOVED PRIOR TO PLACING 
TOPSOIL AND ANY LAWN INSTALLATION

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE (1") ONE INCH OF IMPORTED TOPSOIL ON
ALL AREAS TO RECEIVE LAWN.

GENERAL LAWN NOTES

BOTANICAL NAME

Ulmus crassifolia
Lagerstroema indica
Quercus virginiana
Quercus rubra
Ilex vomitoria

COMMON NAME

Cedar Elm
Crepe Myrtle
Live Oak
Red Oak
Yaupon Holly

SIZE

4" cal.
3" cal.
4" cal.
4" cal.
3" cal.

PLANT MATERIAL SCHEDULE

REMARKS

container, 12' ht. 5' spread, 5' clear straight trunk
container, 10' ht. 4' spread, 3 or 5 canes
container, 12' ht. 5' spread, 5' clear straight trunk
container, 12' ht. 5' spread, 5' clear straight trunk
container, 10' ht. 4' spread, 3 or 5 canes

QTY

30
33
33
16
11

TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVERS
BOTANICAL NAME

Cynodon dactylon '419'

COMMON NAME

'419' Bermuda grass

SIZE

solid sod

REMARKS

solid sod refer to notes

TYPE

CE
CM
LO
RO
YH

QTYTYPE

BOTANICAL NAME

Myrica cerifera

COMMON NAME

Wax Myrtle

SIZE

24" HT.

REMARKS

container, 24" ht., 20" spread

QTY

660

TYPE

WM

NOTE:  Plant list is an aid to bidders only.  Contractor shall verify all quantities on plan.  All heights and spreads are minimums.  All plant material
shall meet or exceed remarks as indicated.  All trees to have straight trunks and be matching within varieties.

AR
AP

AH
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

CITY OF GARLAND

AR
AP

AH
O

 R
O

AD
 &

 G
AL

AX
IE

 R
O

AD
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

G
AR

LA
N

D
, T

EX
AS

(Case Number 210928-1)

PROJECT SITE

PINEWOOD DR

ROBIN HILL LN

RIPPLEWOOD DR

TEAKWOOD DR

LA
R

G
O

 T
R

AI
L

ARAPAHO RD

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

G
AL

AX
IE

 R
D

TEAKWOOD DR

RIPPLEWOOD DR

ROBIN HILL LN

PINEWOOD DR

LANCER LN

CHARIOT LN

ROYALTY DR ROYALTY DR

CHARIOT LN

BOTELLO DR

W
YR

IC
K 

LN
R

O
YA

LT
Y 

D
R

ST GEORGE DRST GEORGE DR

D
R

AW
N

BR
ID

G
E 

LN

C
AL

LE
JO

 R
D

LONGBOW DR

NOBLE LN

FRIAR LN

R
O

YA
LS

H
IR

E 
LN

R
O

U
N

D
TA

BL
E 

LN

VICINITY MAP
N.T.S.

OWNER/APPLICANT
FIRST INFRA LLC

1925 E BELTLINE ROAD
CARROLLTON, TEXAS 75006

PH: 408-992-5558
CONTACT: BHARATH NANDIGAM

ENGINEER
KIRKMAN ENGINEERING, LLC

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

PH: 817-488-4960
CONTACT: JOHN GARDNER, PE

SURVEYOR
BARTON CHAPA SURVEYING

5200 STATE HIGHWAY 121
COLLEYVILLE, TX 76034

PH: 817-864-1957
CONTACT: JACK BARTON, RPLS

CITY COMMENTS 11.09.2022

PLANT LEGEND

CEDAR ELM- 4" CALIPER

LIVE OAK- 4" CALIPER

RED OAK- 4" CALIPER

CREPE MYRTLE- 3" CALIPER

WAX MYRTLE- 24" HEIGHT

FENCE / SCREEN SECTION
NOT TO SCALE

BRICK COLUMNS / METAL FENCE ELEVATION
NOT TO SCALE

CITY COMMENTS 12.06.2022

YAUPON HOLLY- 3" CALIPER

CITY COMMENTS 01.10.2023
CITY COMMENTS 01.24.2023

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRS

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-401

Buildings 6 & 9 Elevations

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION
1

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION
2

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION
3

1/8" = 1'-0"
RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

4
1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDINGS 6 & 9 ELEVATIONSBUILDINGS 6 & 9 ELEVATIONS

GRAY WOOD BRACKETS GRAY DENTILS GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY BARN LIGHT BACK-PLATED ALUMINUM HOUSE NUMBER ALUMINUM CLADED FRAMING
OFF-WHITE

3-STEP STUCCO

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY METAL AWNINGOFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

1.
2.
3.

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

ROOF GABLES WITH WINDOWS
SPLIT GARAGE DOORS
ROOF PITCHES OF 12:12

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

OFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY WOOD ROOF BRACKETBARN LIGHT GRAY METAL AWNING

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

GABLE ROOF WITH WINDOW

840

1,761

2,136

4,737

1,820

1,879

786

4,485

1,013

420

76

1,509

67

28

5

100

40

42

18

100

18

37

45

100

1,013

420

76

1,509

67

28

5

100

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-402

Buildings 1 & 8 Elevations

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION
1

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION
2

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION
3

1/8" = 1'-0"
RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

4
1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDINGS 1 & 8 ELEVATIONSBUILDINGS 1 & 8 ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

GRAY STANDIN SEAM 
METAL ROOF GRAY WOOD ROOF BRACKETS

GRAY TRIM DENTILBARN LIGHTBACK-PLATED ALUMINUM
HOUSE NUMBER

OFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO

GRAY METAL AWNING

GRAY STANDING SEAM ROOF GRAY TRIM DENTIL

GRAY WOOD 
ROOF BRACKET

OFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY METAL AWNINGGRAY METAL SHED ROOF

GABLE ROOF WITH  WINDOW

1,200

1,262

1,426

3,888

1,420

1,388

608

3,416

1,007

310

80

1,397

987

330

80

1,397

70

24

6

100

72

22

6

100

42

40

18

100

70

24

6

100

1.
2.
3.

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

ROOF GABLES WITH WINDOWS
SPLIT GARAGE DOORS
ROOF PITCHES OF 12:12

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

GABLE ROOF WITH  WINDOW

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-403

Buildings 2 & 4 Elevations

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION
1

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION
2

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION
3

1/8" = 1'-0"

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION
4

1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDINGS 2 & 4 ELEVATIONSBUILDINGS 2 & 4 ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

GRAY ROOF BRACKET GRAY TRIM DENTIL BACK-PLATED ALUMINUM
HOUSE NUMBER

BARN LIGHT

GRAY METAL AWNING GRAY ALUMINUM CLADED TRIMDARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF
OFF-WHITE

3-STEP STUCCO

1,194

1,310

2,082

4,586

1,880

1,846

930

4,656

1,282

220

80

1,582

81

14

5

100

40

40

20

100

26

29

45

100

1,282

220

80

1,582

81

14

5

100

1.
2.
3.

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

ROOF GABLES WITH WINDOWS
SPLIT GARAGE DOORS
ROOF PITCHES OF 12:12

12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-404

Buildings 3, 5 & 7 Elevations

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION
1

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION
2

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION
3

1/8" = 1'-0"
RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

4
1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDINGS 3, 5 & 7 ELEVATIONSBUILDINGS 3, 5 & 7 ELEVATIONS

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

12:12 12:12 12:12

GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY TRIM DENTIL GRAY TRIM DENTIL

BARN LIGHT
BACK-PLATED

ALUMINUM HOUSE NUMBER

OFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO

GRAY METAL AWNING
ALUMINUM CLADED TRIM

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

12:12

12:12

12:1212:1212:12

12:12
12:12

12:12

GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY TRIM DENTIL
OFF-WHITE

3-STEP STUCCO

GRAY ROOF BRACKET

BARN LIGHT

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY METAL AWNING GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL SHED ROOF

1,451

1,610

2,184

5,245

2,050

1,820

786

4,656

985

450

76

1,511

65

30

5

100

44

39

17

100

28

30

42

100

985

450

76

1,511

65

30

5

100

1.
2.
3.

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

ROOF GABLES WITH WINDOWS
SPLIT GARAGE DOORS
ROOF PITCHES OF 12:12

SPLIT GARAGE DOORSSPLIT GARAGE DOORS

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW
ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOWROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW
ROOF GABLE WITH WINDOWROOF GABLE WITH WINDOW

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-405

Building 10 Elevations

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION
1

1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION
2

1/8" = 1'-0"

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION
3

1/8" = 1'-0"
RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

4
1/8" = 1'-0"

BUILDINGS 10 ELEVATIONBUILDINGS 10 ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATIONFRONT ELEVATION SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

SQ. FT.SQ. FT. PERCENTPERCENT

REAR ELEVATIONREAR ELEVATION

RIGHT ELEVATIONRIGHT ELEVATION

LEFT ELEVATIONLEFT ELEVATION

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

STUCCO

BRICK

GLAZING

TOTALTOTAL

GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF
GRAY ROOF BRACKET GRAY BARN LIGHT GRAY TRIM DENTIL

GABLE ROOF WITH WINDOW

BACK-PLATED ALUMINUM
HOUSE NUMBER

GRAY METAL AWNINGALUMINUM CLADED TRIM

GRAY STANDIN SEAM METAL SHED ROOF

OFF-WHITE
3-STEP STUCCO

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY STANDING SEAM METAL ROOF GRAY TRIM DENTIL GRAY ROOF BRACKET
OFF-WHITE

3-STEP STUCCO

DARK GRAY BRICK
("BOOTLEGGER," HEBRON BRICK)

GRAY METAL AWNING

GABLE ROOF WITH WINDOW

1,276

1,310

1,802

4,388

1,456

1,150

680

3,286

1,059

270

80

1,409

75

19

6

100

44

35

21

100

29

30

41

100

1,059

270

80

1,409

75

19

6

100

1.
2.
3.

ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS:

ROOF GABLES WITH WINDOWS
SPLIT GARAGE DOORS
ROOF PITCHES OF 12:12

SPLIT GARAGE DOORS SPLIT GARAGE DOORSSPLIT GARAGE DOORS

12:12 SLOPED ROOF12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF

12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF 12:12 SLOPED ROOF
12:12 
SLOPED 
ROOF

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



SHEET CONTENT

PROJECT No.

DESIGNED BY : DRAWN BY :

DATE ISSUED :

SHEET No.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

REVISIONS

TAG REVISION
DATE

REVISION
DESCRIPTION

1

2

3

BUILDING PERMIT COMMENT

2 3 4 5

D

C

B

A

D

C

B

A

1

2 3 4 51

A-500

Townhome Cross Section

Project Number

A
RA

PA
H

O
 T

O
W

N
H

O
M

ES
A

RA
PA

H
O

 T
O

W
N

H
O

M
ES

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D

FI
RS

T 
IN

FR
A

 L
LC

-

jcabaya jaabaya

01.04.2023

0000-00-00 DESCRIPTION

A
RA

PA
H

O
 R

O
A

D
, G

A
RL

A
N

D
 , 

TE
XA

S 
 7

50
44

N
O

T 
FO

R
N

O
T 

FO
R

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTIONNOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Nabiha Ahmed
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



   
 

               

        Z 22-65 
 

  

View of the subject property  West of the subject property 

 

 

 

 

 North of the subject property  
 
 
 
 

South of the subject property  



1--- - - - NOBLE LN-----1 

3 
w 
(!) 
0 

~==:;:===~===~===~===::::; ir ! 
0 

1--- --- FRIAR LN - - -----j 

5013 

5009 

5005 

5001 

0 
Q'. 
w 

~ 
[ I I I I lJ?I I I I LL_I l-t----_ 

2926 2918 2910 2902 

2929 2925 2921 2917 2913 2909 2905 * 2829 

282 

2825 2821 2817 2813 2809 2805 

2802 

2801 
~ r 

t 
~ 

2 

~ 
13 -----------,--------- ·· ·-LANCER LN - - ------ -----------------1 

5006 

3029 

0 
I 

3021 
3015 

3011 

140 
I 

3009\3005 I 3001 
1013 ' 

280 Feet 
I 1 inch= 211 feet 

2918 \291 4\2910\2906\2902 1M oi \2822 \ I 281J2a10\ 2806 \ 2802 
~" 2826 2818 

___ _,_ ________ ARAPAHO RD-----------------...1. __ 2701 

l_J....1-_ 13_._\ 2_909 \2905 \2901 \2829 \2825\ 2821 1281 7I 2813\2809\2805 \2801 \2733 12729 /27 

s _F _:_? _---TEAKWOOD DR------ ------

283Q 2~~ 2822I 281 ~ 281 

RIPPLEWOOD DR 

ZONING MAP Z 22-65 Ill INDICATES AREA O INDICATES 
OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

2801 & 2901 Arapaho Road 



Zoning Response Case Comments 
Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Mya grochal 

2/9/2023 
3:32:24 PM 

James Bolin 

2/9/2023 
2:00:59 AM 

Lindsay 

2/8/2023 
6:30:23 PM 

PC Hearing Date 

Februa1·y 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Z 22-65 Ki1·kman Engineering. The applicant requests approval of fifty-five (55) 
townhouses . The site is currently zoned to allow townhouses; however , the 
applicant requests modifications from the Gai·land Development Code. The site 
is located at 2801 and 2901 Arapaho Road. (District 7) 

Against 

800 west renner 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

Against 

2901 Lancer Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Outside the Notification Area 

bolin 1320@aol.com 

214-605-2517 

55 townhomes will increase already congested traffic on Arapaho and side 
streets as commuters will navigate neighborhoods not intended for through 
traffic. This presents increased congestion and pollution. It also presents a 
safety risk to current residents in the surrounding area. Townhomes this 
close in the vicinity to the neighboring single family homes will unfairly 
decrease property values of existing homeowners. Removal of the green 
area will increase pollution in the immediate vicinity .. 

Against 

2621 lvanridge Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Outside the Notific-atlon Area 

Page 1 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Vanessa 
Salazar-Sowell 
2/8/2023 
4:50:09 AM 

Omar Buhidma 

2/7/2023 
9:34:53 PM 

Allison Drake 

2/7/2023 
9:29:35 PM 

Susan Nye 

2/7/2023 
8:46:09 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Against 

3214 Heathercrest Dr 

Garland 

Outside the Notific~tion Area 

vys.sowell@gmail.com 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

For 

1607 University Drive 

Richardson 

TX 
United States 

75081 

2146828701 

Outside the Notification Area 

citizen@buhidma.net 

5128432437 

Always happy to welcome new neighbors! 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

6102 Shattuck drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

I would be for if there were less homes. 55 seems like a lot for that parcel of 
land. 

Against Outside the Notification Arna 

3442 King Arthur Drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

Page 2 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Christine 
Richey 

2/7/2023 
8:12:45 PM 

Lake Harsaran 

2/7/2023 
7:44:02 PM 

Pat Gryn 

2/7/2023 
7:19:14 PM 

Jean klimiuk 

2/7/2023 
7:10:15 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

<null> 

Against 

5533 Excalibur Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Outside the Notification Area 

Christinesrichey@gmail.com 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2305 Jamaica Pl 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

The traffic is already HORRIBLE there. Think about two cars times 55 
homes more. Please think about us who live here and have to use that road. 

Against 

2825 Ursa Cir 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

To much traffic 

Against 

2826 teakwood dr 

Garland 

Texas 

Outside the Nntificatirm Area 

seniorlady@verizin.net 

214-641-5717 

Page 3 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Na 

2/7/2023 
6:33:02 PM 

Georgia V 

2/7/2023 
6:28:16 PM 

Mike McClure 

2/7/2023 
6:23:00 PM 

L Ferguson 

2/7/2023 
5:47:02 PM 

PC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3213 Noble Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2702 Phillips Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

5402 Castleview Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

For Outside the Notification Area 

2502 Westbank Trail 

Garland 

Page 4 of 10 

P lanner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Duran Hovland 

2/7/2023 
4:06:45 PM 

Lynda Stevens 

2/7/2023 
3:59:39 PM 

Patricia Keller 

2/7/2023 
3:55:13 PM 

P C Hearing Date 

F ebr uary 13, 2023 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

It's great to see development in Garland. Looking forward to seeing this 
come to fruition. 

Against 

3002 TEAKWOOD DR 

GARLAND 

TX 
United States 

75044 

dmandallas2004@yahoo.com 

AGAINST Outside the Notification Area 

2214 Jasmine Lane 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

We do not want this! 

lgstevens 1 @verizon.net 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3409 Altair Dr pmb0417@sbcglobal.net 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

956-371-0373 

Another multi-family complex equates to more traffic, more congestion, more 
of a drain on public resources and possibly more crime should the 
town homes transition to rentals. I cannot support this zoning change. I am 
not able to attend the meeting on February 13, but would voice my 
objections if I were able to be there. 

Page 5 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Karen Brack 

2/7/2023 
3:52:43 PM 

C. Holiwell 

2/7/2023 
2:55:21 PM 

C. Holiwell 

217/2023 
2:55:19 PM 

Lee Yeung 

2/7/2023 
4:31 :13 AM 

P C Hea ring Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2417 Centaurus Drive 

Garland 

TX 
United States 

75044 

kwbrack 18@gmail.com 

2144771151 

That's too many homes! The roads are already too congested 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

5406 Kirkridge Place 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

cherylmagee64@gmail.com 

2145633103 

Against Outside the Notifrc::Jtion Area 

5406 Kirkridge Place 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

cherylmagee64@gmail.com 

2145633103 

Against 

Camelot 

Garland 

Texas 

Outside the Notification Area 

United States 

<null> 

Proposed townhomes are 3 stories. Backyard privacy concerns. 

Page 6 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Marina 

217/2023 
4:30:52 AM 

Sandra Knauf 

217/2023 
4:07:15 AM 

Alma Maricic 

217/2023 
2:14:16 AM 

Jay Pecheux 

2/7/2023 
1:37:05 AM 

PC Hearing Da te CC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 March 7, 2023 

Against 

Chariot Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

<null> 

Against 
Outside the Notification Area 

3504 Taurus Drive sandy.knauf@gmail.com 

Garland 

TX 
United States 

75044 

2147381406 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

This will negatively impact current traffic issues in the area. 

Against 

2830 Lancer In 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

almamaricic@yahoo.com 

Against Outside the Notificati0n Area 

2929 Holy Cross Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Page 7 of 10 

jaypecheux@gmail.com 

8324777472 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Jay Pecheux 

2/7/2023 
1:37:03 AM 

Stacy Morris 

2/6/2023 
3:42:34 AM 

Debra Segal 

2/5/2023 
2:12:53 PM 

Samantha Head 

2/5/2023 
2:33:54 AM 

PC Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

It's single homes all around .. that doens't make sense to put townhomes 
there. 

Against 
Outside the Not"icatinn Area 

2929 Holy Cross Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

jaypecheux@gmail.com 

8324777472 

It's single homes all around .. that doens't make sense to put townhomes 
there. 

Against Outside the N:)tification Area 

3102 Castle Rock Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

stacymorris87@gmail.com 

Garland does not need any more multi family housing units the the Arapaho 
area. 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2922 Royalty Dr 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

deb.seg.will@gmail.com 

4698658942 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

2705 Hazelwood 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

Page 8 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

Mary 
Henderson 
2/5/2023 
2:07:56 AM 

S Southward 

2/5/2023 
1:03:18AM 

Jennifer Hunter 

2/5/2023 
12:55:55 AM 

Rochelle Ran 

P C Hearing Date 

February 13, 2023 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

March 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

55 homes in that small of a space is not reasonable. It will overcrowd the 
area. 

Against Outside th N . . 
e ot1ficat1on Area 

7509 Wellesley Ave Henderson.Mary.l@gmail.com 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Townhomes in this area will further stress infrastructure and increase 
populations in local schools that are already stretched 

Against Outside the Notification Area 

3214 Christie 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

Against 

5001 Drawbridge Ln 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

jenniferhunter14@gmail.com 

8176148206 

This is a ridiculous plan. The space is too small, for starters. With the 
economy the way that it is and people already struggling, it makes absolutely 
no sense whatsoever to add something to the neighborhood that would 
make property taxes rise. It would make MORE sense for this developer to 
buy property that needs a facelift and leave some green spaces for our 
community. The amount of wildlife being run out of the area is staggering. Do 
better, City of Garland. 

Against 

Page 9 of 10 



Case Number 

Z 22-65 

2/4/2023 
9:57:57 PM 

P C Heai-ing Date 

F ebruary 13, 2023 

2918 Teakwood Drive 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

CC Hearing Date 

Mai·ch 7, 2023 

Planner Name 

Nabiha Ahmed 

Rochelletrachier@gmail.com 

I am against townhomes in any capacity. We have already destroyed so 
much blackland prairie. 

Page 10 of 10 



Comment Form 
Case Z 22-65 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. The applicant requests approval of fifty-five (55) townhouses. 
The site is currently zoned to allow townhouses; however, the applicant requests 
modifications from the Garland Development Code. The site is located at 2801 and 2901 
Arapaho Road. (District 7) 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. El solicitante solicita la aprobaci6n de cincuenta y cinco (55) 
casas adosadas. El sitio actualmente esta dividido en zonas para permltir casas adosadas; 
sin embargo, el solicitante solicita modificaciones del C6digo de Desarrollo de Garland. El 
sitio esta ubicado en 2801 y 2901 Arapaho Road. (Distrito 7) 

Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering. Ngu,ai n9p do,n yeu cau phe duytt nam mu,o,i lam (55) can nha 
pho. f>ja di6m hitn dang dlJ'Q'C khoanh vun9 dit cho phep xay di,ng nha pho; tuy nhien, nglJ'ai 
n9p d0'n yeu c4u sll'a d6i 89 lutt Phat trien Garland. Dja diltm nay t9a lfc t~i 2801 va 2901 
Arapaho Road. (Qu,n 7) ' ' 

Please Check One Below / Marque uno a continuaci6n / Vui long kiim tra m9t ben dl.1'6'i 

D For / A Favor / Bung 

Against I En Contra / Khong 
Please complete the folio · g information and email the form to Planning@qarlandtx.gov; deliver to the Planning 
Department at 800 Main treet Garland, TX; or mail to City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Por favor Complete la siguiente informaci6n y envie el formulario por correo electr6nico 
a Planning@garlandtx.gov; entregar al Departamento de Planificaci6n en 800 Main Street Garland, TX; o envielo 
por correo a City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Vui long dien day du 
thong tin sau va g(pi biltu mau qua email t6'i ,Planning@garlandtx.gov; giao cho Phong Ke hotch l\li 800 Main Street 
Garland, TX; hoic gLPi thu, den Thanh ph6 Garland, Sa Ke hotch, P.O. H9p 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002. 

~ £(W1dwz_ 
Printed Name & Title I Nombre lmpreso y Titulo I Ten in va Tieu d~ 
(Property Owner, Business Owner, Tenant, etc.) I (Dueno de la propiedad, Dueno de la empress, lnquilino, etc.) I (Chu so hiiu bat dong san, Chu doanh 
nghi~p, Ngwi thue, v. v.) 

. . ~ .. 

3010 Lgw « ilr'" 
Your Property Address/ La direcci6n de su propiedad I dja chi_tai san 

City, State I Estado de la Ciudad / Thanh bang 

Signature I Fi / Ch 0, ky Date / Fecha / N y 
(Providing email d ess and phone number is optional. I La direcci6n de correo electr6nico y el numero de telefono son opcionales. / Oja chi 
email va s6 di~n t ~i la tuy chQn.) 



Comment Form Continued -
Case Z 22-65 

The statements below reflect my (our) opinion regarding the proposed request(s). 
Las declaraciones a continuaci6n reflejan mi (nuestra) opinion con respecto a 
las solicitudes propuestas. 

Cac tuyen b6 dlJ'&i day phan anh quan di~m cua toi (ch(mg toi) v~ (cac) yeu 
c~u dlJ'Q'C a~ xu~t 





Monthly Newsletter of the Camelot Neighborhood Association, Inc.                          FEBRUARY 2023 

  

The Knightly News 

 

 

 

Guardrail saves the day again… 

and again 

By Peggy Sorrentino, Civic Interest Chair 

On April 29, 2009, when a 
car crashed from Arapaho 
and destroyed two of my 
neighbors’ backyards and 
fences, just missing one of 
my neighbors, I decided to 
do some investigating. I 
knocked on neighbors’ 
doors and discovered these crashes had been increasing 
over the years as traffic increased.  

One of the people I met, Dawn, a fellow cat lover who 
lived at 3102 Brook Glen, had already had her fence  
destroyed three times by cars crashing into her fence and 
yard from Arapaho. She helped me in my three-year  
campaign to get the city to put up a guardrail to protect us. 
The guardrail was completed in 2012, and protects about 
seventy homes in the area. Sadly, Dawn is no longer with 
us.  

For the third time I know of 
since 2012, the guardrail  
prevented a car from destroy-
ing a homeowner’s fence or 
worse, this time at Dawn’s 
former home. This crash  
occurred in December 2022, 

and the city sent a crew to do 
a full repair of the guardrail 
on January 5, 2023. Another 
car crash happened on Janu-
ary 9, in exactly the same 
spot, looking more severe as 
the rail was bent, and multiple 
posts are missing.  

Now the city has to fix it again, but at least the homeown-
er’s fence, pets, or people who might have been in the 
way with no guardrail are okay.  

President’s Corner 

By Joe Thomas 

This month brings more news on the development 
front near Camelot. I got a call from one of the  
managers at Callejo Commercial Properties. (You’ve 
probably seen their sign in the vacant area behind the 
Murphy Gas station.) He told me they have finalized 
deals with two companies to build on that property. 

First is a new coffee chain called Dutch 
Brothers Coffee that came to Texas for 
the first time in 2021. Based in Oregon, 
they have a great story. See it at their 
website. https://www.dutchbros.com/ 

The other is a store you might already 
be familiar with – Sprouts Farmers 
Market. They are well known for their 
fresh produce and other higher end 
foodstuffs. https://www.sprouts.com/ 

On the east side of Shiloh a few blocks north  
of Arapaho, the progress on the new professional  
offices is coming along pretty quickly. Those will  
be occupied by doctors, dentists, and perhaps a law 
office or other professions like this. I do like that 
these are being built with a similar style to the other 
houses in the area so they won’t stick out like a boxy 
office building. 

After that Christmas freeze, we have had a pretty 
mild winter. Let’s hope that continues through  
February. 

Thanks again for supporting your neighborhood! 

    Joe 



 

The Knightly News 
is published monthly by the 

 

Camelot 
Neighborhood Association 

 

P. O. Box 452631 
Garland, TX 75045-2631 

 

 

Important Phone Numbers 
 

Police, Fire, Ambulance 
  Emergency          911 

 

City of Garland 
Information  972-205-2000 
After Hours/Weekends  
  972-205-3210 
Animal Services  972-205-3570 
Building Inspection  972-205-2300 
Code Compliance  972-485-6400 
Career Opportunities  972-205-2475 
Environmental Waste  972-205-3500 
Fair Housing  972-205-3300 
Granville Arts Center 
  Theater/Atrium Rental  972-205-2780 
  Box Office  972-205-2790 
Health Department  972-205-3460 
Public Health  972-205-3370 
Libraries  972-205-2500 
  Central  972-205-2524 
  North Garland  972-205-2802 
  South Garland  972-205-3920 
  Walnut Creek  972-205-2586 
Mayor’s Office  972-205-2400 
Municipal Court  972-205-2330 
Neighborhood Vitality 972-205-2445 
Parking Enforcement  972-205-2222 
Parks & Recreation  972-205-2750 
Public Safety 
  Police Non-Emergency  972-485-4840 
  Crimestoppers  972-272-TIPS 
  Fire Non-Emergency  972-781-7100 
Streets  972-205-3555 
Traffic Signal  
  Malfunction    972-205-3250 
Utility Services 
  Customer Service  972-205-2671 
  Water Department  972-205-3210 
  Streetlight Repair  972-205-3483 
  GP&L Power Outage  972-205-3000 
  Line Location                   811 
  Atmos Energy 1-866-322-8667 
  Oncor 1-800-233-2133 
Other Numbers 
Poison Control         1-800-222-1222 
Texas Department of  
  Public Safety  972-861-2000 
 

Neighborhood Police Officer 
Officer Chandler Brown 

brownc@garlandtx.org 
972-205-4065 

 

Newsletter 
Website 

Facebook 
 

Cynthia Houck 
CNAcommunications@camelotna.com 

214-575-7530 
 

 
 

CNA Website 
www.camelotna.com 

 

 

Page 2 The Knightly News 

 

“Like” CNA and bookmark us. 

Visit CNA on 

Facebook! 
 

 

Website Ad Rate 
 

$100/year 
 

To set up an ad, contact 
coordinator@camelotna.com 

 

Nextdoor Camelot 
 

Joe Thomas 
joethomasjr@gmail.com 

214-218-2227 @camelotnagarland 

Executive Board 
 

President 
Joe Thomas                    214-218-2227 
                       joethomasjr@gmail.com 
 

Vice President 
Becky Thurmond           972-955-5109 
                            beckyth@verizon.net 
 

Secretary 
Debbie Rima                  972-495-6476 
                       debbierima@yahoo.com 
 

Treasurer 
Jo-Sandra Greenberg      972-814-0777 
                          josandra1@gmail.com 
 

Beautification Committee 
Reba Collins                   972-742-0312 
                         rcollins20@verizon.net 
 

Civic Interest Committee 
Peggy Sorrentino            214-629-4923 
                           bob.tino@verizon.net 
 

Code Compliance Committee 
Rick Williams                214-535-2648 
                            rickwilli@gmail.com 
 

Crime & Safety Committee 
Becky Thurmond           972-955-5109 
                            beckyth@verizon.net 
 
 

Membership Committee 
Joe Thomas                    214-218-2227 
                       joethomasjr@gmail.com 
 

 Social Committee 
Diana Thomas                562-505-8728 
            dianamthomas777@gmail.com 

Monthly Gift Card Draw winner 

for January 

By Joe Thomas, Membership Chair 

The winners for the first drawing of 2023 are Aaron 
and Rachel Basinger of Galaxie Road. They got a  
$10 gift card to Desperados. 

They bought the house, built in 1983, from the  
Palmers, who were the original owners. They are 
both native Texans as Rachel grew up in Sugarland 
and Aaron in Plano. They met during their college 
years at Baylor University. 

They moved to Camelot from Amarillo where Rachel 
had been attending Texas Tech University School of 
Pharmacy. She currently works as a pharmacist and 
has since 2013. Aaron has been teaching at John Paul 
II High School since 2007. They are members of St. 
Joseph’s Church. 

Their household includes Gus the dog and Mr.  
Mittens the cat (who moved in and made himself at 
home), as well as four chickens. They really enjoy 
the backyard that backs up to the northernmost pond. 

They like to spend time outdoors, whether it is hunt-
ing, fishing or hiking, and just traveling in general. 
They have been to Europe and plan to go to Italy this 
summer to celebrate their 15th wedding anniversary. 

Next month’s winner will get an email from  
joethomasjr@gmail.com so add that to your contacts 
now so it doesn’t go to junk mail. 



Page 3 www.camelotna.com 

What is fun, quirky, eclectic and smells good? When  
you walk into this shop at 510 Main Street in downtown 
Garland, you are met with the wonderful aroma of  
incense, handmade candles, and soap. 

The shop is a beautifully  
decorated homage to the past 
with a modern twist. I had  
a wonderful chat with co-
owners Trayc and Karin and 
gave them four vintage 1970s 
Hawaiian shirts, two pieces 
of vintage jewelry, and a 
1960s hat. In an effort to  
support the businesses in 
downtown Garland in the 
final year of the square con-
struction project, I am visit-

ing at least one business per month and either donating 
items they can use or purchasing items from them.  

Trayc is an artist who paints 
and has an eye for exceptional 
vintage clothing, and Karin is 
an artist who makes jewelry 
and finds incredible vintage 
glassware. They are both very 
complimentary to the city  
of Garland for listening to 
them and working with them 
through this process.  

This is an ideal place to come 
for a unique gift. I only 
looked at a fraction of the items in the store, and two 
things that caught my eye were a stunning 1980s black 
dress with sequined sleeves and a beautiful set of 1970s 
drinking glasses embossed with yellow flowers. 

The Frocksy Vintage Vogue 

By Peggy Sorrentino, Civic Interest Chair 

TRAYC & KARIN 

CAMELOT NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION 
TREASURER’S REPORT FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, 2022 
Jo-Sandra Greenberg, Treasurer 

 

Balance as of 12/31/2021 $ 6,061.49 
 

Income 
Ads (website) $   100.00 
City of Garland Grant for Picnic/Food Drive     500.00 
Donations 250.00 
Membership (Checks/Cash) 4,337.50 
Membership (PayPal) 1,867.16 
Membership (Venmo) 1,274.07 
Picnic Food Tickets 72.00 
Miscellaneous Income       26.00 
Total Income  $ 8,426.73 
 

Expenses 
Bank Checks/Deposit Slips Reorder $     65.00 
Beautification Total $3,422.91 
 - Yard of the Month Gift Cards 225.00 
 - Shiloh Garden 261.44 
 - Entrance Medians. Signs, Sprinklers 959.00 
 - King Arthur Camelot Sign 177.47 
 - Median Maintenance (mowing only) 1,800.00 

Garland Police Awards Banquet Ad   250.00 
CNA Website     19.95 
Membership Expenses Total 515.58 
 - Flyers, Signs, Facebook ad, etc. 184.49 
 - Gift cards for monthly drawing 120.00 
 - Welcome Packets 211.09 

Newsletter Expenses 954.67 
Office Supplies 24.98 
Picnic Expenses 1,569.31 
P. O. Box Renewal Fee      182.00 
Postage 1,600.99 
Excalibur Award       38.00 
Total Expenses  $ 8,643.39 
 

Balance as of 12/31/2022  $ 5,844.83 

Spring Creek Forest Preserve - 

30
th

 Annual Trout Lily Walk  

Submitted by Dana Wilson 

Trout lilies are one of the first plants to flower in the 
spring. These tiny flowers form a carpet of blooms from 
about mid-February through mid-March then disappear 
until next year. Don’t miss chance to see the first wild-
flower display of 2023! 

Come on Sunday, February 26, any time between 2:00 
and 3:00 p.m. 

When you arrive, volunteers at the pavilion will welcome 
you and give you introductory information. Then we will 
send you along the clearly marked trail to the trout lily 
field. Tom Frey, our adviser, mentor, and friend, will be at 
the trout lily field. 

After you have seen the lilies and talked to Tom, you will 
walk along to the next marked spot, where we will have 
another knowledgeable naturalist who will tell you about 
the significance of that area of the Preserve. The volunteer 
naturalists will be at several stations along the trail from 
2:00 until the last walkers go through. 

This format allows folks to go at their own pace rather 
than having to follow a group; no one gets impatient wait-
ing for others to catch up, and each can spend as much 
time at a station as they want. Some like to spend a lot of 
time taking photos and discussing the forest. Others like 

to hear just a little bit and then move on. With this walk 
format, it is your choice. 

We hope to see you there! 

PHOTO BY CARROLL MAYHEW/NORTH TEXAS MASTER NATURALISTS 



Attendees: Joe Thomas, Peggy Sorrentino, Reba Collins, Becky 
Thurmond, Debbie Rima, Cynthia Houck, Dylan Hedrick,  
Jo-Sandra Greenberg, Diana Thomas, and Abra Nusser were 
present at the January 15, 2023, Zoom meeting. Welcome and 
President’s Remarks: Started at 6:33 p.m.   

Approval of Minutes: Diana moved to approve. Cynthia  
seconded. All approved. 

Council Member’s Remarks: Asian New Year Celebration was 
lots of fun. Judd Rex is our new City Manager; he will be offi-
cial on Tuesday, January 17. Capital improvement budgets  
projects are on the agenda, including fire trucks, dump trucks, 
new roads, new rec centers – spinning from bond program. Con-
struction on Callejo Road should start soon. Funding is  
being discussed for the new senior center. Big request is a pool 
for water aerobics; heated pool even better. Downtown square 
coming along really well. Becky said we need more security for 
the senior center, limiting access and keeping doors locked, 
making sure only seniors use the center. Dylan says the City is 
checking on senior centers in other cities to see how they are 
operating and how they handle issues. Peggy asked about  
completion date for downtown – probably end of year. Cynthia 
asked about location of senior center – same place. Also,  
Cynthia asked what’s going on with Walnut Branch Library. 
City had groundbreaking late last year; construction should be 
mobilized soon. Elections coming up soon for our city council 
member (and some others). Dylan is gathering signatures for his 
petition.   

Mayor’s Remarks: N/A 

Treasurer’s Report: Beginning balance in January was 
$5,844.83. Jo-Sandra found a discrepancy from 2021 of 
$249.10, which gave us $5,844.83 for beginning of 2023. Becky 
made the motion to accept the balance as read. Diane seconded. 
All approved. 

Membership: 147 members for 2023. 149 members this time last 
year. (108 have not renewed.) Flyer delivery teams have their 
packets. Becky asked if Joe was going to post anything on 
Nextdoor about joining. He has not, but will. Joe believes the 
flyer delivery is very important to grow our membership. 

Social: Discussed date for 2023 picnic. October 28 is too late.  
Consensus is October 21. 

Crime and Safety: Nothing much going on. 

Beautification: Nothing major going on. We usually start mow-
ing medians around middle of March so Reba is working on new 
contract. She’d like to give the contract to Ricky and will talk  
to him in February to see if he is able and willing to continue 
mowing for us. We should expect fee to go up as it is going up 
everywhere. 

Code Compliance: N/A 

Civic Interest: Peggy continues to visit businesses in downtown 
square. She went to Frocksy Vintage Vogue. Shops are amazing. 
Shop owners believe City is listening to them and working with 
them. Peggy is concerned about traffic on Arapaho and crashes 
into guardrails. (There have been two recently.) Recent guardrail 
crash prevented car from going into home. City fixed it, and then 
there was another big crash in same spot. Abra is the City Plan-
ner and will go look at area to help develop a plan to slow traffic 
down. 
                                                                          (Continued on Page 6) 

I hope everyone had a safe and happy holiday season! On City 
Council, we are moving into another one of our important budg-
eting seasons as we are now reviewing the proposed Capital 
Improvements Projects (CIP) budget. The CIP budget is a plan 
for funding projects which have a useful life of not less than five 
years and exceed $25,000 in cost. Approved projects in this year 
often have budget implications for future years as funding for 
projects such as buildings and utility improvements are  
often spread over multiple years. 

This year’s proposed CIP budget is the largest in city history  
at $557.9 million and includes $157.8 million for funding to 
continue the implementation of the 2019 Bond Program. During 
2023, fifty-four of the fifty-eight 2019 Bond Program projects 
and programs will be under way as we continue to meet our 
promise of delivering them as soon as possible. Additionally, the 
CIP includes $12.3 million for thirteen additional projects not 
included in the 2019 Bond Program, using funding from the 
American Rescue Plan Act. 

Park projects account for the majority of the tax-supported fund-
ing proposals with $69.5 million going toward the renovation or 
construction of Holford, Granger and Hollabaugh Recreation 
Centers, the new Garland Senior Activity Center, and trail devel-
opment, such as the Bisby Transmission Trail near Jupiter Road 
and Apollo Road. 

Over $60.5 million is allocated to street improvement projects, 
including southern Shiloh Road, Holford Road, Naaman School 
Road, and various bottleneck improvements throughout the city. 
The budget also includes funding for traffic signal equipment 

modernization projects to improve traffic flow through the city 
and railroad crossing improvements to smooth the roadways 
over the tracks. Public safety funding includes the construction 
of the new Fire Station 6, which is moving from Holford Road 
to north of President George Bush Turnpike and Campbell 
Road, and a permanent restroom facility at the Police training 
gun range. 

Funding is proposed for the construction of a new Walnut Creek 
Branch library, as well as modernization upgrades to Central and 
North Garland Libraries. We also proposed the funding of  
library kiosks throughout the city to spread library services to 
areas typically underserved or more distant from our four library 
locations. 

Utility-funded projects include the purchase of thirteen new 
pieces of equipment for the Sanitation Department, enhance-
ments to water transmission mains and distribution lines 
throughout the city, and $122.4 million for Garland Power & 
Light to fund ERCOT-driven reliability upgrades to transmission 
lines and substations. 

With the recent increase in property valuations, there is no  
proposed increase to the property tax rate for fiscal year 2022-
2023 to fund the CIP budget. However, we do anticipate a  
modest increase to sanitation and wastewater rates, but no  
increase to water or GP&L electric rates. 

I am looking forward to the upcoming meetings and discussions 
regarding our CIP budget and value your input in this process. 
Please contact me at 469-560-6099 or council7@garlandtx.gov 
if you have any questions or comments regarding the CIP  
budget or if there is anything I can do to assist you. It is my  
extreme pleasure to continue to serve the citizens of Garland and 
District 7. 

January CNA Meeting Minutes 

By Debbie Rima, Secretary 

Page 4 The Knightly News 

Council 7 Update 

By Dylan Hedrick, District 7 Council Member 



December 2022 Crime Stats  

By Becky Thurmond—Crime & Safety Committee Chair 

 

12/11  29XX Ivanridge Lane – Unauthorized Use Motor Vehicle 

Page 5 www.camelotna.com 

The Garland Police Department’s SWAT unit has a Hostage 
Negotiation Team, separate from the Tactical Team. The Tacti-
cal Team makes up most of the unit; these are the officers you 
see riding the Bearcat, wearing desert camo, helmets, heavy-duty 
vests, carrying long guns. They’re the people who will shoot tear 
gas and bash in doors if negotiations fail. 

The Negotiation Team officers go out with every SWAT call-out 
and go to work if there’s a barricaded person who is a threat.  
Even if the hostages have escaped, the subject may still be a 
threat. The hoped-for goal is a peaceful resolution to the incident 
by getting the subject to surrender and come out. 

The Negotiation Team is made up of a lieutenant and eight offic-
ers, all SWAT officers. Unlike big cities that have a dedicated 
SWAT team, all of the special unit officers in Garland continue 
with their work in patrol or traffic or investigations and only 
head to their specialized assignment when needed. 

The following roles define how the Negotiation Team operates. 

Primary negotiator. This is the person on the phone with the  
barricaded person, the one in the hot seat. His job is to establish 
communication, build trust, and slow everything down. He is 
actively listening to the subject, not planning his next response. 
This is where the coach comes in. 

Coach. This officer sits next to the primary negotiator and is the 
only person who can communicate with him. The coach is  
receiving information from other officers to pass on to the nego-
tiator, giving advice when the conversation is lagging or getting 
into a rut, helping with responses. All of this communication is 
done silently, either with handwritten notes or on a computer. 

Scribe. This officer is taking notes and making sure that abso-
lutely everything is written down and recorded. This is crucial 
for the subsequent investigation and court proceedings. 

Intelligence. The other officers on the team are gathering infor-
mation in person from family, friends, neighbors, coworkers, 
witnesses. They’re also researching the subject on the computer, 
obtaining background checks, looking into his social media pres-
ence and anywhere else police can get information. 

Lieutenant. The boss is keeping track of progress and whatever 
else is going on, making contingency plans with the tactical 
team, and communicating with other units as needed. 

The primary negotiator and coach are as isolated as possible 
from anybody and anything else. If at all possible, they’re in the 
specialized hostage team van. Besides needing to concentrate, 
it’s an important component of negotiations. The subject can get 
sidetracked and nervous if he hears other people or sounds on the 
phone. 

Everybody on the team is looking for hooks and triggers to help 
with the negotiations. Hooks are the things that get a positive 
reaction from the subject, the things he wants to talk about.  
Triggers are the things that the subject doesn’t want to discuss 
and that bring out a negative reaction. The negotiator wants to 
steer clear of anything that increases the subject’s anger and 
stick to the positive topics. 

It’s especially crucial that the negotiator never lies to the barri-
caded person. If the subject catches him in a lie, all trust is gone, 
and negotiations may be over. The negotiator will be straightfor-
ward and truthful in answering any questions that the barricaded 
person has. The answer may not be what the subject wants to 
hear, but it’s important that he’s answered honestly. 

 

It’s also important to realize that the barricaded person could 
have access to what’s going on outside. He may be watching the 
news coverage if it’s that big of a situation. He might be texting 
or checking the social media accounts of friends or family to see 
what they are saying or what they know. He could even be 
checking in with Nextdoor. Think of how common it is for  
people to post about police situations on Nextdoor, asking 
what’s going on, speculating, sharing information that may or 
may not be correct. If the PD is in the middle of a touchy situa-
tion, they might not want to risk any information leaking out. So 
we need to give them a break, be patient when we’re curious 
about what’s going on, and trust that they’ll let us know if we’re 
in any danger! 

The team has a variety of specialized tools and computer  
systems. Their van is set up to handle all of this equipment, 
along with providing a quiet place for the negotiator and coach. 
If at all possible, they try to get a throw phone to the suspect. It’s 
in a tough padded case and cabled to part of the computer system 
to avoid problems with a cell phone, like the battery giving out 
or static or spotty coverage. Since it’s cabled to the computer 
system, it also records everything said, which is needed for the 
subsequent investigation and can be as valuable to the defense as 
to the prosecutors. The computer system, which allows multiple 
devices like laptops to be connected, also helps with communi-
cations between all of the team members. Now they can essen-
tially do a group chat, instead of passing around sticky notes! 

The team members all have specialized training and continuing 
education. They are not licensed psychologists, but they regular-
ly learn and train with specialists. And it’s important to note  
that all officers have training and experience in dealing with 
troubled people; it’s what they do all the time in their job. It’s 
not unheard of for the dispatcher or first patrol officer to contact 
the barricaded person to develop a rapport with him, and they 
just stay at it. A coach will be placed with them to keep commu-
nication flowing. 

The goal in these situations is for everybody to get out alive.  
The police would much rather slow the incident down and wear 
the suspect out until he gives up than have to storm the building, 
destroy property, and injure someone. 

When the suspect decides he’s ready to come out, the negotiator 
prepares him with the exit plan. He warns him that he will need 
to come out with no weapons and his hands up. The SWAT  
officers will be there with guns drawn, and it’s really important 
for him to listen and do what they tell him to do. They’ll put him 
in handcuffs for everybody’s safety. He’ll then be put into the 
back seat of a patrol car (or ambulance if he’s injured). The  
negotiator will ask if he’d like to talk to him in person before 
he’s booked into jail. (Some say yes; some say no.) 

I’ve participated in various SWAT training exercises, including 
some with hostage negotiations going on. That was very interest-
ing (and fun!), but hearing this presentation clarified a few things 
that I witnessed, in addition to providing the overall structure to 
what this team does and how they do it. And if you ever are 
around the police involved in an operation where a lot is going 
on, please stay out of their way and think twice before you post 
something online! 

 

GPD Hostage Negotiation Team 

By Becky Thurmond, Crime & Safety Chair 



 CLASSIFIED ADS 

 

Classified ads are free to CNA members.  

(One ad per household, limited to 25 words or less.) 

If you wish to change an ad or order a new one, please use the form at left. 

For reasonable rates on computer repairs and church AV  

technician services, contact Jay Crutti at 504-913-6784 or  

recstudio@gmail.com. 
 

LifeStorage — 469-639-2297 — 3353 W. Campbell Road,  

Garland, TX 75044 — ls1136@lifestorage.com — Kaitlyn Widder, 

Manager 
 

Piano and voice lessons by former RISD elementary music teacher, 

now SAHM. Call or text Kirsten Padilla 972-821-1306. 
 

Health insurance including Short Term / Interim coverage. Randy 

Miller, Independent Agent for multiple companies. Email:  

RMillerTXIns@aol.com. 469-442-7002 
 

Handyman services—all general household needs and repairs, 

basic remodeling, local service, highly rated, handy solutions  

services. 214-213-1913. Call/text now. Contact AC Grindl, owner. 
 

Turf grass and landscape advice—Free for CNA members.  

$35/hour for non-members. Contact Rick Williams at  

rickwilli@gmail.com or 214-535-2648.  

Neighborhood Association, Inc. 

P. O. Box 452631 

Garland, TX 75045-2631 

2022 Garland Neighborhood 
Newsletter of the Year 

 

FEBRUARY 

CNA MEETING 
 

  Date  February 19, 2023 
  Time:  6:30 p.m. 
  Place:  On Zoom 
  Host:  Joe Thomas 
 

Meetings are usually held 
on the third Sunday of each month 

(except October and December) 
and are open to all Camelot residents 

and city officials. 
 

If you would like to attend, contact 
Joe Thomas at joethomasjr@gmail.com. 

Minutes 

Communications: Cynthia needs to buy labels for next month. 
A box usually lasts about a year. She has plenty of stamps. 

Old Business: Last meeting, Reba discussed raising dues. Joe 
also looked at reducing expenses. If we raised dues by $5, that 
is only about $1,200 more for expenses. The sprinkler system 
was our big expense last year. All of those issues should be 
fixed this year. Reba says we have not increased dues in years.  
If we take advantage of neighborhood grants, we need to incur 
more expenses up front and then be reimbursed. She believes 
we need funds to build our surplus. We might want to do some-
thing at the vacant city lot by the Shiloh Gardens. It would be 
sad to not have enough money to do an improvement. Reba 
believes we need to raise dues to $40/year. The Board decided 
to keep dues the same for this year and decide what to do as we 
near the end of 2023. The Board also agreed to stop paying an 
extra gift card for Yard of the Month winners to CNA members, 
but they will still get the reward card from local vendors. The 
Board discussed stopping handing out welcome packets to save 
money; new neighbors can learn about us on Nextdoor. Some 
felt we should continue the packets so new neighbors know 
about us and feel welcomed to the neighborhood. Peggy agreed 
to take over assembling packets and distributing. The Board felt 
we could decrease material that is in the packet. Joe will send 
out to the Board the electronic version of what is in the packet 
so we can agree what to cut out. 

New Business: N/A 

Next meeting: February 19, 2023, via Zoom. Adjourned 7:50 
p.m. 

(Continued from page 4) 



From
:

Elena Rico
To:

Planning Group
Subject:

[EXTERNAL] Com
m

ent Form
 Case Z 22-65

D
ate:

Thursday, February 9, 2023 11:15:50 AM

G
ood A

fternoon,

I am
 sending you this form

 on behave of 2814 Teakw
ood D

r against C
ase Z 22-65.

Thank you,

C
A

U
TIO

N
: This em

ail is from
 an external source. D

O
 N

O
T click links or open attachm

ents w
ithout verifying the sender. N

ever enter U
SER

N
A

M
E, PA

SSW
O

R
D

 or SEN
SITIV

E IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N
 on linked pages from

 this em
ail. If you are unsure about the m

essage, please contact the H
elp D

esk at x7240 for assistance.

mailto:elenarico41@yahoo.com
mailto:Planning@garlandtx.gov




Case Z 22-65 

 

Currently we are paying high taxes. Every year the taxes keep increasing which increases the 
expenses for our property.  



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. c.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa - Zoning (District 4)
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of G. Roxana Novoa, requesting approval of a Change in
Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single-Family-10 (SF-10) District. This property is
located at 1013 Rowlett Road. (District 4) (File Z 22-71)

Attachments
Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa Report and Attachments (Zoning) 
Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-71/District 4 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Change of Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single Family-10 (SF-10) 
District. 
 
LOCATION 
1013 Rowlett Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
G. Roxana Novoa 
 
 
OWNER 
Joseph Soto 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant proposes to change the zoning of the vacant lot from Agricultural (AG) District 
to a Single Family-10 (SF-10) District in order to construct one (1) single-family detached 
household. 
 
The GDC requires a minimum of two (2) acres in the Agricultural (AG) District to build a 
single-family house. The subject property is approximately 0.443 acres (19,296 square 
feet). 
 
The Plan Commission previously heard this case on January 9, 2023, and the 
recommendation was approval with an 8-0 vote; however, the case has been re-notified to 
surrounding property owners due to clarification on the subject property boundaries as 
displayed on previous maps.  
 
 
SITE DATA 
The 0.443-acre site is accessed from Rowlett Road.  

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Agricultural (AG) District and is currently vacant.   

The Agricultural (AG) District is intended for vacant land which is not yet ready for 
development, land which is used for agricultural or open space purposes, land which due to 
its topography or location within a floodplain or other undevelopable area is not anticipated 
to be developed for more intense use, and land which has been newly annexed into the City 
of Garland. Land that has been newly annexed into the City is initially zoned Agricultural 
until it is zoned another more permanent zoning classification in the future. Single-family 
uses on large lots are appropriate in this district. 



Page 2 of 3 
 
CONSIDERATIONS  
1. The request is a traditional rezoning without the formation of a Planned Development 

(PD) District. These requests do not require Concept Plan or Detail Plan approval to 
commence or direct development. Development is dependent on the standards set forth 
by the Garland Development Code (GDC) and the goals and policies established within 
the Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan. This Change in Zoning is not intended 
to restrict uses or secure development performances beyond what is permitted within 
the proposed zoning district and the GDC. Accordingly, the GDC requires careful 
consideration as to how closely the proposed district follows the policies of the Envision 
Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan, and to what degree the rezoning will affect 
surrounding and future development.  

2. The Single-Family Residential districts are intended to provide for development of 
primarily low-density detached, single-family residences on a variety of lot sizes, 
churches, schools, and public parks in logical, livable, and sustainable neighborhoods. 
 

3. In the event the Zoning Change request is approved, the applicant will need to proceed 
with the platting of the subject property and securing a site permit and a building permit 
prior to commencing construction. It will be during the permitting process that staff will 
review the proposed development and verify compliance with all the applicable 
regulations.   
 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Traditional 
Neighborhoods for the subject site. Traditional neighborhoods are currently found 
throughout Garland and provide areas for low to moderate density single-family detached 
residential housing. Traditional neighborhoods also accommodate convenience retail (goods 
and services), office space, and public services. Non-residential structures are compatible in 
architectural style and scale with adjacent residential development. Non-residential uses are 
typically located at the intersection of local streets or at local and secondary arterial streets. 
Non-residential uses are within walking distance of the neighborhoods they serve and 
include minimal on-site parking. The zoning change to Single Family-10 (SF-10) is 
compatible with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the North, South, East, and West are all zoned agricultural and contain 
single-family detached homes, vacant lots, horse stables, and a church. The property to the 
Southeast of the site is zoned Community Retail (CR) District but is currently vacant. 
Further to the West, Southwest, and Northeast lie Single Family-7 (SF-7) Districts occupied 
by single-family detaches homes. 
 
The proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of the Change of Zoning from Agricultural (AG) District to Single Family-10 (SF-
10) District. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. Photos 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


G
R

AY
ST

O
N

E 
D

R

MCKENZIE LN

MEADOWSIDE DR

BOBTOWN RD

MYERS MEADOW DR

ROWLE
TT

 R
D

ROSEHILL RD

AN
D

ER
SO

N
 C

IR
M

EA
D

O
W

D
AL

E 
C

IR

S F - 1 0S F - 1 0

A GA G
S  0 2 - 0 8S  0 2 - 0 8

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S  0 5 - 6 7S  0 5 - 6 7

P D  0 5 - 1 2P D  0 5 - 1 2

A GA G

M F - 1M F - 1

2643

5118

1013

2630

1042

924

1002

5041

920

5035

918

1029

914

5023

1043

912

922

1009

1021

1005

921
916

925

929
933

937 941

1001

2613

950

1050

5115

5124

921

951

1048

ZONING MAP Z 22-71
¯

0 100 200 Feet
1 inch = 153 feet

1013 Rowlett Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



   
 

 

Z 22-71 
 
 

  

View of subject site looking North from Rowlett Road View from the subject site looking South. Just out of 
the frame is the Church and on the left is vacant CR 
land 

 
 
 

 

Looking West on Rowlett Road. Pictured on the left 
is the Church zoned AG 

View looking East on Rowlett road 



S F-7 
5023 

SF -1 0 

0 100 200 Feet ZONING MAP Z 22-71 11111 INDICATES AREA O INDICATES 
I I I 1 inch = 153 feet OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

1009 & 1013 Rowlett Road 



Comment Form 
Case Z 22-71 

Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa. The applicant proposes a zoning change from Agricultural 
(AG) District to Single Family-10 (SF-10) District, to allow a single-family home. The site 
is located at 1013 Rowlett Road. (District 4) 

Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa. El solicitante propone un cambio de zonificaci6n de Distrito 
Agricola (AG) a Distrito Unifamiliar-1 O (SF-10), para permitir una vivienda unifamiliar. 
El sitio esta ubicado en 1013 Rowlett Road. (Distrito 4) 

Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa. NglJ'ai nc;,p dO'n de xuat thay d6i quy ho~ch tLP Khu nong nghi~p 
(~G) t~anh Khu danh cho mc;,t gia dinh-10 (SF-10), de cho phep nha 6' danh cho mc;,t gia dinh. 
£>1a diem t9a l~c t~i 1013 Rowlett Road. (Qu~n 4) 

Please Check One Below/ Marque uno a continuaci6n / Vui Ion 

For/ A Favor/ Dung 

Against / En Contra / Khong 

Please complete the following information and email the form to Planning@garlandtx.gov; deliver to the Planning 
Department at 800 Main Street Garland, TX; or mail to City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Por favor Complete la siguiente informaci6n y envie el formulario por correo electr6nico 
a Planning@garlandtx.gov; entregar al Departamento de Planificaci6n en 800 Main Street Garland, TX; o envielo 
por correo a City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Vui long dien day du 
thong tin sau va gll'i bi~u mau qua email t6'i Planning@garlandtx.gov; giao cho Phong Ke hoci)ch tci)i 800 Main Street 
Garland, TX; ho~c gll'i thu, den Thanh pho Garland, 56' Ke hoci)ch, P.O. Hc;,p 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002. 

Printed Name & Title/ Nombre lmpreso y Titulo / Ten in va Tieu de 
(Property Owner, Business Owner, Tenant, etc.) I (Dueno de la propiedad, Dueno de la empresa, lnqui/ino, etc.)/ (Chu s& hO,u b!it a{)ng san, Chu doanh 

nghi~p, Ngwi thue, V. v.) 

Your Property Address/ La direcci6n de su propiedad / dja chi_tai san 

C·t State I Estado de la Ciudad / Thanh bang 
I y, 

~L/-3 , 
Zip Code / C6digo postal / Ma B u Ot11nh 

~~ __ 1¥w/2-2-
~ ft/!- './Z(t: Date I Febha I Ngay 

Signaturefim,;7 Ch o, ky . . . 
• r I / La direcci6n de correo electr6nico y el numero de telefono son opc1onales. I 01a chi 

"ding email address and phone number is op iona . 
(PrOVI . I ' t' h ) 
email va so dien thoc;11 a uy c on. 



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. d.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC - Specific Use Provision (District 7)
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Shammy’s Garland LLC., requesting approval of a
Specific Use Provision for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover Use on a property zoned
Community Retail (CR) District. This property is located at 2461 Belt Line Road. (District 7)
 (File Z 22-76 – Specific Use Provision)

Attachments
Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC (Specific Use Provision) Report and Attachments 
Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-76/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an Automated/Rollover Car Wash use on a property 
zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
Approval of a Plan for an Automated/Rollover Car Wash Use. 
 
LOCATION 
2641 Belt Line Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Shammy’s Garland, LLC 
 
 
OWNER 
Harold Peek 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property has an approved SUP for a Commercial Outdoor Amusement Use; 
however; the site was never developed. The applicant proposes to open an 
automated/rollover car wash. The GDC requires a Specific Use Provision for an 
Automated/Rollover Car Wash use in the Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
 
SITE DATA 
The site is 1.185-acres. The site is accessed from two entrances on a mutual access 
easement that leads to the Nursing Home to the North and is accessed from Belt Line Road. 

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Community (CR) District, with a previous SUP [S 10-32] for a 
Commercial Outdoor Amusement Use which was not developed.  

The Community Retail (CR) district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, 
and business establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center 
configuration. The district may be used as a transition district between lower intensity retail 
or office uses and more intense uses. A Community Retail (CR) District is generally 
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in 
proximity to low-density residential districts without significant buffering and screening 
features. An example of allowed use in a CR district is a retail shopping area that may be 
large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic generated by uses in a CR 
district must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. Development in a CR district 
may not be designed in a manner that increases traffic through residential areas. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
  
Specific Use Provision:    
1. The applicant proposes to construct a 4,998 square foot automated/rollover car wash. 

 
The GDC defines a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover as a “Washing, waxing, or cleaning of 
automobiles involving automated self-service (drive-through/rollover) wash bays and 
apparatuses.” 
 

2. The applicant requests that the refuse container may be in front of the building as 
opposed to behind the building per the GDC, due to site design challenges and safety 
accommodations. It should be noted the refuse container opening would face away from 
the public street view, as well as be screened by GDC approved shrubs and a tree. 
 

3. The applicant is requesting approval of a thirty (30) year Specific Use Provision. The SUP 
Time Period Guide recommends a range of twenty-five (25) to thirty (30) years. 

 
4. The hours of operation will be 8:00 am to 7:00 pm every day of the week. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommend Compact Neighborhoods 
for the subject site. Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in 
residential density, including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It 
expands housing options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable 
development patterns. These areas provide transitions between traditional residential 
neighborhoods and higher density residential neighborhoods and non-residential 
developments. These areas accommodate uses such as convenience retail (goods and 
services), office space, and public services. The architectural character and scale of these 
areas are compatible with adjacent residential development. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the East is zoned Community Retail District and contains a restaurant. To 
the East of that, a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District contains a car wash, self-
service/wand. The property to the North contains a Nursing home zoned Planned 
Development (PD) District 14-49 for Multi-Family use. The property to the West is a private 
school zoned Planned Development (PD) District 97-01 for Community Office (CO) District 
uses. The property to the South contains a church and is zoned Community Retail (CR) 
District. 
 
The proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover use on a property 
zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
Approval of a Plan for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover use. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 

 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


3301
3262

COTTON
GUM RD

SWEET

GUM ST

W
H

IT
E 

G
U

M
 L

N

SAHARAH DR

BELT LINE RD

M
ED

IC
AL

 P
LA

ZA
 D

R

N
 S

H
IL

O
H

 R
D

P D  8 2 - 1 0 1P D  8 2 - 1 0 1

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
9 2 - 1 29 2 - 1 2

C RC R

N ON O
P DP D

0 1 - 5 20 1 - 5 2

P D  8 4 - 1 0 6P D  8 4 - 1 0 6

S  1 2 - 0 5S  1 2 - 0 5

P D  9 7 - 0 1P D  9 7 - 0 1

P D  0 5 - 3 6P D  0 5 - 3 6

SS
0 8 - 2 90 8 - 2 9

S  1 2 - 5 5S  1 2 - 5 5

P D  8 5 - 1 0 3P D  8 5 - 1 0 3

C RC R

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2 S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  9 5 - 4 3P D  9 5 - 4 3

C RC R

C RC R

SS
9 9 - 3 29 9 - 3 2

C RC R

SS
1 7 - 2 01 7 - 2 0

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  1 4 - 4 9P D  1 4 - 4 9

2660

2730

2719 25212649

2720

3145

2710 2510

2551

2625

2550

2641

ZONING MAP Z 22-76
¯

0 140 280 Feet
1 inch = 218 feet

2641 Belt Line Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 22-76 
 

2641 Belt Line Road 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a Car Wash 
Automated/Rollover use. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Community 
Retail (CR) District and Site Development Standards as 
set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by 
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and 
Elevations labeled Exhibit C, Exhibit D, and Exhibit 
E. In the event of conflict between the conditions and 
the site plan, the written conditions listed below are 
to apply. 

 
V. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 

Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 



PD/SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-76 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI. Specific Regulations:   
 

A.  Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a 
thirty (30) year time period. 
 

B. Hours of Operation: The hours of operation will be 
8:00 am to 7:00 pm every day of the week. 

 
 
 

 
 

 



   
 

 

Z 22-76 
 
 

  

View of the subject site looking West from the 
mutual access easement. The private school is 
shown in the background. 

View of the subject site looking West from Belt Line 
Road. The private school is shown again. 

 
 
 

 

View from the subject site looking East on Belt Line 
Road. The restaurant, car wash, and other 
commercially zoned areas are shown. 

View from the subject site looking South. The church 
across from Belt Line is shown. 



3301
3262

COTTON
GUM RD

SWEET

GUM ST

WH
ITE

 G
UM

 LN

SAHARAH DR

BELT LINE RD

ME
DI

CA
L P

LA
ZA

 D
R

N 
SH

ILO
H 

RD

P D  8 2 - 1 0 1P D  8 2 - 1 0 1

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
9 2 - 1 29 2 - 1 2

C RC R

N ON OP DP D
0 1 - 5 20 1 - 5 2

P D  8 4 - 1 0 6P D  8 4 - 1 0 6

S  1 2 - 0 5S  1 2 - 0 5

P D  9 7 - 0 1P D  9 7 - 0 1

P D  0 5 - 3 6P D  0 5 - 3 6
SS

0 8 - 2 90 8 - 2 9

S  1 2 - 5 5S  1 2 - 5 5
P D  8 5 - 1 0 3P D  8 5 - 1 0 3

C RC R

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2 S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S F - 7S F - 7
P D  9 5 - 4 3P D  9 5 - 4 3

C RC R

C RC R

SS
9 9 - 3 29 9 - 3 2

C RC R

SS
1 7 - 2 01 7 - 2 0

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  1 4 - 4 9P D  1 4 - 4 9

2660

2730

2719 25212649

2720

3145

2710 2510

2551

2625

2550

2641

ZONING MAP Z 22-76
¯

0 140 280 Feet 1 inch = 218 feet

2641 Belt Line Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



Comment Form 
Case Z 22-76 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. The applicant requests an Automated/Rollover Car 
Wash use. The site is located at 2641 Belt Line Road. (District 7) 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. El sol icitante soliclta un uso de Lavadero de Autos 
Automatizado/Rollover. El sitio esta ubicado en 2641 Belt Line Road. (Distrito 7) 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. NgLPO'i n9p dO'n yeu cau Sll' d1:1ng H~ thong rLPa xe tl,P 
d9ng/Rollover Car Wash. Oja di~m tQa lcllc tclli 2641 Belt Line Road. (Qu~n 7) 

Please Check One Below / Marque uno a continuaci6n / Vui long ki~m tra m9t ben dLP6'i 

GJ For/ A Favor / 0ung 

D Against / En Contra / Khong 

Please complete the following information and email the form to Planning@garlandtx.gov; deliver to the Planning 
Department at 800 Main Street Garland, TX; or mail to City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75406-9002J Por favor Complete la siguiente informaci6n y envie el formulario por correo electr6nico 
a Planning@garlandtx.gov; entregar al Departamento de Planificacion en 800 Main Street Garland, TX; o envielo 
por correo a City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Vui long dien day du 
thong tin sau va g11i bi6u mau qua email t6'i Planning@garlandtx.gov; giao cho Phong Ke ho~ch ~ i 800 Main Street 
Garland, TX; h~c gLPi thlP den Thanh ph6 Garland, SO' Ke hofch, P.O. Hc;,p 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002. 

Harold F . Peek Managing Partner Crossroads Centre Ltd . 

Printed Name & Title / Nombre lmpreso y Titulo / Ten in va Tieu de 
(Property Owner, Business Owner, Tenan~ etc.) I (Dueno de la propledad, Duefio de ta empresa, lnquilino, etc.) I (Chu sc, hiiu Mt 11¢ng san, Chu doanh 
nghi~p. Ngvaithue, v.v.) 

899 Pres identi a l Drive Suite 114 Outside the Notificatl n Ama 

Your Property Address / La direcci6n de su propiedad / dja chi_tai san 

Richardson TX 

City, State I Estado de la Ciudad / Thanh bang 

75081 

Zip Code I C6digo postal I Ma B u Ohinh 

~.µ_ ,1, tP~ 2/08 / 2023 

Signature I Firma / Ch 0, ky Date/ Fecha I Ngay 
hpeek @peekpr oper ties.n~t 

(Providing ethail add'~ss an<1 phone number 1s opt10nal. / La direcci6n de correo electr6nico y el numero de telefono son opcionales. / B ia chi 
email va sb cMn tho~i la tuy chQn.) 



Comment Form Continued -
Case Z 22-76 

The statements below reflect my (our) opinion regarding the proposed request(s). 

Las declaraciones a continuaci6n reflejan mi (nuestra) opinion con respecto a 
las solicitudes propuestas. 

Cac tuyen bo dU'6'i day phan anh quan diE~m cua tOi (chung toi) ve (cac) yeu 
cfiu dU'Q'C de xuat 

1 believe this .request wil¼ be an e ~cellant use of the ~roperty. 
- -· --- - - - ! -------

·' -



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. e.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC - Plan (District 7)
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Shammy’s Garland LLC., requesting approval of a Plan
for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover Use on a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District.
This property is located at 2461 Belt Line Road. (District 7) (File Z 22-76 – Plan)

Attachments
Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC (Plan) Report and Attachments 
Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-76/District 7 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an Automated/Rollover Car Wash use on a property 
zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
Approval of a Plan for an Automated/Rollover Car Wash Use. 
 
LOCATION 
2641 Belt Line Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Shammy’s Garland, LLC 
 
 
OWNER 
Harold Peek 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The subject property has an approved SUP for a Commercial Outdoor Amusement Use; 
however; the site was never developed. The applicant proposes to open an 
automated/rollover car wash. The GDC requires a Specific Use Provision for an 
Automated/Rollover Car Wash use in the Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
 
SITE DATA 
The site is 1.185-acres. The site is accessed from two entrances on a mutual access 
easement that leads to the Nursing Home to the North and is accessed from Belt Line Road. 

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Community (CR) District, with a previous SUP [S 10-32] for a 
Commercial Outdoor Amusement Use which was not developed.  

The Community Retail (CR) district is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, 
and business establishments that may or may not be designed in a shopping center 
configuration. The district may be used as a transition district between lower intensity retail 
or office uses and more intense uses. A Community Retail (CR) District is generally 
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in 
proximity to low-density residential districts without significant buffering and screening 
features. An example of allowed use in a CR district is a retail shopping area that may be 
large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic generated by uses in a CR 
district must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. Development in a CR district 
may not be designed in a manner that increases traffic through residential areas. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
  
Specific Use Provision:    
1. The applicant proposes to construct a 4,998 square foot automated/rollover car wash. 

 
The GDC defines a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover as a “Washing, waxing, or cleaning of 
automobiles involving automated self-service (drive-through/rollover) wash bays and 
apparatuses.” 
 

2. The applicant requests that the refuse container may be in front of the building as 
opposed to behind the building per the GDC, due to site design challenges and safety 
accommodations. It should be noted the refuse container opening would face away from 
the public street view, as well as be screened by GDC approved shrubs and a tree. 
 

3. The applicant is requesting approval of a thirty (30) year Specific Use Provision. The SUP 
Time Period Guide recommends a range of twenty-five (25) to thirty (30) years. 

 
4. The hours of operation will be 8:00 am to 7:00 pm every day of the week. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommend Compact Neighborhoods 
for the subject site. Compact neighborhoods provide areas for moderate increases in 
residential density, including single-family attached and single-family detached housing. It 
expands housing options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable 
development patterns. These areas provide transitions between traditional residential 
neighborhoods and higher density residential neighborhoods and non-residential 
developments. These areas accommodate uses such as convenience retail (goods and 
services), office space, and public services. The architectural character and scale of these 
areas are compatible with adjacent residential development. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the East is zoned Community Retail District and contains a restaurant. To 
the East of that, a property zoned Community Retail (CR) District contains a car wash, self-
service/wand. The property to the North contains a Nursing home zoned Planned 
Development (PD) District 14-49 for Multi-Family use. The property to the West is a private 
school zoned Planned Development (PD) District 97-01 for Community Office (CO) District 
uses. The property to the South contains a church and is zoned Community Retail (CR) 
District. 
 
The proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover use on a property 
zoned Community Retail (CR) District. 
 
Approval of a Plan for a Car Wash, Automated/Rollover use. 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 

 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


3301
3262

COTTON
GUM RD

SWEET

GUM ST

W
H

IT
E 

G
U

M
 L

N

SAHARAH DR

BELT LINE RD

M
ED

IC
AL

 P
LA

ZA
 D

R

N
 S

H
IL

O
H

 R
D

P D  8 2 - 1 0 1P D  8 2 - 1 0 1

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
9 2 - 1 29 2 - 1 2

C RC R

N ON O
P DP D

0 1 - 5 20 1 - 5 2

P D  8 4 - 1 0 6P D  8 4 - 1 0 6

S  1 2 - 0 5S  1 2 - 0 5

P D  9 7 - 0 1P D  9 7 - 0 1

P D  0 5 - 3 6P D  0 5 - 3 6

SS
0 8 - 2 90 8 - 2 9

S  1 2 - 5 5S  1 2 - 5 5

P D  8 5 - 1 0 3P D  8 5 - 1 0 3

C RC R

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2 S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  9 5 - 4 3P D  9 5 - 4 3

C RC R

C RC R

SS
9 9 - 3 29 9 - 3 2

C RC R

SS
1 7 - 2 01 7 - 2 0

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  1 4 - 4 9P D  1 4 - 4 9

2660

2730

2719 25212649

2720

3145

2710 2510

2551

2625

2550

2641

ZONING MAP Z 22-76
¯

0 140 280 Feet
1 inch = 218 feet

2641 Belt Line Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



Exhibit C



Exhibit D



Exhibit D



Exhibit E



   
 

 

Z 22-76 
 
 

  

View of the subject site looking West from the 
mutual access easement. The private school is 
shown in the background. 

View of the subject site looking West from Belt Line 
Road. The private school is shown again. 

 
 
 

 

View from the subject site looking East on Belt Line 
Road. The restaurant, car wash, and other 
commercially zoned areas are shown. 

View from the subject site looking South. The church 
across from Belt Line is shown. 



3301
3262

COTTON
GUM RD

SWEET

GUM ST

WH
ITE

 G
UM

 LN

SAHARAH DR

BELT LINE RD

ME
DI

CA
L P

LA
ZA

 D
R

N 
SH

ILO
H 

RD

P D  8 2 - 1 0 1P D  8 2 - 1 0 1

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
9 2 - 1 29 2 - 1 2

C RC R

N ON OP DP D
0 1 - 5 20 1 - 5 2

P D  8 4 - 1 0 6P D  8 4 - 1 0 6

S  1 2 - 0 5S  1 2 - 0 5

P D  9 7 - 0 1P D  9 7 - 0 1

P D  0 5 - 3 6P D  0 5 - 3 6
SS

0 8 - 2 90 8 - 2 9

S  1 2 - 5 5S  1 2 - 5 5
P D  8 5 - 1 0 3P D  8 5 - 1 0 3

C RC R

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2 S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S  1 0 - 3 2S  1 0 - 3 2

S F - 7S F - 7
P D  9 5 - 4 3P D  9 5 - 4 3

C RC R

C RC R

SS
9 9 - 3 29 9 - 3 2

C RC R

SS
1 7 - 2 01 7 - 2 0

M F - 1M F - 1

P D  1 4 - 4 9P D  1 4 - 4 9

2660

2730

2719 25212649

2720

3145

2710 2510

2551

2625

2550

2641

ZONING MAP Z 22-76
¯

0 140 280 Feet 1 inch = 218 feet

2641 Belt Line Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



Comment Form 
Case Z 22-76 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. The applicant requests an Automated/Rollover Car 
Wash use. The site is located at 2641 Belt Line Road. (District 7) 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. El sol icitante soliclta un uso de Lavadero de Autos 
Automatizado/Rollover. El sitio esta ubicado en 2641 Belt Line Road. (Distrito 7) 

Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland, LLC. NgLPO'i n9p dO'n yeu cau Sll' d1:1ng H~ thong rLPa xe tl,P 
d9ng/Rollover Car Wash. Oja di~m tQa lcllc tclli 2641 Belt Line Road. (Qu~n 7) 

Please Check One Below / Marque uno a continuaci6n / Vui long ki~m tra m9t ben dLP6'i 

GJ For/ A Favor / 0ung 

D Against / En Contra / Khong 

Please complete the following information and email the form to Planning@garlandtx.gov; deliver to the Planning 
Department at 800 Main Street Garland, TX; or mail to City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75406-9002J Por favor Complete la siguiente informaci6n y envie el formulario por correo electr6nico 
a Planning@garlandtx.gov; entregar al Departamento de Planificacion en 800 Main Street Garland, TX; o envielo 
por correo a City of Garland, Planning Department, P.O. Box 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002./ Vui long dien day du 
thong tin sau va g11i bi6u mau qua email t6'i Planning@garlandtx.gov; giao cho Phong Ke ho~ch ~ i 800 Main Street 
Garland, TX; h~c gLPi thlP den Thanh ph6 Garland, SO' Ke hofch, P.O. Hc;,p 469002 Garland, TX 75406-9002. 

Harold F . Peek Managing Partner Crossroads Centre Ltd . 

Printed Name & Title / Nombre lmpreso y Titulo / Ten in va Tieu de 
(Property Owner, Business Owner, Tenan~ etc.) I (Dueno de la propledad, Duefio de ta empresa, lnquilino, etc.) I (Chu sc, hiiu Mt 11¢ng san, Chu doanh 
nghi~p. Ngvaithue, v.v.) 

899 Pres identi a l Drive Suite 114 Outside the Notificatl n Ama 

Your Property Address / La direcci6n de su propiedad / dja chi_tai san 

Richardson TX 

City, State I Estado de la Ciudad / Thanh bang 

75081 

Zip Code I C6digo postal I Ma B u Ohinh 

~.µ_ ,1, tP~ 2/08 / 2023 

Signature I Firma / Ch 0, ky Date/ Fecha I Ngay 
hpeek @peekpr oper ties.n~t 

(Providing ethail add'~ss an<1 phone number 1s opt10nal. / La direcci6n de correo electr6nico y el numero de telefono son opcionales. / B ia chi 
email va sb cMn tho~i la tuy chQn.) 



Comment Form Continued -
Case Z 22-76 

The statements below reflect my (our) opinion regarding the proposed request(s). 

Las declaraciones a continuaci6n reflejan mi (nuestra) opinion con respecto a 
las solicitudes propuestas. 

Cac tuyen bo dU'6'i day phan anh quan diE~m cua tOi (chung toi) ve (cac) yeu 
cfiu dU'Q'C de xuat 

1 believe this .request wil¼ be an e ~cellant use of the ~roperty. 
- -· --- - - - ! -------

·' -



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. f.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center - Specific Use Provision (SUP) (District 3)
Submitted For: Josue De La Vega, Sr. Development Planner, Planning & Community

Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Quetzal Event Center, requesting approval of an amended
Specific Use Provision for a Reception Facility on a property zoned Planned Development
(PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. This property is located at 354 East Interstate
Highway 30. (District 3)  (File Z 22-78 – Specific Use Provision)

Attachments
Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Report and Attachments (Specific Use Provision) 
Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-78/District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Reception Facility on a property 
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for a Reception Facility on a property zoned Planned Development 
(PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses.  
 
LOCATION 
354 East Interstate Highway 30  
 
APPLICANT 
Quetzal Event Center 
 
OWNER 
Mindy Heather Zamora 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Planned Development (PD) District on the subject property was amended in 2020 to 
allow Reception Facility with a Specific Use Provision (SUP). Along with this amendment, a 
Specific Use Provision (SUP) was approved for a period of twenty (20) years to allow the 
operation of a Reception Facility from the existing building. The Reception Facility has gone 
through a change of ownership and the new owner proposes a change to the Specific Use 
Provision (SUP) condition regarding hours of operation. 
 
SITE DATA 
The site contains approximately 2.413 acres with approximately 233 lineal feet of frontage 
along the East Interstate Highway 30 Access Road and 243 lineal feet of frontage along 
Oaks Trail, which is used as the two (2) primary access points to and from the property. 
The site also has access through adjacent properties to Wise Lane and the Interstate 
Highway 30 Access Road. 
 
Existing improvements on the site include two (2) buildings, parking, and landscaping. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 which is based on 
the Community Office (CO) District. The Community Office (CO) District is intended to 
create an appropriate setting for medium and higher intensity office and professional uses. 
The district may be used as a transition district between low intensity office/retail uses and 
more intense uses. An example of allowed uses in the Community Office (CO) District is a 
professional offices, campus-style corporate office, research, and assembly operations that 
may be large in scale but that are conducted wholly within a building(s) with very limited 
or no outside storage. Reception Facility is allowed only upon approval of a Specific Use 
Provision (SUP). 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
1. The applicant would continue to use the 9,522 square-foot primary building as a 

Reception Facility and the 2,573 square-foot warehouse located in the rear for event 
storage (table, chairs and other equipment).  
 

2. The applicant proposes an amendment to Specific Condition (A) regarding hours of 
operation. The current Specific Use Provision (SUP) establishes the hours from 8:00 
a.m. to 11:30 p.m. Monday through Sunday as the only times the facility can be open 
for events. The proposed amendment would extend the hours the facility can be open 
for events from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 a.m. Monday through Sunday.  
 

3. One hundred twenty one (121) parking spaces are required for the Reception Facility 
per the Garland Development Code (GDC). The applicant will comply with the required 
parking.  

 
4. Landscaping currently exists on the site. Neither a building expansion nor a parking lot 

expansion is proposed with this request; therefore, new landscaping compliance is not 
triggered by this request.  

 
5. The GDC includes Special Standards for which the use must comply: 
 

(a) Time Period. An SUP for a Reception Facility is valid for the time period specified in 
the SUP ordinance.  The applicant requests the SUP to be in effect for a period of 
twenty (20) years. 

(b) Security. The reception facility must provide security at every event where alcoholic 
beverages are provided or served, and also for any events occurring after 6:00 p.m. 
Security must be by a qualified person(s) who is authorized to provide private security 
under Chapter 1702 of the Texas Occupations Code.  

(c) Loitering, Outside Activities. Prolonged congregating or loitering of event attendees 
or participants outside the reception facility is prohibited. Outside activities, if any, 
must be in compliance with the City's noise regulations as set forth in the City Code. 

(d) Noise Mitigation. The applicant must add noise mitigation materials to the existing 
building if determined necessary by the City to protect surrounding properties and the 
public health, safety, and welfare. 

(e) Litter & Debris. Any litter or debris left on the premises must be removed 
immediately following the event. The owner of the facility is responsible for removal of 
all litter and debris.   

 
(f)  Location.  Reception Facilities may not be located within five hundred feet of the 
property line of any dwelling unit or residential subdivision, elder care facility, or other 
Reception Facilities. The measurement of the distance between the establishment and a 
dwelling unit, elder care facility, or other Reception Facility shall be: 

 
(i)     for residential property, along a direct line from any exterior wall of the 
Reception Facility to the nearest point on the property line of the nearest residential 
zoned property; 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

(ii)     for an MF dwelling not located on the same tract of land as the Reception 
Facility, along a direct line from any exterior wall of the Reception Facility to the 
nearest point on the property line of the tract on which the MF dwelling is located; 
 
(iii)     for an elder care facility or other Reception Facility not located on the same 
tract of land as the establishment, along a direct line from the nearest exterior wall 
of the Reception Facility to the nearest exterior wall of the elder care facility or 
other Reception Facility; or 
 
(iv)     for an elder care facility or other Reception Facility located on the same tract 
of land or in a commercial or retail center sharing a common parking area, the 
measurement shall be along a straight line from the midpoint of the nearest exterior 
door of the Reception Facility to the midpoint of the nearest exterior wall of the 
dwelling unit, elder care facility, or other Reception Facility in question. 
 

(g)     For reception facilities located within a building containing other tenants, the 
measurement shall be from the nearest outer wall of the Reception Facility's leasehold 
space. 

 
(h)     A Reception Facility may not be located on the same tract as any multifamily 
dwelling or elder care facility. 
 
The applicant concurs with these conditions and the request meets the abovementioned 
measurement requirements.  

 
7. The applicant is not proposing new signage with this request. There is an existing 

freestanding digital sign on site; the applicant proposes no changes to the existing sign. 
 
8. The applicant requests approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) effective for 

a period of twenty (20) years.   
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Business Centers for 
the subject property. Business Centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low 
impact industry, including campus-type development, which cumulatively employ large 
numbers of people. Operations within this development type occur internal to buildings 
resulting in minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) 
and are compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and 
intensity. Business Centers range in scale and intensity based on the surrounding vicinity 
and may consist of one or more buildings.  This development type includes a variety of 
primary and secondary uses, including compatible residential uses, that support the 
business employment sector. 
 
Additionally, the site is within the I-30 Catalyst Area. The proposal allows for the re-use of 
an existing building and site, and brings events and activities to the area. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the west is zoned Community Office (CO) District and is developed with an 
office complex. The property to the east is zoned Community Office (CO) District with a 
Specific Use Provision (S 15-03 for Drive-Through Restaurant Use) and is developed with a 
Golden Chick drive-through restaurant. The property immediately to the south is zoned 
Community Office (CO) District with a Specific Use Provision (S 11-14 for Child Care 
Center) and is developed with a church and child care center. The property to the north 



Page 4 of 4 
 
across IH 30 is zoned Community Office (CO) District with a Specific Use Provision (S 07-
32) and is developed with a La Quinta Inn & Suites hotel.  
 
The proposed location is within a commercial area and adjacent to an interstate highway, 
thus reducing concern Reception Facilities often raise about proximity to residential homes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Reception Facility on a property 
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for a Reception Facility on a property zoned Planned Development 
(PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Detail Plan  
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023  
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Josue De La Vega, MCRP Will Guerin, AICP 
Senior Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Community Development  
972-205-2883  
jdelavega@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:jdelavega@garlandtx.gov


BO
BT

OW
N 

RD

E I30
ZION
OFF S

RID
GE

CO
VE

DR

OAKS TRL

WISE LN

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 SERVICE RD S

LY
ON

S R
D

E I30 ON N

E I30 ROAN OFF S

BOBTOWN RD P D  9 7 - 5 1P D  9 7 - 5 1
P D  9 6 - 5 2P D  9 6 - 5 2

S  9 3 - 3 9S  9 3 - 3 9

S  9 9 - 1 1S  9 9 - 1 1

P DP D
9 5 - 5 89 5 - 5 8

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
0 7 - 3 20 7 - 3 2

S  7 4 - 2 6S  7 4 - 2 6

P D / SP D / S
2 0 - 4 02 0 - 4 0

SS
0 4 - 5 90 4 - 5 9

SS
1 5 - 0 31 5 - 0 3

A GA G

C RC R

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

C OC O

P D  1 9 - 2 2P D  1 9 - 2 2

P DP D
2 2 - 1 62 2 - 1 6

C OC O

329

350

5525

333

354

416

401

402
337

430

444
440

362

375

429

415

350
320

5601

455
3785

ZONING MAP Z 22-78
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 264 feet

354 East I-30 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



PD and SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-78 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

 
SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 

 
ZONING FILE Z 22-78 

 
354 East Interstate Highway 30  

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow a Reception Facility. 
 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in Planned 
Development (PD) District 11-26 and the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the Planned 
Development (PD) District 11-26 and the Community 
Office (CO) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the 
Garland Development Code shall apply, except as 
otherwise specified in this ordinance. 
 

IV. Abandonment:  In the event the land use for which this 
Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 
 

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 
premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 



PD and SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-78 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence 
of abandonment and the owner shall have the burden 
to prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
V. Specific Conditions:  
 

A. Hours of Operation: The Reception Facility shall be 
open for events only as follows: Monday – Sunday 
8:00am to 3:00am. 

 
B. Security: The Reception Facility must provide 

security at every event where alcoholic beverages 
are provided or served, and also for any events 
occurring after 6:00 p.m. Security must be by a 
qualified person(s) who is authorized to provide 
private security under Chapter 1702 of the Texas 
Occupations Code.  

 
C. Noise: The Reception Facility shall comply with the 

City of Garland Noise Control Ordinance. 
 

D. Loitering, Outside Activities: Prolonged 
congregating or loitering of event attendees or 
participants outside the reception facility is 
prohibited. Outside activities, if any, must be in 
compliance with the City's noise regulations as set 
forth in the City Code. 

E. Litter & Debris: Any litter or debris left on the 
premises must be removed immediately following the 
event. The owner of the facility is responsible for 
removal of all litter and debris. 

 
F. SUP Time Period: The Specific Use Provision for 

Reception Facility shall be in effect for a period 
of twenty years (20) years. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 



   
 

 Z 22-78 
 

     

           View of the subject property from IH 30. View of properties to the west.  

     
 

 

   View of IH 30 from subject property. 
 
 
 
 

View of properties to the east. 



BO
BT

OW
N 

RD

E I30
ZION
OFF S

RID
GE

CO
VE

DR

OAKS TRL

WISE LN

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 SERVICE RD S

LY
ON

S R
D

E I30 ON N

E I30 ROAN OFF S

BOBTOWN RD P D  9 7 - 5 1P D  9 7 - 5 1
P D  9 6 - 5 2P D  9 6 - 5 2

S  9 3 - 3 9S  9 3 - 3 9

S  9 9 - 1 1S  9 9 - 1 1

P DP D
9 5 - 5 89 5 - 5 8

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
0 7 - 3 20 7 - 3 2

S  7 4 - 2 6S  7 4 - 2 6

P D / SP D / S
2 0 - 4 02 0 - 4 0

SS
0 4 - 5 90 4 - 5 9

SS
1 5 - 0 31 5 - 0 3

A GA G

C RC R

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

C OC O

P D  1 9 - 2 2P D  1 9 - 2 2

P DP D
2 2 - 1 62 2 - 1 6

C OC O

329

350

5525

333

354

416

401

402
337

430

444
440

362

375

429

415

350
320

5601

455
3785

ZONING MAP Z 22-78
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 264 feet

354 East I-30 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



To date we have not received any responses for this case. 



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. g.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center - Detail Plan (District 3)
Submitted For: Josue De La Vega, Sr. Development Planner, Planning & Community

Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Quetzal Event Center, requesting approval of a Detail
Plan on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office
Uses. This property is located at 354 East Interstate Highway 30. (District 3) (File Z 22-78 –
Detail Plan)

Attachments
Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Report and Attachments (Detail Plan) 
Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-78/District 3 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Reception Facility on a property 
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for a Reception Facility on a property zoned Planned Development 
(PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses.  
 
LOCATION 
354 East Interstate Highway 30  
 
APPLICANT 
Quetzal Event Center 
 
OWNER 
Mindy Heather Zamora 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Planned Development (PD) District on the subject property was amended in 2020 to 
allow Reception Facility with a Specific Use Provision (SUP). Along with this amendment, a 
Specific Use Provision (SUP) was approved for a period of twenty (20) years to allow the 
operation of a Reception Facility from the existing building. The Reception Facility has gone 
through a change of ownership and the new owner proposes a change to the Specific Use 
Provision (SUP) condition regarding hours of operation. 
 
SITE DATA 
The site contains approximately 2.413 acres with approximately 233 lineal feet of frontage 
along the East Interstate Highway 30 Access Road and 243 lineal feet of frontage along 
Oaks Trail, which is used as the two (2) primary access points to and from the property. 
The site also has access through adjacent properties to Wise Lane and the Interstate 
Highway 30 Access Road. 
 
Existing improvements on the site include two (2) buildings, parking, and landscaping. 
 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 which is based on 
the Community Office (CO) District. The Community Office (CO) District is intended to 
create an appropriate setting for medium and higher intensity office and professional uses. 
The district may be used as a transition district between low intensity office/retail uses and 
more intense uses. An example of allowed uses in the Community Office (CO) District is a 
professional offices, campus-style corporate office, research, and assembly operations that 
may be large in scale but that are conducted wholly within a building(s) with very limited 
or no outside storage. Reception Facility is allowed only upon approval of a Specific Use 
Provision (SUP). 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 4 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
1. The applicant would continue to use the 9,522 square-foot primary building as a 

Reception Facility and the 2,573 square-foot warehouse located in the rear for event 
storage (table, chairs and other equipment).  
 

2. The applicant proposes an amendment to Specific Condition (A) regarding hours of 
operation. The current Specific Use Provision (SUP) establishes the hours from 8:00 
a.m. to 11:30 p.m. Monday through Sunday as the only times the facility can be open 
for events. The proposed amendment would extend the hours the facility can be open 
for events from 8:00 a.m. to 3:00 a.m. Monday through Sunday.  
 

3. One hundred twenty one (121) parking spaces are required for the Reception Facility 
per the Garland Development Code (GDC). The applicant will comply with the required 
parking.  

 
4. Landscaping currently exists on the site. Neither a building expansion nor a parking lot 

expansion is proposed with this request; therefore, new landscaping compliance is not 
triggered by this request.  

 
5. The GDC includes Special Standards for which the use must comply: 
 

(a) Time Period. An SUP for a Reception Facility is valid for the time period specified in 
the SUP ordinance.  The applicant requests the SUP to be in effect for a period of 
twenty (20) years. 

(b) Security. The reception facility must provide security at every event where alcoholic 
beverages are provided or served, and also for any events occurring after 6:00 p.m. 
Security must be by a qualified person(s) who is authorized to provide private security 
under Chapter 1702 of the Texas Occupations Code.  

(c) Loitering, Outside Activities. Prolonged congregating or loitering of event attendees 
or participants outside the reception facility is prohibited. Outside activities, if any, 
must be in compliance with the City's noise regulations as set forth in the City Code. 

(d) Noise Mitigation. The applicant must add noise mitigation materials to the existing 
building if determined necessary by the City to protect surrounding properties and the 
public health, safety, and welfare. 

(e) Litter & Debris. Any litter or debris left on the premises must be removed 
immediately following the event. The owner of the facility is responsible for removal of 
all litter and debris.   

 
(f)  Location.  Reception Facilities may not be located within five hundred feet of the 
property line of any dwelling unit or residential subdivision, elder care facility, or other 
Reception Facilities. The measurement of the distance between the establishment and a 
dwelling unit, elder care facility, or other Reception Facility shall be: 

 
(i)     for residential property, along a direct line from any exterior wall of the 
Reception Facility to the nearest point on the property line of the nearest residential 
zoned property; 
 



Page 3 of 4 
 

(ii)     for an MF dwelling not located on the same tract of land as the Reception 
Facility, along a direct line from any exterior wall of the Reception Facility to the 
nearest point on the property line of the tract on which the MF dwelling is located; 
 
(iii)     for an elder care facility or other Reception Facility not located on the same 
tract of land as the establishment, along a direct line from the nearest exterior wall 
of the Reception Facility to the nearest exterior wall of the elder care facility or 
other Reception Facility; or 
 
(iv)     for an elder care facility or other Reception Facility located on the same tract 
of land or in a commercial or retail center sharing a common parking area, the 
measurement shall be along a straight line from the midpoint of the nearest exterior 
door of the Reception Facility to the midpoint of the nearest exterior wall of the 
dwelling unit, elder care facility, or other Reception Facility in question. 
 

(g)     For reception facilities located within a building containing other tenants, the 
measurement shall be from the nearest outer wall of the Reception Facility's leasehold 
space. 

 
(h)     A Reception Facility may not be located on the same tract as any multifamily 
dwelling or elder care facility. 
 
The applicant concurs with these conditions and the request meets the abovementioned 
measurement requirements.  

 
7. The applicant is not proposing new signage with this request. There is an existing 

freestanding digital sign on site; the applicant proposes no changes to the existing sign. 
 
8. The applicant requests approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) effective for 

a period of twenty (20) years.   
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Business Centers for 
the subject property. Business Centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low 
impact industry, including campus-type development, which cumulatively employ large 
numbers of people. Operations within this development type occur internal to buildings 
resulting in minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) 
and are compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and 
intensity. Business Centers range in scale and intensity based on the surrounding vicinity 
and may consist of one or more buildings.  This development type includes a variety of 
primary and secondary uses, including compatible residential uses, that support the 
business employment sector. 
 
Additionally, the site is within the I-30 Catalyst Area. The proposal allows for the re-use of 
an existing building and site, and brings events and activities to the area. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The property to the west is zoned Community Office (CO) District and is developed with an 
office complex. The property to the east is zoned Community Office (CO) District with a 
Specific Use Provision (S 15-03 for Drive-Through Restaurant Use) and is developed with a 
Golden Chick drive-through restaurant. The property immediately to the south is zoned 
Community Office (CO) District with a Specific Use Provision (S 11-14 for Child Care 
Center) and is developed with a church and child care center. The property to the north 



Page 4 of 4 
 
across IH 30 is zoned Community Office (CO) District with a Specific Use Provision (S 07-
32) and is developed with a La Quinta Inn & Suites hotel.  
 
The proposed location is within a commercial area and adjacent to an interstate highway, 
thus reducing concern Reception Facilities often raise about proximity to residential homes. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of an amended Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Reception Facility on a property 
zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
Approval of a Detail Plan for a Reception Facility on a property zoned Planned Development 
(PD) District 20-40 for Community Office Uses. 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Detail Plan  
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023  
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Josue De La Vega, MCRP Will Guerin, AICP 
Senior Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Community Development  
972-205-2883  
jdelavega@garlandtx.gov  

mailto:jdelavega@garlandtx.gov


BO
BT

OW
N 

RD

E I30
ZION
OFF S

RID
GE

CO
VE

DR

OAKS TRL

WISE LN

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 SERVICE RD S

LY
ON

S R
D

E I30 ON N

E I30 ROAN OFF S

BOBTOWN RD P D  9 7 - 5 1P D  9 7 - 5 1
P D  9 6 - 5 2P D  9 6 - 5 2

S  9 3 - 3 9S  9 3 - 3 9

S  9 9 - 1 1S  9 9 - 1 1

P DP D
9 5 - 5 89 5 - 5 8

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
0 7 - 3 20 7 - 3 2

S  7 4 - 2 6S  7 4 - 2 6

P D / SP D / S
2 0 - 4 02 0 - 4 0

SS
0 4 - 5 90 4 - 5 9

SS
1 5 - 0 31 5 - 0 3

A GA G

C RC R

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

C OC O

P D  1 9 - 2 2P D  1 9 - 2 2

P DP D
2 2 - 1 62 2 - 1 6

C OC O

329

350

5525

333

354

416

401

402
337

430

444
440

362

375

429

415

350
320

5601

455
3785

ZONING MAP Z 22-78
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 264 feet

354 East I-30 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



1 of 5

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS A POINT-IN-TIME REPRESENTATION OF SITE
CONDITIONS AS OF THE DATE AND TIME THAT THE SCAN WAS COMPLETE,
CONDITIONS MAY HAVE CHANGED SINCE THAT TIME. GMR DOES NOT REPRESENT
OR WARRANT THE ACCURACY OF THE SITE CONDITIONS AFTER THE DATE AND TIME
THAT THE SCAN WAS COMPLETED. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE USED BY
ANYONE OTHER THAN THE LAWFUL OWNER EXCEPT WITH WRITTEN PERMISSION
FROM THE LAWFUL OWNER. THIS DOCUMENT (EXCEPTING REGISTERED
TRADEMARKS) SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF THE LAWFUL OWNER AND GMR.

FIELDWORK BY:

PLANS REVIEWED BY:

PLANS PREPARED BY:

PLANS APPROVED BY:

354 E. Interstate 30 
Garland, TX  75043

KRM

TLSDJC

DJC

E.
IN

TE
R

ST
A

TE
 3

0

O
A

K
S 

TR
A

IL

SCALE: 1"=30'-0"
OVERALL SITE PLAN

v3 210115

REF.

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

O
H
P

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP OHP

OHP

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

75'-6"±

13
2'-

6"
±

AREA DISTRIBUTION

EXISTING BUILDING, MAIN 9522 SQ. FT

EXISTING BUILDING, WAREHOUSE 2573 SQ. FT

TOTAL FLOOR AREA 12095 SQ. FT

TOTAL LOT AREA 105147 SQ. FT

TOTAL BUILDING COVERAGE 11.5%

BUILDING DIMENSIONS

BUILDING MAXIMUM HEIGHT 25'-1"

EAST CANOPY DIMENSION 14'-6"L, 25'-1"W, 15'-0" H

CLEARANCE 10'-6"

20'-7.5"L, 25'-1"W, 15'-0" H

10'-6"CLEARANCE

WEST CANOPY DIMENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVENT CENTER STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER PAD

Khopkins
Text Box
EXHIBIT C



   
 

 Z 22-78 
 

     

           View of the subject property from IH 30. View of properties to the west.  

     
 

 

   View of IH 30 from subject property. 
 
 
 
 

View of properties to the east. 



BO
BT

OW
N 

RD

E I30
ZION
OFF S

RID
GE

CO
VE

DR

OAKS TRL

WISE LN

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 SERVICE RD S

LY
ON

S R
D

E I30 ON N

E I30 ROAN OFF S

BOBTOWN RD P D  9 7 - 5 1P D  9 7 - 5 1
P D  9 6 - 5 2P D  9 6 - 5 2

S  9 3 - 3 9S  9 3 - 3 9

S  9 9 - 1 1S  9 9 - 1 1

P DP D
9 5 - 5 89 5 - 5 8

C RC R

S F - 7S F - 7

SS
0 7 - 3 20 7 - 3 2

S  7 4 - 2 6S  7 4 - 2 6

P D / SP D / S
2 0 - 4 02 0 - 4 0

SS
0 4 - 5 90 4 - 5 9

SS
1 5 - 0 31 5 - 0 3

A GA G

C RC R

P D  2 1 - 5 2P D  2 1 - 5 2

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

M F - 1M F - 1

C OC O

P D  1 9 - 2 2P D  1 9 - 2 2

P DP D
2 2 - 1 62 2 - 1 6

C OC O

329

350

5525

333

354

416

401

402
337

430

444
440

362

375

429

415

350
320

5601

455
3785

ZONING MAP Z 22-78
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 264 feet

354 East I-30 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES 
NOTIFICATION AREA



To date we have not received any responses for this case. 



GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. h.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering - Special Use Provision (District 8)
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Clay Cristy–ClayMoore Engineering, requesting approval
of a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through Use on a property zoned
Industrial (IN) District. This property is located at 119 East Buckingham Road. (District 8) (File
Z 22-79 – Specific Use Provision)

Attachments
Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering (SUP) Report and Attachments 
Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-79/District 8 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an additional Drive-Through to an existing 
Restaurant, Drive-Through (McDonald’s). 
 
Approval of a Plan on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. 
 
LOCATION 
119 East Buckingham Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Clay Cristy – ClayMoore Engineering 
 
 
OWNER 
McDonalds USA LLC 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant proposes to open a second drive-through lane for an existing McDonald’s 
building. The GDC requires a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through use in 
the Industrial (IN) District. The existing drive-through is considered a legal non-conforming 
use. 
 
 
SITE DATA 
The 0.875-acre site contains a 5,010 square-foot McDonald’s building with a drive-through. 
The applicant wishes to add another drive-through lane. The site is accessed from two 
entrance points on East Buckingham Road as well as an access easement on North First 
Street. 

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Industrial (IN) District. It contains a McDonald’s restaurant 
with a drive-through.  

The Industrial (IN) district is intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are 
generally not compatible adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be 
compatible with some nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, 
assembling, research and development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial 
district also accommodates support services for industrial development such as office, 
commercial, personal and professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial 
district regulations are designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in 
the district, and to protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially 
incompatible uses and conditions. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
  
Specific Use Provision:    
1. The applicant proposes to add a second drive-through to an existing McDonald’s, which 

is classified as a Restaurant, Drive-Through use in the GDC. 
 
The GDC defines a Restaurant, Drive-Through use as “An establishment at which food 
and beverages are prepared primarily for service to persons in vehicles, and may include 
consumption on the premises or curbside service. The term may include a take-out 
window, walk-up window, drive-through, or drive-in service bays as part of the 
operation. A Restaurant that includes a drive-through lane for a pick-up window but 
does not allow ordering at the window and does not include a menu/order board is not 
considered a Restaurant, Drive-Through.” 
 

2. Due to the removal of 10 parking spaces, the applicant is requesting a deviation in 
parking spaces provided. The site requires 51 spaces, while the applicant is requesting 
42. In a parking study submitted, it is noted that a majority of sales come from the 
drive-through. It is also noted that the majority of their current parking spaces go 
unused throughout the day. 
 

3. The applicant is requesting approval of a twenty-five (25) year Specific Use Provision. 
The SUP Time Period Guide recommends a range of twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) 
years. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommend Business Centers for the 
subject site. Business centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low impact 
industry, including campus-type development that cumulatively employ large numbers of 
people. Operations within this development type occur internal to buildings resulting in 
minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) and are 
compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and intensity. 
Business centers are generally located at intersections of major and/or secondary arterial 
streets or significant transit areas (bus/rail). Proximity and access to residential areas are 
encouraged to reduce travel times to employment. Site design addresses function and visual 
aesthetics providing appropriate buffering at gateway corridors, between adjacent 
developments, and for residential neighborhoods. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the North, South, East, and West are zoned Industrial (IN). These 
properties contain minor automobile repair, major automobile repair, restaurants, retail 
stores, and office space. The adjacent property to the North is vacant, as well as the 
adjacent property to the Northwest that contains the access easement from North First 
Street. To the West of North First Street, properties are zoned Community Retail (CR) 
District for a Walmart and Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District for single-family detached homes. 
 
The proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an additional drive-through for an existing 
Restaurant, Drive-Through (McDonald’s). 
 
Approval of a Plan on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


PYRAMID DR

TWILIGHT DR

MCDIVITT DR

E BUCKINGHAM RD

MELISSA LN

VINE
CT

N
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

WHITE DR

D
AY

 S
T

LUCINDA DR

M
ER

C
U

RY
 D

R

W BUCKINGHAM RD

G
EM

IN
I D

R

M
O

N
AR

C
H

 D
R

ED
N

A 
SM

IT
H

 D
R

DAWN DR

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 D

R

VI
N

E 
D

R

LA
M

O
N

T 
D

R

TINA DR

BELT LIN
E R

D

CRIST R
D

LA
VO

N
 D

R

S F - 7S F - 7

S  1 3 - 0 9S  1 3 - 0 9

P D  2 0 - 0 7P D  2 0 - 0 7

P D  8 0 - 6 7P D  8 0 - 6 7

S  9 5 - 3 3S  9 5 - 3 3

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  9 3 - 3 5P D  9 3 - 3 5

S F - 7S F - 7

C OC O

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

I NI N

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

P D  2 2 - 5 6P D  2 2 - 5 6

101

2316
2306

112

1914

225

121

2100

1910

119 213

222118
102

111

1910

217

101

1906

210

219

132

215

124

131 201

2326

2000

121

2002

2001

214

218

ZONING MAP Z 22-79
¯

0 220 440 Feet
1 inch = 330 feet

119 East Buckingham Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B 

 
 

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION CONDITIONS 
 
 

ZONING FILE Z 22-79 
 

119 East Buckingham Road 
 

 
 
I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific 

Use Provision is to allow an additional drive-through 
at an existing Restaurant, Drive-Through. 

 
II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision 

shall not affect any regulation found in the Garland 
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior 
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically 
provided herein. 
 

 
III. General Regulations:  All regulations of the 

Industrial (IN) District and Site Development 
Standards as set forth in Chapter 2 and 4 of the 
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included 
by reference and shall apply, except as otherwise 
specified by this ordinance. 
 
 

IV. Development Plans: 
 
Site Layout: The site shall be in general conformance 
with the approved Site Plan, Landscape Plan, and 
Elevations labeled Exhibit C, Exhibit D, and Exhibit 
E. In the event of conflict between the conditions and 
the site plan, the written conditions listed below are 
to apply. 

 
V. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this 

Specific Use Provision was granted (“Land Use”) is 
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are 
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used 
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state 
law.  
 
For the purposes of this Specific Use Provision, 
Abandonment is any of the following acts: 
 

 
A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on 

the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of 
the effective date of this SUP; 
 

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for 
the Land use within 730 days of the effective date 
of this SUP; 



PD/SUP Requirements 
Zoning File 22-64 
Page 2 

EXHIBIT B 

 
C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the 

premises within 90 days of receiving a final 
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use; 
 

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180 
days; 
 

E. Applying for, and receiving, a new Certificate of 
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or 

 
F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a 

primary or secondary use, that is not allowed within 
the PD District, by the GDC, or by state or federal 
law. 

 
The termination of utilities on the premises for a 
period of 180 calendar days is prima facie evidence of 
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to 
prove that the Land Use has not been abandoned. 

 
 
VI. Specific Regulations:   
 

A. Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a 
twenty-five (25) year time period. 
 

 
 

 



   
 

 

Z 22-79 
 
 

  

View of the subject site looking North from East 
Buckingham Road. 

View from the subject site looking East on East 
Buckingham Road. This area is zoned IN. 

 
 
 

 

View from the subject site looking South across from 
East Buckingham Road. A tire shop and another 
property also zoned IN is shown. 

View from the subject site looking West on East 
Buckingham Road. Across the intersection is a CR 
zoned area to the West. 



,_S[F -7 

a: 
0 
:c .... 
~ 
"' <( 
z 
0 
w 

SF - 7 

PD 20-07 

a: 
0 
<( a: 

co 

PD 93-35 

101 

~ u 
5 ~H s j .... 

2100 

111 I 121 

131 1201 

2316 

2306 

219 
217 
215 

'13 

2326 

I N 

22 

E BUCKINGHAM RD f LJ 1-------'~---tt---· ! L ~ e 

t---+---------1--w BUCKINGHAM RD ===~=~~-·=-~. ~._-_,--7c,,:,,-Ji-7-1!!!!"!!l-r-~TT 
112 n1BnL4nJL 

102 
210 

214 

218 

0 220 440 Feet ZONING MAP Z 22-79 .. INDICATES AREA O INDICATES 
I I I 1 inch = 330 feet OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

119 East Buckingham Road 





GARLAND

   
Plan Commission 3. i.        
Meeting Date: 02/13/2023  
Item Title: Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering - Plan (District 8)
Submitted For: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner, Planning & Community Development 

Summary:
Consideration of the application of Clay Cristy–ClayMoore Engineering, requesting approval
of a Plan for a Restaurant, Drive-Through on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. This
property is located at 119 East Buckingham Road. (District 8) (File Z 22-79 - Plan)

Attachments
Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering (Plan) Report and Attachments 
Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering Responses 



 

Planning Report 
File No: Z 22-79/District 8 
Agenda Item: 
Meeting: Plan Commission 
Date: February 13, 2023 
 
REQUEST 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an additional Drive-Through to an existing 
Restaurant, Drive-Through (McDonald’s). 
 
Approval of a Plan on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. 
 
LOCATION 
119 East Buckingham Road 
 
 
APPLICANT 
Clay Cristy – ClayMoore Engineering 
 
 
OWNER 
McDonalds USA LLC 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant proposes to open a second drive-through lane for an existing McDonald’s 
building. The GDC requires a Specific Use Provision for a Restaurant, Drive-Through use in 
the Industrial (IN) District. The existing drive-through is considered a legal non-conforming 
use. 
 
 
SITE DATA 
The 0.875-acre site contains a 5,010 square-foot McDonald’s building with a drive-through. 
The applicant wishes to add another drive-through lane. The site is accessed from two 
entrance points on East Buckingham Road as well as an access easement on North First 
Street. 

 
USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING 
The subject property is zoned Industrial (IN) District. It contains a McDonald’s restaurant 
with a drive-through.  

The Industrial (IN) district is intended to provide for a wide range of industrial uses that are 
generally not compatible adjacent to residential neighborhoods, and may or may not be 
compatible with some nonresidential uses. Such uses include manufacturing, processing, 
assembling, research and development, and warehousing and distribution. The Industrial 
district also accommodates support services for industrial development such as office, 
commercial, personal and professional services, and limited retail activities. The Industrial 
district regulations are designed to ensure compatibility among the various uses allowed in 
the district, and to protect adjacent non-industrial development from potentially 
incompatible uses and conditions. 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 
 
CONSIDERATIONS: 
  
Specific Use Provision:    
1. The applicant proposes to add a second drive-through to an existing McDonald’s, which 

is classified as a Restaurant, Drive-Through use in the GDC. 
 
The GDC defines a Restaurant, Drive-Through use as “An establishment at which food 
and beverages are prepared primarily for service to persons in vehicles, and may include 
consumption on the premises or curbside service. The term may include a take-out 
window, walk-up window, drive-through, or drive-in service bays as part of the 
operation. A Restaurant that includes a drive-through lane for a pick-up window but 
does not allow ordering at the window and does not include a menu/order board is not 
considered a Restaurant, Drive-Through.” 
 

2. Due to the removal of 10 parking spaces, the applicant is requesting a deviation in 
parking spaces provided. The site requires 51 spaces, while the applicant is requesting 
42. In a parking study submitted, it is noted that a majority of sales come from the 
drive-through. It is also noted that the majority of their current parking spaces go 
unused throughout the day. 
 

3. The applicant is requesting approval of a twenty-five (25) year Specific Use Provision. 
The SUP Time Period Guide recommends a range of twenty (20) to twenty-five (25) 
years. 

 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommend Business Centers for the 
subject site. Business centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low impact 
industry, including campus-type development that cumulatively employ large numbers of 
people. Operations within this development type occur internal to buildings resulting in 
minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) and are 
compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and intensity. 
Business centers are generally located at intersections of major and/or secondary arterial 
streets or significant transit areas (bus/rail). Proximity and access to residential areas are 
encouraged to reduce travel times to employment. Site design addresses function and visual 
aesthetics providing appropriate buffering at gateway corridors, between adjacent 
developments, and for residential neighborhoods. 
 
COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES 
The properties to the North, South, East, and West are zoned Industrial (IN). These 
properties contain minor automobile repair, major automobile repair, restaurants, retail 
stores, and office space. The adjacent property to the North is vacant, as well as the 
adjacent property to the Northwest that contains the access easement from North First 
Street. To the West of North First Street, properties are zoned Community Retail (CR) 
District for a Walmart and Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District for single-family detached homes. 
 
The proposed use is generally compatible with the surrounding area. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Approval of a Specific Use Provision for an additional drive-through for an existing 
Restaurant, Drive-Through (McDonald’s). 
 
Approval of a Plan on a property zoned Industrial (IN) District. 



Page 3 of 3 
 
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
i. Location Map 
ii. SUP Conditions 
iii. Exhibits 
iv. Photos 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL DATE: March 7, 2023 
 
 
PREPARED BY:     REVIEWED BY: 
Matthew Wolverton Will Guerin, AICP 
Development Planner Director of Planning 
Planning & Development  
972-205-2454  
mwolverton@garlandtx.gov   

mailto:mwolverton@garlandtx.gov


PYRAMID DR

TWILIGHT DR

MCDIVITT DR

E BUCKINGHAM RD

MELISSA LN

VINE
CT

N
 F

IR
ST

 S
T

WHITE DR

D
AY

 S
T

LUCINDA DR

M
ER

C
U

RY
 D

R

W BUCKINGHAM RD

G
EM

IN
I D

R

M
O

N
AR

C
H

 D
R

ED
N

A 
SM

IT
H

 D
R

DAWN DR

VI
C

TO
R

IA
 D

R

VI
N

E 
D

R

LA
M

O
N

T 
D

R

TINA DR

BELT LIN
E R

D

CRIST R
D

LA
VO

N
 D

R

S F - 7S F - 7

S  1 3 - 0 9S  1 3 - 0 9

P D  2 0 - 0 7P D  2 0 - 0 7

P D  8 0 - 6 7P D  8 0 - 6 7

S  9 5 - 3 3S  9 5 - 3 3

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  9 3 - 3 5P D  9 3 - 3 5

S F - 7S F - 7

C OC O

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

I NI N

S F - 7S F - 7

S F - 7S F - 7

C RC R

P D  2 2 - 5 6P D  2 2 - 5 6

101

2316
2306

112

1914

225

121

2100

1910

119 213

222118
102

111

1910

217

101

1906

210

219

132

215

124

131 201

2326

2000

121

2002

2001

214

218

ZONING MAP Z 22-79
¯

0 220 440 Feet
1 inch = 330 feet

119 East Buckingham Road 

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



TBM MNS
553.67'

UP

45

UP GUY UP LP
UP/UG

EL
EC

EL
EC

GUY LP

CO(2)

LP

"McDONALD'S"
PYLON SIGN

GATE

LP

LP

CO(2) MENU BOARD

H
C

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

(2
)

WM

C
O

(2
)

UCWMFHWM
WM

IV

GM

G
A

S

ELEC
LP

EM

LPSIGN

LPLP

LP

LP

B
U

SS
TO

P
D RIM=550.9'ELEC

"M
cD

O
N

A
LD

'S
" P

Y
LO

N
 S

IG
N

D
RIM=552.8'

LP
LP

TBM MNS
552.02'

"+"

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

1/2" REBAR
"ILLEGABLE RED CAP"

CRS

MNSCRS

CRS

MNS

CRS

CRS

GM

A
E 

C
LR

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

LO
AD

IN
G Z

ONE

SAWCUT LINE
EXISTING DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE.

19' 24'

9'±
TYP.

EX. FENCE

EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURE.

EX. STREET LIGHTEX. FIRE HYDRANT

EX. WATER METERS
EX. CURB INLET

EX. 5' SIDEWALK

EX. WALL

EX. POWER POLE EX. GUY ANCHOR

EX. LIGHT FIXTURE

EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURE.

EX. FLAGPOLE

75°'

EASEMENT GRANT PARCEL 3
VOL. 84178 PG 1497 D.R.D.C.T.

LOT 3R BLOCK 1
 D & P SUBDIVISION

OWNER: CITY OF GARLAND
COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT NUMBER: 26128500010030000

INST.# 20080125851
O.P.R.D.C.T.

OWNER: CITY OF GARLAND
COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT NUMBER: 26128500010040000

INST.# 20080125851
O.P.R.D.C.T.

O
W

N
ER

: B
IG

 R
O

O
FI

N
G

 C
O

., 
IN

C
., 

A 
TE

XA
S 

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

AC
C

O
U

N
T 

N
U

M
BE

R
: 2

61
28

50
00

10
05

00
00

VO
L.

 7
70

46
, P

G
. 1

52
4

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

LO
T 

5
D

 &
 P

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
VO

L.
 4

05
, P

G
. 1

13
2

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PORTION OF LOT 4
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

PORTION OF LOT 3
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

OWNER: WAYNE M. BREWER, TRUSTEE
COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT NUMBER:
26128500010040100
VOL. 84185, PG. 3184
D.R.D.C.T.

O
W

N
ER

: 4
 T

IR
ES

 A
N

D
 W

H
EE

LS
, I

N
C

.
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
AC

C
O

U
N

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

: 2
61

28
50

00
10

01
00

00
VO

L.
 2

00
22

12
, P

G
. 6

93
3

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PO
R

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LO

T 
1,

 B
LO

C
K 

1
D

 &
 P

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
VO

L.
 4

05
, P

G
. 1

13
2

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PORTION OF LOT 3
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

WOULD NEED
AN INTEGRATED
MENU BOARD

EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURE.

EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURE.

CURB INLET

EX. LIGHT FIXTURE.

EX. 5' SIDEWALK

PROP. MCDONALDS
GATEWAY

END NO CURB

EXISTING LIGHT FIXTURE.

10
.6

3'
8'

8'
9'

±
TY

P.

9'±
TYP.

9'±
TYP.

75°'

75°'

2

3

5

7

1

2

2

2

2

4

5

5 5

5

5
5

8

8

8

8

7

11

1

2

3

3

3

3

14

14

10

11

6

9

9

10

12

11

12

12

13

13

1

5

6

EXISTING
McDONALDS

BUILDING 5,010 SF
FFE = 555.1

5'

5.62'

24
' F

IR
EL

AN
E

10'24.1'19'

12'

15'

10'
24' FIR

ELAN
E

15'

5.75'

5.75'

65' TO COD

35'

9

9

3

9

9

6.2' 13.4' 10.1' 21' FIRELANE 19.3'

19'

9'

R
20

'
R2

0'
R

44
'

R
20

'

R20'

R30'

R20'

R20.5' R2
0.

5'

R2
0'

R4
4'

N
00

°5
0'

24
"W

19
6.

22
'

N89°09'36"E
200.42'

S0
0°

50
'3

6"
E

15
0.

84
'

S86°11'36"W
195.70'

S86°11'36"W  5.00'

S00°50'36"E  35.00'

8" SEWER LINE

EX. WATER LINE

29.28'
33.19'

EX. R14.4'±

EX
. R

14
.2

'±

EX. R8'±

EX
. R

14
.6

'±

BUCKINGHAM ROAD
100' RIGHT-OF-WAY

AS SHOWN ON

VOL. 405, PG. 1132
D.R.D.C.T.

(NO DEDICATION DOCUMENT FOUND)

N
O

R
TH

 F
IR

ST
 S

TR
EE

T
80

' R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

(N
O

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
FO

U
N

D
)

EXISTING FIRE LANE

40
'

R44'

13.68'

R20'
R10

'

60.81'

77.3'

62
.6

4'

13.11'

1.75'

20
'

8'

PICK UP
WINDOW

PAYMENT
WINDOW

0
GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =         ft.

20 20 40

20

10

McDonald's

SP-1SITE PLAN

PROPERTY LINE

PARKING COUNT

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE
4" PARKING STALL STRIPING
COLOR: WHITE (TYP)

CIRCLE / ARROW
COLOR: YELLOW

6" DRIVE THRU STRIPING
COLOR: YELLOW

THANK YOU AT END OF PATH
COLOR: YELLOW

ARROW PATH DIRECTION
COLOR: WHITE

HANDICAP ACCESSIBLE
SPACES/SYMBOLS/ACCESS AISLES
COLOR: PER STATE/CITY REQUIREMENTS

DRIVE THRU LEADING TO PATH ENTRANCE
COLOR: YELLOW

DRIVE THRU WITH ARROW TYPICAL AT ALL
ENTRIES
COLOR: YELLOW

CROSS WALK STRIPING PER DETAIL SHEET C-6

EXISTING WHEEL STOPS

EXISTING ADA RAMP

EXISTING ADA SIGN

EXISTNING HANDRAIL

EXISTING PULL UP STATION

12

13

14

O
FF

IC
E

AD
D

R
ES

S

G
R

EA
TE

R
 S

O
U

TH
W

ES
T 

R
EG

IO
N

51
1 

E 
JO

H
N

 C
AR

PE
N

TE
R

 F
R

W
Y 

SU
IT

E 
37

5,
IR

VI
N

G
, T

X 
75

06
2

M
cD

O
N

A
LD

'S
TH

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
AN

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

AR
E 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
M

cD
O

N
AL

D
'S

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AN
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
EI

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 C
O

N
SE

N
T.

M
cD

O
N

AL
D

'S
 L

/C
: 0

42
-0

43
6

C
LA

YM
O

O
R

E 
EN

G
. N

O
. 2

01
7-

03
7

11
9 

EA
ST

 B
U

C
KI

N
G

H
AM

 R
O

AD
G

AR
LA

N
D

, T
EX

AS

PL
AN

 A
PP

R
O

VA
LS

SI
G

N
AT

U
R

E 
(2

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
)

R
EG

IO
N

AL
 M

G
R

.

C
O

N
ST

. M
G

R
.

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S 
D

EP
T.

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 D
EP

T.

D
AT

E

C
O

-S
IG

N
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R

O
W

N
ER

STATUS

DATE DRAWN

PLAN CHECKED

ASBUILT

DATE BY

1/23/2023

1/23/2023

CLC

CLC

SHEET NO.

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
1/

27
/2

02
3 

2:
57

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 c
cr

is
ty

   
   

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

 J
an

 2
7,

 2
02

3 
- 3

:0
8p

m
LO

C
AT

IO
N

: Z
:\M

ar
ke

tin
g\

M
cD

on
al

ds
\M

cD
on

al
ds

 G
ar

la
nd

 - 
Bu

ck
in

gh
am

\C
AD

D
\S

H
EE

TS
\S

P-
1 

Si
te

 P
la

n.
dw

g

R
EV

D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
BY

IS
SU

E
R

EF

19
03

 C
EN

TR
AL

 D
R

.
SU

IT
E 

#4
06

PH
O

N
E:

 8
17

.2
81

.0
57

2
BE

D
FO

R
D

, T
X 

76
02

1
W

W
W

.C
LA

YM
O

O
R

EE
N

G
.C

O
M

1-800-DIG-TESS
DIG TESS

 CALL BEFORE YOU DIG 

(@ least 72 hours prior to digging)

 STOP! COUNTY SURVEY: ABSTRACT NO.

DALLAS D&P SUBDIVISION VOL. 84176, PG. 3469

SHEET NAMEL/C NUMBER:

042-0436

CITY: STATE:

GARLAND TX

ADDRESS:

119 EAST BUCKINGHAM ROAD

ADDITION:

DRIVE THRU REMODEL

SURVEY INFORMATION:
PREPARED BY: LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOT 3R BLOCK 1 OF THE D&P SUBDIVISION

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  220623-3

EAGLE SURVEYING
210 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE 104
DENTON, TX 76201

BENCHMARK DESCRIPTION

T.B.M. NO. 1 - "X" CUT SET ON TOP OF CURB AT SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF SITE.

POSTED ELEVATION = 552.24
T.B.M. NO. 2 - "X" CUT SET ON TOP OF CURB INLET AT NORTHERN

PROPERTY LINE. POSTED ELEVATION = 554.82

1/27/
2023

OWNER/DEVELOPER:
MCDONALDS USA
PO BOX 182571
COLUMBUS, OH 43218
CONTACT: EDDIE NUNEZ
PH: 972.869.1888

APPLICANT/ENGINEER:
CLAYMOORE ENGINEERING
1903 CENTRAL DR. STE. 406
BEDFORD, TX 76021
CONTACT: CLAY CRISTY
PH: 817.281.0572

NTS
VICINITY MAP

SITE

E. BUCKINGHAM RDU
S 

H
W

Y 
78

U
S 

H
W

Y 
78

CASTLE DR.

N
 F

IR
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

SITE DATA TABLE

SITE AREA 0.875 AC - 38,113 SF

BUILDING AREA 5,010 SF (EXISTING)

BUILDING HEIGHT 21' (EXISTING)

FLOOR AREA RATIO 1 : 0.13

TOTAL FLOOR AREA RATIO 1 : 0.13

TOTAL IMPERVIOUS
COVERAGE

33,840 SF (88.8%)

BUILDING COVERAGE 5,010 SF (EXISTING)

BUILDING AREA 5,010 SF
(1/ 100 SF) 51 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED 42 SPACES (3 ADA)

OPEN SPACE 4,273 SF (11.2%)

ZONING DATA TABLE

PROPOSED USE RESTAURANT W/ DRIVE THRU

BUILDING SF 5,010 SF (EXISTING)

HEIGHT 21' (EXISTING)

FINISHED FLOOR 555.1

NOTES:

1. THIS PROJECT WILL COMPLY WITH ALL THE SIGN REQUIREMENTS
SET FORTH IN THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE (GDC).

2. ALL SIGNAGE WILL REQUIRE A SEPARATE PERMITTING THROUGH
THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT.

PROPOSED
MODIFICATION

AREA

Exhibit C

AutoCAD SHX Text
THANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. 2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING HANDICAP CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING HANDICAP SIGNAGES FOR ADA COMPLIANCE. REPLACE IF NECESSARY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
XX

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY CRISTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
109800

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



TBM MNS
553.67'

UP

45

UP GUY UP 16" HACKBERRY
LP

UP/UG

EL
EC

EL
EC

GUY LP

CO(2)

LP

"McDONALD'S"
PYLON SIGN

14" OAK
12" OAK

12" OAK
10" MULBERRY

8" HACKBERRY

12" HACKBERRY
GATE

LP
18" MULBERRY

12" HAKBERRY

LP

CO(2) MENU BOARD

H
C

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

(2
)

WM

C
O

(2
)

9" HACKBERRY

UCWMFHWM
WM

IV

20" HACKBERRY

GM

G
A

S

10" OAK

13" OAK

ELEC

16" OAK
LP

EM

LPSIGN

LPLP

7" OAK
6" SWEETGUM

10" OAK

LP

12" OAK

10" OAK

LP

B
U

SS
TO

P

D RIM=550.9'ELEC

"M
cD

O
N

A
LD

'S
" P

Y
LO

N
 S

IG
N

D
RIM=552.8' 12" OAK

LP
LP

"+"

1/2" REBAR

1/2" REBAR

5/8" REBAR

1/2" REBAR
"ILLEGABLE RED CAP"

CRS

MNSCRS

CRS

MNS

CRS

CRS

GM

A
E 

C
LR

EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING
BUILDING

LO
AD

IN
G Z

ONE

GL

GL

GL

GL

GL

GL

GL

PMPM

PMPM
PM

PM

DB

DB

DB

DB

DY DY

DY DY

DY
WM

WM

WM

RY

RY RY

RY

TX TX
TX

CR

CR

CR CR

SAWCUT LINE

75°'

LOT 3R BLOCK 1
 D & P SUBDIVISION

OWNER: CITY OF GARLAND
COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT NUMBER: 26128500010030000

INST.# 20080125851
O.P.R.D.C.T.

OWNER: CITY OF GARLAND
COMMERCIAL ACCOUNT NUMBER: 26128500010040000

INST.# 20080125851
O.P.R.D.C.T.

O
W

N
ER

: B
IG

 R
O

O
FI

N
G

 C
O

., 
IN

C
., 

A 
TE

XA
S 

C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L 

AC
C

O
U

N
T 

N
U

M
BE

R
: 2

61
28

50
00

10
05

00
00

VO
L.

 7
70

46
, P

G
. 1

52
4

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

LO
T 

5
D

 &
 P

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
VO

L.
 4

05
, P

G
. 1

13
2

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PORTION OF LOT 4
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

PORTION OF LOT 3
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

O
W

N
ER

: 4
 T

IR
ES

 A
N

D
 W

H
EE

LS
, I

N
C

.
C

O
M

M
ER

C
IA

L 
AC

C
O

U
N

T 
N

U
M

BE
R

: 2
61

28
50

00
10

01
00

00
VO

L.
 2

00
22

12
, P

G
. 6

93
3

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PO
R

TI
O

N
 O

F 
LO

T 
1,

 B
LO

C
K 

1
D

 &
 P

 S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
VO

L.
 4

05
, P

G
. 1

13
2

D
.R

.D
.C

.T
.

PORTION OF LOT 3
D & P SUBDIVISION
VOL. 405, PG. 1132

D.R.D.C.T.

75°'

75°'

EXISTING
McDONALDS

BUILDING 5,010 SF
FFE = 555.1

13.4' 10.1' 21' 19.3'
N

00
°5

0'
24

"W
19

6.
22

'

N89°09'36"E
200.42'

S0
0°

50
'3

6"
E

15
0.

84
'

S86°11'36"W
195.70'

S86°11'36"W  5.00'

S00°50'36"E  35.00'

10" OAK TO REMAIN

12" OAK TO REMAIN

10" OAK TO REMAIN

12" OAK TO REMAIN 16" OAK TO REMAIN

13" OAK TO REMAIN

10" OAK TO REMAIN

20" HACKBERRY
TO REMAIN

12" HACKBERRY TO REMAIN

18" MULBERRY TO REMAIN

12" HACKBERRY TO REMAIN

9" HACKBERRY TO REMAIN

8" HACKBERRY TO REMAIN

10" MULBERRY TO REMAIN12" OAK TO REMAIN

14" OAK TO REMAIN

12" OAK TO REMAIN

CONTRACTOR TO SOD
NEW LANDSCAPE ISLAND

EXISTING HEDGES TO REMAIN

EXISTING HEDGES TO REMAIN

16" HACKBERRY TO REMAIN

6" SWEETGUM TO REMAIN7" OAK TO REMAIN

4.63' LAN
D

SC
APE AR

EA

6.96' LANDSCAPE AREA

7.19 LAN
D

SC
APE AR

EA

6.75 LANDSCAPE AREA

40
'

13.68'

7'
LANDSCAPE AREA

4.
55

'

LANDSCAPE AREA

6.88'

LANDSCAPE AREA

4.3'

LANDSCAPE AREA

EXISTING HEDGES TO REMAIN

EXISTING BUSHES TO REMAIN

EXISTING BUSHES TO REMAIN

PICK UP WINDOW

EXISTING BUSHES
TO REMAIN

EX. SODDED SURFACE

EX. SODDED SURFACE

EX. SODDED SURFACE

EX. SODDED SURFACE

EX. SODDED SURFACE

EX. SODDED SURFACE

0
GRAPHIC SCALE

1 inch =         ft.

20 20 40

20

10

McDonald's

L-1LANDSCAPE AND TREE PLAN

O
FF

IC
E

AD
D

R
ES

S

G
R

EA
TE

R
 S

O
U

TH
W

ES
T 

R
EG

IO
N

51
1 

E 
JO

H
N

 C
AR

PE
N

TE
R

 F
R

W
Y 

SU
IT

E 
37

5,
IR

VI
N

G
, T

X 
75

06
2

M
cD

O
N

A
LD

'S
TH

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
AN

D
 S

PE
C

IF
IC

AT
IO

N
S 

AR
E 

TH
E 

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 O

F 
M

cD
O

N
AL

D
'S

 C
O

R
PO

R
AT

IO
N

AN
D

 S
H

AL
L 

N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

R
O

D
U

C
ED

 W
IT

H
O

U
T 

TH
EI

R
 W

R
IT

TE
N

 C
O

N
SE

N
T.

M
cD

O
N

AL
D

'S
 L

/C
: 0

42
-0

43
6

C
LA

YM
O

O
R

E 
EN

G
. N

O
. 2

01
7-

03
7

11
9 

EA
ST

 B
U

C
KI

N
G

H
AM

 R
O

AD
G

AR
LA

N
D

, T
EX

AS

PL
AN

 A
PP

R
O

VA
LS

SI
G

N
AT

U
R

E 
(2

 R
EQ

U
IR

ED
)

R
EG

IO
N

AL
 M

G
R

.

C
O

N
ST

. M
G

R
.

O
PE

R
AT

IO
N

S 
D

EP
T.

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 D
EP

T.

D
AT

E

C
O

-S
IG

N
 S

IG
N

AT
U

R
E

C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R

O
W

N
ER

STATUS

DATE DRAWN

PLAN CHECKED

ASBUILT

DATE BY

1/23/2023

1/23/2023

CLC

CLC

SHEET NO.

LA
ST

 S
AV

ED
1/

11
/2

02
3 

1:
37

 P
M

PL
O

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 c
cr

is
ty

   
   

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

 J
an

 2
7,

 2
02

3 
- 2

:4
8p

m
LO

C
AT

IO
N

: Z
:\M

ar
ke

tin
g\

M
cD

on
al

ds
\M

cD
on

al
ds

 G
ar

la
nd

 - 
Bu

ck
in

gh
am

\C
AD

D
\S

H
EE

TS
\L

AN
D

SC
AP

E 
AN

D
 T

R
EE

 E
XH

IB
IT

.d
w

g

R
EV

D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
BY

IS
SU

E
R

EF

19
03

 C
EN

TR
AL

 D
R

.
SU

IT
E 

#4
06

PH
O

N
E:

 8
17

.2
81

.0
57

2
BE

D
FO

R
D

, T
X 

76
02

1
W

W
W

.C
LA

YM
O

O
R

EE
N

G
.C

O
M

1-800-DIG-TESS
DIG TESS

 CALL BEFORE YOU DIG 

(@ least 72 hours prior to digging)

 STOP! COUNTY SURVEY: ABSTRACT NO.

DALLAS D&P SUBDIVISION VOL. 84176, PG. 3469

SHEET NAMEL/C NUMBER:

042-0436

CITY: STATE:

GARLAND TX

ADDRESS:

119 EAST BUCKINGHAM ROAD

ADDITION:

DRIVE THRU REMODEL

SURVEY INFORMATION:
PREPARED BY: LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOT 3R BLOCK 1 OF THE D&P SUBDIVISION

CITY PROJECT NUMBER:  220623-3

EAGLE SURVEYING
210 SOUTH ELM STREET

SUITE 104
DENTON, TX 76201

BENCHMARK DESCRIPTION

T.B.M. NO. 1 - "X" CUT SET ON TOP OF CURB AT SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF SITE.

POSTED ELEVATION = 552.24
T.B.M. NO. 2 - "X" CUT SET ON TOP OF CURB INLET AT NORTHERN

PROPERTY LINE. POSTED ELEVATION = 554.82

1/27/
2023

OWNER/DEVELOPER:
MCDONALDS USA
PO BOX 182571
COLUMBUS, OH 43218
CONTACT: EDDIE NUNEZ
PH: 972.869.1888

APPLICANT/ENGINEER:
CLAYMOORE ENGINEERING
1903 CENTRAL DR. STE. 406
BEDFORD, TX 76021
CONTACT: CLAY CRISTY
PH: 817.281.0572

NTS
VICINITY MAP

SITE

E. BUCKINGHAM RDU
S 

H
W

Y 
78

U
S 

H
W

Y 
78

CASTLE DR.

N
 F

IR
ST

 S
TR

EE
T

LANDSCAPE NOTE:
ALL LANDSCAPING AND TREES
EXISTING ON SITE ARE TO REMAIN.

SITE DATA TABLE

TOTAL SITE AREA 0.875 AC - 38,113 SF

SODDED LANDSCAPE
AREA 4,493 SF

PERCENT LANDSCAPE 11.79%

EXISTING TREE DATA TABLE

NAME AND SIZE NUMBER OF TREES

7" OAK 1

10" OAK 3

12" OAK 4

13" OAK 1

14" OAK 1

16" OAK 1

8" HACKBERRY 1

9" HACKBERRY 1

12" HACKBERRY 2

16" HACKBERRY 1

20" HACKBERRY 1

10" MULBERRY 1

18" MULBERRY 1

6" SWEETGUM 1

TOTAL 20

LEGEND:

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CANOPY TREE

EXISTING HEDGES

EXISTING BUSH

PROPOSED
MODIFICATION

AREA

Exhibit D

AutoCAD SHX Text
THANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
YOU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAY CRISTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
109800

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



Exhibit E



1. PROVIDE CLOSELY SPACED CONTROL JOINTS IN ALL MASONRY WALLS

(MINIMUM ONE PER WALL FACE).

2. PROVIDE TECHNIQUES MENTIONED IN SOILS REPORT TO CONTROL EXCESS

POST CONSTRUCTION MOISTURE TO SUBGRADE. MAINTAIN MOISTURE BARRIERS.

3. SEE SITE PLAN FOR LOCATION.

NOTE:

STORAGE ROOM IS TO BE EQUIPPED WITH A "WHIRLY BIRD" ROOF VENTILATOR,

2X2 FLUORESCENT LIGHT (WEATHER TIGHT) W/ SWITCH AND DUPLEX

RECEPTACLE.

G.C. TO APPLY BLOCK SEALANT AND PAINT TO ALL EXPOSED CMU SURFACES.

GC TO PROVIDE A TPO ROOF COVERING, PER THE STANDARD DETAILS AS SHOW

ON THE ROOFING PLANS, USE A METAL ERA FASCIA TRIM TO MATCH THE

BUILDING

Exhibit E

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE A 12"X12"  VENTED LOUVER IN  THE BOTTOM PORTION  OF THE DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE HINGE DET. 2/ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE FRAME DET. 3/ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.C. TO PROVIDE 6" OF EXPOSED GRADE BEAM AROUND PERIMETER OF STORAGE WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE DOOR LOCATION, COORDINATE WITH CIVIL GRADING PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-9 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17'-9 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-6 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT TO MATCH BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACEBRICK

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR:  B1 = "SIENNA BLEND VELOUR A" BY BELDEN OR EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL FASCIA - COLOR TO MATCH CORRUGATED METAL PANEL - SEE 1/A5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLLOW METAL DOOR - PAINT TO MATCH  COLOR OF SURROUNDING MATERIAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
BR

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B1

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN AT ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN AT ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL ERA WALL CAP/FASCIA ARCH FINISH OVER 8" CMU

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3"X1/4" STEEL ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" "F" TYPE METAL DECKING WELDED TO STEEL ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PROVIDE HINGES AT 3 LOCATIONS (HEIGHTS) AT EACH END POST WITHIN 12" OF THE TOP AND BOTTOM AND AT MID-HEIGHT OF POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X1"X1/4" STEEL ANGLE BRACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCH FINISH OVER 8" CMU

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"X3"X1/4" STEEL ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5" "F" TYPE METAL DECKING WELDED TO STEEL ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DIAMETER STEEL POST CONCRETE FILLED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL WELDS SHALL BE 1/4" THICK FILLET OR FLARE WELDS ALL AROUND THE SMALLER OF THE TWO WELDED MEMBERS UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"X1"X1/4" STEEL ANGLE BRACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLACKSMITH BRAND PIVOTING HINGE BHL 7"X2.125" WELD TO STEEL POST USE 3 EQUALLY SPACED HINGES PER POST (TOP, BOTTOM, AND MIDDLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" NIPPLE WELDED TO PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CANE BOLT W/4" HOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" STL. PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" BOLTS TO FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" SLEEVE IN CORE DRILLED HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DIA. CONCRETE FILLED STEEL POST PAINT TO MATCH BLDG. TRIM COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE/PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" DIAMETER BY 42" DEEP CONCRETE DRILLED PIER, EMBED STEEL POST 36" INTO PIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ADDRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
JERAMY WILLIAMS ARCHITECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST ISSUE DATE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROTOTYPE ISSUE DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVIEWED

AutoCAD SHX Text
McDONALD'S MAJOR REMODEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CMU WALL FRAMING

AutoCAD SHX Text
042-0436

AutoCAD SHX Text
119 E BUCKINGHAM, GARLAND, TX 75040

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/31/2018

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WOOD ROOF FRAMING MEMBERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/24/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
01/31/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/01/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
03/01/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL COMMENTS - ADDED SITE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
04/01/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL COMMENTS - SECURITY LIGHTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/13/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
07

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/27/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
08

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/29/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/09/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
08/19/19

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIENT COMMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2       GATE HINGE DETAIL SCALE 1-1/2"=1'-0"      SCALE 1-1/2"=1'-0"      

AutoCAD SHX Text
3       CANE BOLT DETAIL SCALE 1-1/2"=1'-0"      SCALE 1-1/2"=1'-0"      

AutoCAD SHX Text
4      GATE POST DETAIL SCALE 3/4"=1'-0"      SCALE 3/4"=1'-0"      

AutoCAD SHX Text
5      TRASH ENCLOSURE ELEVATIONS SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"      SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"      

AutoCAD SHX Text
6     TRASH ENCLOSURE PLAN SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"      SCALE 1/4"=1'-0"      



   
 

 

Z 22-79 
 
 

  

View of the subject site looking North from East 
Buckingham Road. 

View from the subject site looking East on East 
Buckingham Road. This area is zoned IN. 

 
 
 

 

View from the subject site looking South across from 
East Buckingham Road. A tire shop and another 
property also zoned IN is shown. 

View from the subject site looking West on East 
Buckingham Road. Across the intersection is a CR 
zoned area to the West. 



,_S[F -7 

a: 
0 
:c .... 
~ 
"' <( 
z 
0 
w 

SF - 7 

PD 20-07 

a: 
0 
<( a: 

co 

PD 93-35 

101 

~ u 
5 ~H s j .... 

2100 

111 I 121 

131 1201 

2316 

2306 

219 
217 
215 

'13 

2326 

I N 

22 

E BUCKINGHAM RD f LJ 1-------'~---tt---· ! L ~ e 

t---+---------1--w BUCKINGHAM RD ===~=~~-·=-~. ~._-_,--7c,,:,,-Ji-7-1!!!!"!!l-r-~TT 
112 n1BnL4nJL 

102 
210 

214 

218 

0 220 440 Feet ZONING MAP Z 22-79 .. INDICATES AREA O INDICATES 
I I I 1 inch = 330 feet OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

119 East Buckingham Road 




	Agenda
	1_a__Plan Commission Minutes for January 23, 2023
	       ATT_Plan Commission Minutes for January 23, 2023
	2_a__P 23-03 190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat 
	       ATT_P 23-03 190 @ N. Garland Addition Replat Report and Attachments
	D56362 - Noles Garland - Replat_2023.01.23.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Plat



	2_b__P 23-04 Embree Replat, Lot 4R, Block 29
	       ATT_P 23-04 Embree Replat, Lot 4R, Block 29
	Sheets and Views
	PLATTING TEMPLATE


	2_c__Z 23-05 Embree Replat, Lot 2R, Block 28
	       ATT_Z 23-05 Embree Replat, Lot 2R, Block 28
	Sheets and Views
	PLATTING TEMPLATE


	3_a__Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering - Planned Development (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Report and Attachments (PD)
	All Exhibits.pdf
	230130_Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	V2.0 SITE PLAN


	L.2
	Sheets and Views
	L.2


	elevations
	A-200 - Site Plan
	A-401 - Buildings 6 & 9 Elevations
	A-402 - Buildings 1 & 8 Elevations
	A-403 - Buildings 2 & 4 Elevations
	A-404 - Buildings 3, 5 & 7 Elevations
	A-405 - Building 10 Elevations
	A-500 - Townhome Cross Section


	Z 22-65 PC Presentation new template.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18


	       ATT_Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Responses
	3_b__Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering - Detail Plan (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Report and Attachments (Detail Plan)
	All Exhibits.pdf
	230130_Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	V2.0 SITE PLAN


	L.2
	Sheets and Views
	L.2


	elevations
	A-200 - Site Plan
	A-401 - Buildings 6 & 9 Elevations
	A-402 - Buildings 1 & 8 Elevations
	A-403 - Buildings 2 & 4 Elevations
	A-404 - Buildings 3, 5 & 7 Elevations
	A-405 - Building 10 Elevations
	A-500 - Townhome Cross Section


	Z 22-65 PC Presentation new template.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18


	       ATT_Z 22-65 Kirkman Engineering Responses
	3_c__Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa - Zoning (District 4)
	       ATT_Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa Report and Attachments (Zoning) 
	Z 22-71 PC Presentation new template.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8


	       ATT_Z 22-71 G. Roxana Novoa Responses
	3_d__Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC - Specific Use Provision (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC (Specific Use Provision) Report and Attachments
	EXHIBITS.pdf
	2.PLAN (8.5X11).pdf
	5.LANDSCAPE PLAN (8.5X11)
	3.ELEVATION(8.5X11)

	Z 22-76 PC Presentation new template.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11


	       ATT_Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC Responses
	3_e__Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC - Plan (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC (Plan) Report and Attachments
	EXHIBITS.pdf
	2.PLAN (8.5X11).pdf
	5.LANDSCAPE PLAN (8.5X11)
	3.ELEVATION(8.5X11)

	Z 22-76 PC Presentation new template.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11

	EXHIBITS.pdf
	2.PLAN (8.5X11).pdf
	5.LANDSCAPE PLAN (8.5X11)
	3.ELEVATION(8.5X11)


	       ATT_Z 22-76 Shammy's Garland LLC Responses
	3_f__Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center - Specific Use Provision (SUP) (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Report and Attachments (Specific Use Provision)
	Z 22-78 PPP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	CASE INFORMATION
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	LOCATION MAP
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	PHOTOS
	PHOTOS
	BACKGROUND
	SITE PLAN
	CONSIDERATIONS
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	       ATT_Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Responses
	3_g__Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center - Detail Plan (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Report and Attachments (Detail Plan)
	Z 22-78 PPP.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	CASE INFORMATION
	CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP
	LOCATION MAP
	COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
	Slide Number 6
	PHOTOS
	PHOTOS
	BACKGROUND
	SITE PLAN
	CONSIDERATIONS
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	       ATT_Z 22-78 Quetzal Event Center Responses
	3_h__Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering - Special Use Provision (District 8)
	       ATT_Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering (SUP) Report and Attachments
	EXHIBITS.pdf
	SP-1 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SP-1 SITE PLAN


	L-1 Landscape and Tree Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	16-0120_McDonalds_042-0436_Garland_TX_AMEPS_Colored Renderings.pdf
	Dumpster Enclosure


	       ATT_Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering Responses
	3_i__Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering - Plan (District 8)
	       ATT_Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering (Plan) Report and Attachments
	EXHIBITS.pdf
	SP-1 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SP-1 SITE PLAN


	L-1 Landscape and Tree Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	16-0120_McDonalds_042-0436_Garland_TX_AMEPS_Colored Renderings.pdf
	Dumpster Enclosure

	EXHIBITS.pdf
	SP-1 Site Plan
	Sheets and Views
	SP-1 SITE PLAN


	L-1 Landscape and Tree Plan
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	16-0120_McDonalds_042-0436_Garland_TX_AMEPS_Colored Renderings.pdf
	Dumpster Enclosure


	       ATT_Z 22-79 Clay Cristy-ClayMoore Engineering Responses


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}



{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}




